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THESE DRAFT TERMS OF MERGER are made on 17 April 2018

BETWEEN:

(1

(2)

Chubb European Group Plc, a public company limited by shares incorporated under
and governed by the laws of England and Wales (registered number 01112892),
whose registered office is at 100 Leadenhall Street, London, United Kingdom, EC3A
3BP ("CEG Ple¢"); and

Colt Merger 1 Plc, a public company limited by shares incorporated under and
governed by the laws of Ireland (registered number 615119), whose registered office
is at 1°-2™ Floors, 1-2 Victoria Buildings, Haddington Road, Dublin 4, Ireland ("Colt
Merger 1").

INTRODUCTION AND PARTIES

(A)

(B)

(&)

)

(E)

(F)

The definitions set out in clause 1 below are used in these recitals.

CEG Plc was incorporated in England and Wales as a private company limited by
shares on 9 May 1973 and was converted to a public limited company limited by
shares on 9 April 2018, Its registered office is as set out above. As at the date of these
Draft Terms of Merger, CEG Plc's issued share capital is £786,119.879 divided into
786,119,879 ordinary shares of £1 each. The entire issued share capital of CEG Plc is
held by ACE European Holdings Limited. CEG Plc carries out its business in the
United Kingdom and through its branches in Austria, Belgium, the Czech Republic,
Denmark, Finland, France, Germany, Gibraltar, Hungary, Ireland, Italy, the
Netherlands, Norway, Poland, Portugal, Spain, Sweden, Switzerland and Turkey and
on a services basis throughout the European Union.

Colt Merger 1 was incorporated in Ireland as a public company limited by shares on
13 November 2017. Its registered office is as set out above. As at the date of these
Draft Terms of Merger the issued share capital of Colt Merger 1 is €25,000 divided
into 25,000 ordinary shares of €1 each. The entire issued share capital of Colt Merger
1 is owned by CEG Plc.

The ultimate parent undertaking of CEG Plc is Chubb Limited (a company
incorporated and governed by the laws of Switzerland) and, as such, each of CEG Plc
and Colt Merger 1 are part of the Chubb group.

CEG Plc and Colt Merger 1, being public limited companies of the type referred to in
Annex 1 of the SE Regulations, intend to merge to form a SE pursuant to Articles 2(1)
and 17(2)(a) of the SE Regulations by way of a merger by acquisition, as defined in
Article 89 of Directive (EU) 2017/1132 of the European Parliament and of the
Council relating to certain aspects of company law (the "Merger Directive") (the
"Merger").

The Merger shall take effect on the Effective Date on the basis set out in these Draft
Terms of Merger. Colt Merger 1 shall be wound up without going into liquidation and
all of its assets and liabilities shall be transferred to CEG Ple, which shall adopt the
form of an SE to be registered with the English Registrar of Companies for England
and Wales under the name Chubb European Group SE.
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IT IS AGREED as follows:

1.

1.1

INTERPRETATION
In these Draft Terms of Merger:

"Assets" means all and any assets of Colt Merger 1 immediately prior to the Effective
Date;

"Brexit" has the meaning given to it in clause 2.2;
"Companies Act” means the UK Companies Act 2006;

"Consultation Directive" means Council Directive 2001/86/EC of 8 October 2001
supplementing the Statute for a European company with regard to the involvement of
employees;

"Court Order" means the order granted by the English Court pursuant to Article 26
of the SE Regulations following its scrutiny of the legality of the completion of the
Merger both in Ireland and in England and Wales;

"Draft Terms of Merger" means these draft terms of merger prepared jointly by
CEG Plc and Colt Merger 1;

"Effective Date" means the date on which CEG Plc is re-registered as an SE by the
Registrar of Companies for England and Wales in accordance with Article 27(1) of
the SE Regulations;

"Employees" means the individuals who have entered into or work under a contract
of employment with CEG Plc and includes, where the employment has ceased, any
individuals who worked under a contract of employment with CEG Pic;

"English Court" means the High Court of England and Wales;

"English Regulations” means the European Public Limited-Liability Company
Regulations 2004 (SI 2004/2326);

"Irish Court" means the Irish High Court;
"Irish Companies Act" means the Companies Act 2014,

"Liabilities" means all and any liabilities of Colt Merger 1 immediately prior to the
Effective Date;

"Merger" has the meaning given to it in Recital (E);

"Merger Directive" means Directive (EU) 2017/1132 of the European Parliament
and of the Council of 14 June 2017 relating to certain aspects of company law;

"SE" means a Societas Europaea as defined in Article 1 of the SE Regulations;

"SE Regulations" means Council Regulation (EC) No 2157/2001 of 8 October 2001
on the Statute for a European company (SE) as implemented in England and Wales by
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1.2

1.3

2.1

22

23

24

2.5

the English Regulations and the Companies Act and in Ireland by the European
Communities (European Public Limited-Liability Company)} Regulations 2007, as
amended and supplemented;

"SNB" has the meaning given to it in 9.6.2; and

"UK Employee Involvement Regulations" means the European Public Limited
Liability Company (Employee Involvement) (Great Britain) Regulations 2009 (SI
2009/2401.

In these Draft Terms of Merger, a reference to:

1.2.1  the plural includes the singular and any reference to the singular includes the
plural;

1.2.2  atime of day is a reference to the time in London, unless a contrary indication
appears; and

123 a clause, Annex or Schedule, unless the context otherwise requires, is a
reference to a clause of or Annex or Schedule to these Draft Terms of Merger.

The headings in these Draft Terms of Merger do not affect their interpretation.
PURPOSE AND EFFECT OF THE MERGER

Chubb Limited is the ultimate holding company for a number of companies
transacting insurance and reinsurance business in the UK and worldwide, including
CEG Pic. Chubb Limited is a company incorporated in Switzerland, whose shares are
traded on the New York Stock Exchange. CEG Plc is a public company limited by
shares with its head office located in the UK.

The UK delivered its withdrawal notice on 29 March 2017 under Article 50 of the
Treaty on European Union ("Brexit"), the consequences for the business of CEG Ple
remain unclear. In order to ensure that CEG Plc can continue to operate without
disruption throughout the European Union in the event of a loss of passporting, and to
ensure continuity of its existing contracts, CEG Plc intends to convert to an SE and
transfer its head office from the UK to France (the "Redomicile”). This will enable
CEG Plc to continue to write business throughout the European Union (including, for
these purposes, the UK during any transition period) on a freedom of services and
freedom of establishment basis.

The board of directors of CEG Plc approved the Redomicile in principle in a board
meeting on 8 August 2017 and the board of directors of Colt Merger 1 will approve
the Redomicile in a board meeting later in 2018. The Merger, as contemplated by
these Draft Terms of Merger, forms part of the Redomicile.

Subject to the Court Order having been granted, the Merger shall become effective on
the Effective Date.

In accordance with Article 29(1) of the SE Regulations and subject to the Court Order
having been granted, on the Effective Date:
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251

25.2

253

CEG Plc will acquire the Asscts and Liabilities;
Colt Merger 1 shall be dissolved; and

CEG Plc shall be re-registered in the UK as an SE.

3. CONDITIONS PRECEDENT

31 Completion of the Merger is conditional upon the satisfaction of the following
requirements:

3.1.1

3.1.5

the shareholders of CEG Plc approving the Merger and these Draft Terms of
Merger;

the shareholders of Colt Merger 1 approving the Merger and these Draft
Terms of Merger;

a pre-merger certificate having been issued by the Irish Court pursuant to
Atrticle 25(2) of the SE Regulations;

a pre-merger certificate having been issued by the English Court pursuant to
Article 25(2) of the SE Regulations; and

the Court Order having been made.

4. MERGING COMPANIES

Regulation 20(1)(a) of the Merger Regulations, section 905(2)(a) of the Companies
Act and Sections 1131(2)(a) and 1131(2}(b)of the Irish Companies Act

4.1 The transferee: CEG Plc

Details

4.1.1

4.1.5

of CEG Plc, the transferee under the Merger, are as follows:
Name: Chubb European Group Plc;

Registered Office: 100 Leadenhall Street, London, United Kingdom, EC3A
3BP;

Legal form and law by which it is governed: public company limited by shares
with its registered office in and governed by the laws of England and Wales;

Register in which it is entered: the Companics House register maintained by
the Registrar of Companies (England and Wales); and

Registration number: 01112892.

4.2 The transferor: Colt Merger 1

Details

4.2.1

188487-4-16743-v3 4

of Colt Merger 1, the transferor under the merger, are as follows:

Name: Colt Merger 1 Public Limited Company;
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4.3

3.1

52

422  Registered Office: 12" Floors, 1-2 Victoria Buildings, Haddington Road,
Dublin 4, Ireland;

423  Legal form and law by which it is governed: public company limited by shares
with its registered office in and governed by the laws of Ireland;

424  Register in which it is entered: Register of Companies at the Companies
Registration Office Ireland; and

425  Registration number: 615119.
The proposed SE: Chubb European Group SE

The proposed details of Chubb European Group SE, the SE resulting from the Merger,
are as follows:

43.1  Proposed name: Chubb European Group SE;

432  Proposed Registered Office: 100 Leadenhall Street, London, United Kingdom,
EC3A 3BP;

433  Legal form and law by which it will be governed. European public company
(societas europaea) with its registered office in and governed by the laws of
England and Wales; and

434  Register in which it will be entered. the Companies House register maintained
by the Registrar of Companies (England and Wales).

SHARE EXCHANGE RATIO, COMPENSATION AND ALLOTMENT OF
SHARES

Articles 20(1)(b), 20(1)(c) and 20(1)(d) of the SE Regulations, section 905(2)(b) of the
Companies Act and Sections 1131(2)(c), 1131(2)(djand 1131(2)(e} of the Irish
Companies Act

As the entire issued share capital of Colt Merger 1 is held by CEG Pl¢, Article 31 of
the SE Regulations disapplies the requirement under Article 20(1)(c) of the SE
Regulations for CEG Plc to issue additional shares to the holders of shares in Colt
Merger 1 upon the Merger becoming effective. Consequently, no allotment of shares
under Article 20(1)}(c) of the SE Regulations is required nor is the application of a
share exchange ratio under Article 20(1)(b) and any related compensation necessary.

Article 31 of the SE Regulations disapplies the requirement set out in Article 20(1)(d)
to include in these Draft Terms of Merger the date from which the holding of shares
in the SE will entitle the holders to share in profits and any special conditions
affecting that entitlement.
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7.1

7.2

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

DATE FROM WHICH THE TRANSACTIONS OF THE MERGING
COMPANIES WILL BE TREATED FOR ACCOUNTING PURPOSES AS
THOSE OF THE SE

Article 20(1)(e) of the SE Regulations, section 905(2)(e) of the Companies Act and
Section 1131(2)(f) of the Irish Companies Act

From 00:01 on 1 January 2018, all actions and transactions of CEG Plc and Colt
Merger 1 are to be treated for accounting purposes as being those of Chubb European
Group SE.

RIGHTS CONFERRED BY THE SE ON THE HOLDERS OF SHARES TO
WHICH SPECIAL RIGHTS ARE ATTACHED AND ON THE HOLDERS OF
SECURITIES OTHER THAN SHARES

Article 20¢1)(f} of the SE Regulations, section 913 of the Companies Act and Section
1131(2)(g) of the Irish Companies Act

ACE European Holdings Limited as the holder of the entire issued share capital of
CEG Plc shall retain its rights to share in the profits of CEG Plc up to the Effective
Date and will become entitled to share in the profits of Chubb European Group SE on
and from the Effective Date.

There are no persons who hold any securities other than shares in either CEG Plc or
Colt Merger 1 and neither company has in issue any shares to which special rights
(being rights which differ from the rights attaching to any other share in that company)
are attached. For this reason, no measures are proposed as envisaged by Article
20(1)(f) of the SE Regulations, section 913 of the Companies Act or Section
1131(2)(g) of the Irish Companies Act in respect of the holders of any such shares or
other securities and no rights will be conferred by Chubb European Group SE in
respect thereof.

STATUTES OF THE SE
Article 20(1)(h) of the SE Regulations

From the Effective Date CEG Plc will adopt the legal form of an SE pursuant to
Articles 17(2)(a) and 29(1)(d) of the SE Regulations. The name of the SE will be
Chubb European Group SE and its issued share capital shall be at least €120,000.

The registered office of Chubb European Group SE will be at 100 Leadenhall Street,
London, United Kingdom EC3A 3BP.

Chubb European Group SE will adopt a set of statutes (subject to shareholder
approval) in substantially the same form as those which are attached to these Draft
Terms of Merger at Schedule 3.

Following the Merger it is intended that the members of the administrative organ of
Chubb European Group SE will be as set out in Schedule 4.
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9.1

9.2

9.3

94

9.5

9.6

INFORMATION ON THE PROCEDURES FOR EMPLOYEE
INVOLVEMENT

Article 20¢1)(i) of the SE Regulations
Colt Merger 1 has no employees nor has it any subsidiaries or establishments.

CEG Plc currently employs Employees and will continue to employ Employees up to
and at the Effective Date.

As at the date of these Draft Terms of Merger, CEG Plc has employee representatives
in France, Italy, Germany, Spain and the Netherlands. CEG Plc has completed all
required consultations with employee representatives in these jurisdictions with
respect to the Merger.

Immediately following the Merger, the employees of CEG Plc shall continue in their
employment on their individual terms and conditions of employment existing at the
time of the Merger and their continuity of service will be preserved.

As of March 2018, there are 50 agency workers in CEG Plc. No changes are currently
envisaged to these arrangements as a result of the Merger.

In accordance with the Consultation Directive and the UK Employee Involvement
Regulations, CEG Plc has started to take the necessary steps relating to negotiations
with representatives of the Employees on arrangements for the involvement of
Employees in Chubb European Group SE. Such steps include, but are not be limited
to, the following:

9.6.1 providing information to the Employees in relation to the identity of the
participating companies, concerned subsidiaries and establishments and the
number of employees and agency workers in each of those entities and each
EEA State;

962 giving Employees the entitlement to appoint or elect member(s) to a special
negotiating body ("SNB") in accordance with Regulation 8 of the UK
Employee Involvement Regulations, by following the method of election or
appointment determined by each EEA state under Article 3 of the Consultation
Directive;

9.6.3 negotiating with the SNB in a spirit of co-operation, with a view to reaching
agreement on the detailed arrangements for the involvement of the Employees
in Chubb European Group SE; and

9.6.4 reaching a written agreement (specifying the terms set out in Regulation 15 of
the UK Employee Involvement Regulations) on the involvement of
Employees in Chubb European Group SE. If agreement cannot be reached
with the SNB within the time period specified in Regulation 14 of the UK
Employee Involvement Regulations, CEG Plc reserves the right to accept the
Standard Rules (Regulation 19 of the UK Employee Involvement Regulations)
pursuant to Article 3(6) of the Consultation Directive.

188487-4-16743-v3 4 -9.- 70-40634133



9.7

10.

10.1

10.2

11.

12.

12.1

12.2

13.

The formation of Chubb European Group SE is subject to Article 12(2) of the SE
Regulations, which requires that an SE may not be registered unless an agreement on
arrangement for employee involvement pursuant to Article 4 of the Consultation
Directive has been concluded, a decision has been taken pursuant to Article 3(6) of
the Consultation Directive or the period for negotiation pursuant to Article 5 has
expired without an agreement having been concluded.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Attached to these Draft Terms of Merger at Schedule 1 are the audited annual
accounts of CEG Plc for the last three financial years. In accordance with the Merger
Directive, these accounts will be made available for inspection at the registered
oftices of CEG Plc and Colt Merger 1.

Attached to these Draft Terms of Merger at Schedule 2 is a balance sheet as at 10
April 2018 that reflects Colt Merger 1's assets and liabilities. Colt Merger 1 has
obtained written approval under section 1134 of the Irish Companies Act from: (i) the
shareholders of CEG Plc; and (ii) CEG Plc in its capacity as shareholder of Colt
Merger 1, to dispense with the requirement to prepare a merger financial statement if
one is required under section 1134 of the Irish Companies Act.

DIRECTORS' REPORT

As a result of Section 915(4) of the Companies Act, as Colt Merger 1 is a wholly
owned subsidiary of CEG Ple, the parties hereto are not required to prepare a
directors' explanatory report on the merger pursuant to section 908 of the Companies
Act and Section 1132(1) of the Irish Companies Act.

INDEPENDENT EXPERT'S REPORT AND SPECIAL ADVANTAGE
GRANTED TO EXPERT OR TO DIRECTORS OF THE MERGING
COMPANIES

Article 20(1)(g) of the SE Regulations sections 905(2)(g), 909 and 915(4) of the
Companies Act and Section 1131(2)(h) of the Irish Companies Act

As a result of Section 915(4) of the Companies Act and Section 1133(2) of the Irish
Companies Act, as Colt Merger 1 is a wholly owned subsidiary of CEG Ple, the
parties hereto are not required to appoint an independent expert to prepare a report on
these Draft Terms of Merger under the Companies Act or Irish Companies Act.

No cash payment shall be made, or other form of consideration given, by CEG Plc in
connection with the Merger and no special advantage, payment or benefit in cash or
otherwise has been or will be granted to any expert, or to any member of the
administrative, management, supervisory or controlling organs of either of CEG Plc
or Colt Merger 1.

REPORT ON MATERIAL CHANGES OF ASSETS OF THE MERGING
COMPANIES

Colt Merger | being a wholly owned subsidiary of CEG Plc, CEG Plc has obtained
written approval under section 918A of the Companies Act from: (i) the shareholders
of CEG Ple; and (ii) CEG Plc in its capacity as sharcholder of Colt Merger 1, to
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14.

15.

16.

17.

dispense with the requirement to a report on material changes of assets pursuant to
section 911B of the Companies Act.

INSPECTION OF DOCUMENTS

Colt Merger 1 being a wholly owned subsidiary of CEG Plc, the requirements of
section 911 of the Companies Act to make: (i) a director's explanatory report; and (ii)
an expert's report available for inspection, do not apply.

GOVERNING LAW
These Draft Terms of Merger are governed by English law.
AMENDMENTS

CEG Plc and Colt Merger 1 may jointly consent to any modification or addition to
these Draft Terms of Merger that the English Court may approve or impose.

COUNTERPARTS

These Draft Terms of Merger may be executed in any number of counterparts and by
the parties to them in separate counterparts, cach of which when executed and
delivered shall be an original but all the counterparts together constitute one
instrument.
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EXECUTED by the parties
For and

on behalf of CHUBB EUROPEAN GROUP PL.C

A

Signature

Signature

17 o] 20
Date

For and

on behalf of COLT MERGER 1 PL.C

Sigﬁat ~ )

Signature

1 7{0u(201&
Date
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EXECUTED by the parties

For and

on behalf of CHUBB EUROPEAN GROUP PL.C

Signature

el

Signature

(7o {201%

Date
For and

on behalf of COLT MERGER 1 PLC

Signature 2 ?

A4

Signature

({0t (2018

Date

188487-4-16743-v3.4

12

70-40634133



SCHEDULE 1
AUDITED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS OF CEG FOR THE LAST THREE YEARS
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ACE EUROPEAN GROUP LIMITED PAGE 2

CHAIRMAN’S LETTER
31 December 2015

The President’s Report for 2015 contains a review of 2015 performance, an introduction to the Chubb acquisition and confirms the
2016 outlook of a continuing, challenging and competitive marketplace. In short we demonstrated good use of ACE European Group
Limited’s excellence in underwriting, actuarial, line of business and risk management skills and will continue to develop these

capabilities throughout 2016.

In addjtion the Board and management have sought to deliver the major initiatives formulated by our regulators, the Prudential
Regulation Authority (“PRA™) and Financial Conduct Authority (“FCA™), on prudential and conduct issues. This has been reinforced
by a requirement within the ‘Senior Insurance Managers Regime’ for separate identification regimes delineating key responsibilitics
and the relevant experience, information and awareness needs of key managers and Board members in order to ensure adequate
challenge and validation of decisions. This is a significant policy change and has been introduced with helpful comment and

directional guidance helping build constructive relationships.

A significant strengthening of the Board was reported in 2014. One change had 1o be made to replace Laurel Powers-Freeling when
she resigned in July 2015 to take up an important appointment as Chairman of The Sumitomo Mitsui Barking Corperation Europe
Limited. The Board thanks her for her strong contribution and wishes her well in her new appointment. A replacement Non-
Executive Director, Marshall Bailey, was appointed at the end of 2015. Marshall has a background of experience in prudential
matters, banking, capital markets, finance and regulatory oversight. He brings new skills to the Board and has accepted responsibility
for the Risk Management function as Committee Chair. We will be maintaining our approach that, as a regulated major subsidiary,
Non-Executive Directors should sit on the Risk and Audit Committees to ensure uniformity in the adequacy and depth of information
required to be an effective Board member. ACE European Group Limited will also be adopting and rolling out in 2016 improved
standards of whistleblowing processes as recommended by the FCA with the relevant supporting actions of required management

training and necessary improvements in employee awareness.

In summary, in 2016 there are a number of themes additional to the current market challenges. These include meeting on an ongoing
basis the improved standards of prudential and conduct regulation and the optimal integration and ongoing delivery of the business
opportunities provided by the completion of the Chubb acquisition. The year of 2016 therefore presents significant opportunities for
ACE European Group Limited to demonstrate continued strong progress.

P~

J A Napier
Chairman

31 March 2016



ACE EUROPEAN GROUP LIMITED PAGE 3

PRESIDENT'S REPORT
31 December 2015

Overview

ACE Eurapean Group Limited ("AEGL™) is one of Europe’s leading commercial insurance and reinsurance companies, providing a
range of property and casualty (“P&C”), accident and health (*A&H") and specialty personal lines (“SPL”} insurance products for a
diverse range of clients. With shareholders’ funds approaching £1.1 billion at year end 2015, AEGL is a large, well-capitalised
company operating a successful underwriting franchise throughout the UK, Ireland and Continental Europe.

Acquisition of Chubb Corporation

On 14 January 2016, ACE Limited, the ultimate parent of AEGL, completed the acquisition of the Chubb Corporation, creating a

global insurance leader operating in 54 countries.

The new Chubb will be an industry leader in commercial and personal insurance, with enhanced growth and eamings power and an
exceplional balance of products. The combined company will benefit from greater product diversification and complementary
distribution channels, customer segments and a shared commitment to underwriting discipline and outstanding claims service. In
addition, the size and strength of the balance sheet will elevate the combined company into the elite group of global P&C insurers.

Legacy Chubb had a significant UK and European presence with business lines, distribution channels, customer segments and
underwriting skills that complement AEGL’s existing structure and portfolios. Senior task force teams have been compiled from all
business and support areas to consider how best to bring the strengths of the two companies together for the benefit of our customers
and business partners, Integration plans have been progressing well with executives from both former organisations collaborating to

develop a blueprint for the new Chubb.

Following the transaction close and in line with local regulatory requirements, the combined organisation will transition to operate
under the Chubb brand on a global basis — an acknowledgment of the distinctiveness and strength of the Chubb name.

2015 performance

AEGL delivered solid financial results for 2015 despite the continuance of challenging market conditions. Adherence to underwriting
discipline resulted in some shrinkage in the top line — gross written premiums of £2,200.5 million were down circa 5% in comparison
to prior year — and generated underwriting profits of £87.8 million. Investment returns of £6.4 million and other charges, including
some adverse foreign exchange movements, brought the company’s pre-tax profit for the year to £56.9 million. Further detail relating

to our financial performance can be found in the Strategic Review.




ACE EUROPEAN GROUP LIMITED PAGE 4

PRESIDENT'S REPORT
31 December 2015

Remaining relevant in a challenging marketplace

Conditions in the London, UK and European insurance markets remained difficult throughout 2015. The huge swathe of capital that
has entered into the markets during the past few years looks like it is here to stay and the rating environment, particularly in the
London market, has showed no signs of improvement as competiters continue to chase the top line with an apparent disregard for
bottom line profitability.

Generally speaking, pricing is not keeping pace with loss cost trends, although this varies by line and geography. We continue to
exccute strategies to ameliorate the impact of pricing on our combined ratio using portfolio management to target classes with better

margin and applying tighter individual risk selection and pricing actions in more stressed areas.

One of AEGL’s strengths is its broad product and geog;'aphical diversity. This allows us to increase focus on lines that in our view
offer the greatest potential for profitability and shrink in areas that face more competition or have less attractive returns. In addition,
the A&H and SPL business provides stability to the overall portfolio to offset the more volatile P&C lines.

Businesses across the UK and Europe are pursuing new and increasingly global growth opportunities which bring with them a new
wave of complex, inter-related and rapidly changing risks. These include technology risk —~ cyber-attack, data loss and business
interruption as a result of systems failure — and supply chain and reputational risk as the complexity of expanding supply networks
creates numerous interdependencies and exposures. Regulation and compliance risk also remains high on the agenda, especially as
companies move into new and less familiar jurisdictions and regulators drive more imrusive‘supervision with a trend towards direct

action against companies and their executives.

We acknowledge the need to remain relevant in this constantly changing environment. We are a key player in our chosen markets
angd are actively working to create new products and provide tailored insurance and risk management solutions to address our

customers’ evolving needs.

We recognise the power of big data and have invested in tools and technologies to better utilise the wealth of informaticn at our

disposal and assist underwriters in their risk assessment.

This year we have introeduced new niche products relating to environmental impairment liability, life sciences and cyber refated risks
to our business portfolio along with enhanced package P&C products that span traditionally separate lines of business. We have
enhanced our multinational capabilities and increased our middle market penctration in Continental Europe. We also launched a
range of customer-focused web-based initiatives this year in line with our commitment to providing enhanced customer service.

Although the structure of the organisation is already designed to provide fast, local access to decision makers, there has been a
concerted effort to simplify access te our range of underwriting capabilities by increasing the number of products we offer online in
both the UK and on the Continent. We have also improved our ‘Appetite App’ to ensure brokers are kept informed of the lines of
business we are most suited to write at any given time, allowing them to pursue risks with us where we are the best fit for their

clients,
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Positioning for the future

Qur plans for 2016 assume continued insurance market pressures, with rates likely to remain flat at best and in many cases continue
to decline. Portfolip review processes are embedded throughout the business which, together with enhanced data analysis and
management information tools, enable us to better evaluate profitability margins and identify our preferred, standard or challenged
business sectors. We remain steadfast in our refusal to trade underwriting profit for premium volume and as a result, significant top
line growth in the P&C sector will be difficult to come by in 2016. However we do anticipate growth in the SPL division as we

increase penetration of existing schemes with our mobile network operator partners and launch new programmes in Europe.

A significant portion of AEGL’s business is conducted via registered brokers and we recognise the benefit of the good relationships
we have built with our broker partners to bring tangible benefits to our underwriting transactions and thank them for their continued

support.

We will continue te focus on our clients, pooling our skills and expertise with our partners to provide the strategic counsel and risk
management expertise they need. We have leveraged our operations to provide superior customer service and outcomes and adhere to
clear and agreed service standards through risk management, compliance and conduct govemnance practices throughout all areas of
the AEGL business.

In conclusion

AEGL has a clear strategic direction and a strong ability to execute. We are 2 leader in insurance, reinsurance and risk solutions with

significant geographic presence, well-established underwriting capabilities and the support of the group’s worldwide network.

Finally, | want to acknowledge the dedication and commitment of my colleagues throughout the region. We have a great team and |
would like to thank them all for maintaining such focus on our ‘business as usual’ targets this year amidst the flurry of integration

announcements and activities.

2016 will bring ACE and Chubb together to create a global P&C leader with highly complementary business lines, distribution

channels, customer segments and underwriting culture and 1 look forward to leading AEGL through an exciting year ahead.

A J Kendrick

President

31 March 20316
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The Board of AEGL has prepared this report in accordance with Section 414A of the Companies Act 2006. In addition to this
statutory requirement, this report also addresses other aspects of the company’s business which the Board believes will be of benefit
to interested parties,

Organisation of the Business

Ultimate Ownership

AEGL was a major contributor to the ACE Group of Companies in 2015, providing approximately 14% of the group’s overall gross
written premium. At the end of 2015, the ACE Group recorded $23.8 billion of gross writlen premiums in the year and held $102.4
billion in assets.

On | July 2015, ACE Limited, the ultimate parent of AEGL, announced that the Boards of Directors of ACE Limited and The Chubb
Corporation had unanimously approved a definitive agreement under which ACE would acquire Chubb. Following approval from the
shareholders of both companies and receipt of all required regulatory approvals, ACE Limited completed the acquisition of The
Chubb Corporation on 14 January 2016, and subsequently changed its name to Chubb Limited.

The combined company, operating under the Chubb name, is now one of the world’s largest publicly traded property and casualty
insurer. With operations in 54 countries, Chubb provides commercial and -personal property and casualty insurance, personal accident
and supplemental health insurance, reinsurance and hife insurance to a diverse group-of clients.

The company is distinguished by its extensive product and service offerings, broad distribution capabilities, exceptional financial
strength, underwriting excellence, superior ctaims handling expertise and local operations globally. The insurance companies of
Chubb serve multinational corporations, mid-size and small businesses with property and casualty insurance and services; affluent
and high net worth individuals with substantial assets to protect; individuals purchasing life, personal accident, supplemental health,
homeowners, automobile and other specialty insurance coverage; companies and affinity groups providing or offering accident and
health insurance programmes and life insurance to their employees or members; and insurers managing exposures with reinsurance
coverage.

Chubb’s core operating insurance companies maintain financial strength ratings of “AA” from Standard & Poor’s and “A++" from
A.M. Best.

Chubb Limited is listed on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE: CB) and is a component of the S&P 500 index. The company
maintains executive offices in Zunch, New York, London and other locations, and employs approximately 30,000 people worldwide.

ACE European Group Limited

Headquartered in the UK with branch offices across Europe and Turkey, AEGL and its European Economic Area (“EEA™) branches
hold cross-border permissions throughout the EEA. AEGL is also a “white listed” surplus lines insurance and reinsurance company in
the United States, entitling it to write surplus lines in all US states and US territories. Business is accessed by a variety of distribution
channels and the company has strong relationships with the broker community, its corporate partners and direct markets.

Following the close of the acquisition and in line with local regulatory requirements, AEGL will transition from operating under the
“ACE”, “ACE Global Markets” and “ACE Tempest Re” brands to adopt “‘Chubb”, “*Chubb Global Markets™ and “Chubb Tempest
Re” respectively. The organisation will also contimee to trade as “Combined Insurance”,

The acquisition has no immediate impact on AEGL as a legal entity; however the name of the company is expected to change to
reflect the Chubb brand over time.

ACE Eurgpe provides client-focused solutions for a range of UK and European multinational, large and mid-sized commercial
clients, with products encompassing property, primary and excess casualty, financial lines, surety, marine cargo and construction
related risks. ACE Europe also underwrites an accident and health and travel insurance portfalio, providing benefits and services to
individuals, employee groups and affinity groups throughout Europe. In some cases these products are packaged under other brands
or form part of another service provider’s products. ACE Europe has successfully blended the knowledge of its local markets with
the worldwide perspective available through the global organisation, building a significant position in Europe. The principal business
segments of ACE Europe are managed as UK & [reland P&C (“UK& I P&C”), Continental Europe P&C (“CE P&C™), Accident &
Health (“A&H") and Specialty Personal Lines (“SPL"),

ACE Global Markets (“AGM™) is the ACE Group’s specialty intermational underwriting business. Its parallel distribution
capabilities mean that underwriting preducts may be offered through both AEGLE and Lloyd’s Syndicate 2488, managed by ACE
Underwriting Agencies Limited. AGM’s product range includes tailored solutions for aviation, energy, financial lines, marine,
property, political risks and excess & surplus lines (“E&S") insurance risks.

With underwriting operations [ocated in London and Zurich, ACE Tempest Re International (“*ATRe™) writes traditional and non-
traditional aviation, casualty, marine and property treaty reinsurance worldwide. Products are offered predominantly through AEGL
and Lloyd's Syndicate 2488, and also through various overseas ACE Group legal entities.

The Combined Insurance (“Combined™) business provides a wide range of personal accident and sickness insurance products
including short-term disability, critical condition and hospitalisation/recovery across a number of European countries.

AEGL has an extensive and varied client list, including multinational ¢orperations and local busingsses with P&C ¢xposures,
companies and affinity groups 'who offer A&H programmes to their employees or members, insurers seeking reinsurance coverage
and individuals purchasing personal accident, travel or supplemental health insurance.
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A breakdown of 2015 gross written premiums by principal business .segments is below:

AGM 4% ACE Europe
10% - UK &I P&C
. ; y 23%

Combined
4%

ACE Eureope SPL
15%

Ly ACE Europe CE
ACE Europe

P&C
A&H 29%
15%

AEGL benefits from comprehensive and fully integrated support functions encompassing claims, finance and actuarial, risk
management, legal and compliance, human rescurces, operations and IT.

Business Objectives & Strategy

AEGL is distinguished by its market-leading risk expertise, a disciplined approach to underwriting, local presence offering fast
access to deciston makers and a commitment to its customers founded upon a superior claims service.

AEGL has an established underwriting ethos that permeates the company. Top line growth is not the primary driver for the company
and underwriters are fully prepared to shed volume as necessary in order to maintain an underwriting profit. Using AEGL’s
underwriting skills and targeted marketing strategies, the company aims to generate growth in areas where risk-adjusted underwriting
margins are favourable, and achieve better terms or shrink business where they are not.

AEGL is headquartered in Londor but can issue policies locally throughout its network of UK and European branch offices. This
encourages underwriting flexibility and high levels of service for brokers and clients whilst ensuring local regulatory and tax
requirements are adhered to. AEGL is an established player in the mullinationa! marketplace and has the capability to provide fully
integrated intemationa} insurance programmes for clients. AEGL’s dedicated and experienced international underwriting and service
teams work with the ACE Group’s global network of offices te provide seamless, tailored solutions to the often unique and complex
needs of multinational companies which includes agreeing coverage, issuing policies, adjusting claims and moving funds, all in
accordance with legislative requirements and agreed service standards. The continuing trend of companies expanding beyond their
local and national borders makes multinational business a key priority for AEGL.

The company strives 10 offer superior service levels in all aspects of its operations, from pelicy processing to engineering risk
management and claims handling. AEGL continues to invest in technology to improve its operational efficiency, underwriter support
and broker interfaces.

AEGL is committed to protecting and preserving its capital. It operates a conservative investment strategy and has maintained its
focus on cash flow management and liquidity to secure its long term position in the insurance market.
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Business Environment

Rating envirenment

Retail commercial P&C insurance pricing in the UK and Ireland remained competitive during 2015 with most core lines experiencing
single-digit rate reductions. Rating pressures were most pronounced for fire and marine renewals, with pricing in the casualty and
tech lings sectors demonstrating a little more resilience. Business retention rates were strong but new business remained difficult to
convert as a result of aggressive competition on rate and terms and conditions.

Pricing is generally less volatile in the Continental Europe P&C market and although competition was prevalent throughout the
region, the overall price change on renewal business for the year was only marginally negative. Business retentior was good across
all lines although new business remained subject to extreme competition, particularly for larger accounts.

An abundance of capacity in the London wholesale insurance market meant that there was no respite in competition for AGM’s
business during the year. Overall pricing on renewal business was negative, with the most adverse rate movements affecting the
aviation and energy portfolios.

Conditions in the reinsurance market also remained difficult, with reductions more pronounced in shorter tail classes due in part to
another year of benign catastrophe activity.

There was also sustained pressure on pricing in the traditional A&H markets, with competitors willing to underwrite insurance
business at aggressive combined ratios.

All areas of the business expericnced pressure on commission levels and fees. Brokers continue to push for increased remuneration
and specific agreements and facilities continue to inundate the market, making some accounts less mobile or more expensive to
underwrite. AEGL continues to leverage its position as a lead insurer to ensure that all commissions payable are justified and bring
additional value to the company.

Financial markets review

Votlatility increased within financial markets in 2015, with events such as plummeting oil and commodity prices, devaluation of the
Chinese currency, falls in Chinese equity prices and another Greek debt crisis focussing investors’ minds. 2015 was also defined by
a divergence in economic policy, as the Federal Reserve (“Fed™) began the road toward normalising monetary policy by increasing
interest rates, while the European Central Bank (*ECB") continued easing. The Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee
{*MPC") kept the base rate unchanged through the-year, despite inflation dropping to record lows, and even into negative territory in
April and September.

In the US, amid increased signs of economic strength, the Fed finally increased interest rates by 25 basis points in December. Earlier
in the year, the Fed laid the groundwork for this by signalling that it was becoming more data-dependent and this appeared to suggest
rates would rise mid-year. However, these expeciations were waylaid by significant market volatility, stemming initially from the
Eurozone in the form of Greece and then from China as a result of unanticipated currency depreciation. Relatively strong growth in
the United States together with signs of inflation in 2016 pushed the Fed to finally begin its hiking cycle in Q4. Markets ended the
year expecting further increases in 2016.

Despite a decisive election result in the UK, questions continued concerning the potential timing and outcome of the EU referendum
and this uncertainty will likely influence investor sentiment in 2016. Throughout 2015 inflation remained comfortably below the
MPC’s 2% target and wage data has not shown consistent strengthening to influence this outlook. For the UK, there were moderate
vield rises over the year and expectations for interest rate rises are now priced in for 18-24 months”’ time.

In the Eurozone, the ECB introduced its quantitative ¢asing programme in the first quarter, a move which initially drove sovereign
yields in the region intc negative territory. As the second quarter came to a close, markets focused on events in Greece, where the
debt crisis worsened sharply and its Prime Minister ultimately secured approval for a new bailout. While the Eurozone managed to
end the year on a relatively positive note as ECB head Mario Draghi expanded the bank’s quantitative easing programme, the relative
sense of calm that emerged in Aupgust was quickly replaced by renewed volatility coming from China where growth continued to
slow.

This ecanomic environment proved challenging for fixed income investors although performance differed by region. In the US and
UK sovereign bond yields rose but remained little changed in Germany. Across all markets, exposure to credit proved detrimental
and consequently in 2015 investment grade portfolios struggled to generate meaningful total retums.
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Presentation of Financial Statcraents

The financial staternents have been prepared under the provision of The Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts
and Reports) Regulations 2008 (*SI2008/410™} relating to insurance companies’ individual financial statements and applicable
accounting standards in the UK,

Key Performance Indicators

The following financial key performance indicators (“KPls™) have been deemed relevant to the company’s business. These KPlIs are
reviewed regularly by the AEGL Board.

£ million 205 2014
Gross written premiums 2,200.5 2,322.7
Net writtert ptemiums 1,152.7 1,103.7
Combined ratio* 2N2.1% 95.1%
Profit before tax 56.9 246.9

* Ratio of net claims incurred, commission and expenses to net premiums earned

The Board alse monitors the capital needs of the company. Further details in this regard are set out in the ‘Financial position’ section
of this Strategic Report. .
Management also use a vaniety of other performance indicators, including production volumes, retention ratios, price monitoring, loss
and expense analyses, and operating metrics in assessing the performance of each of the individual business segments. All financial
results are monitored against plan, forecast and prior year on a regular basis.

Results & Performance

2015 produced a pre-tax operating profit of £56.9 million and a combined ratio of 92.1%. A summary of the reported financial
results is shown in the following table.

£ million 2015 2014
(Gross written premiums 2,200.5 2,322.7
Net written premiums 1,152.7 1,103.7
Net eamed premiums 1,110.6 1,068.3
[ncurred losses 512.5 531.5
Operating expenses 5103 484.3
Underwriting profit 37.8 52.5
Equalisation reserve movement 6.3 4.7
Investment return 6.4 1428
Net other (charges) / income (3L 56.3
Net pre-tax profit 56.9 246.9
Combined ratio 92.i% 95.1%

Drivers of underwriting resuft

Premium growth in 2015 was difficult to come by. Gross written premiums were down 5% against prior year with all business units,
except for SPL, shrinking as a result of adverse market conditions.

Retail P&C premiums in the UK & Ireland and on the Continent reduced, predominantly within fire and casualty, although there was
some limited growth in the more niche areas of the portfolio. A&H production also decreased due to market pressures in the
traditional, broker-led field and the short-term impact of the revised leisure travel underwriting strategy implemented in 2014.
Despite an increase in competition for ACE Europe’s SPL business, double-digit premium growth was achieved as a result of

_ increased market penetration through existing schemes and targeted strategies to launch new programmes. Combined premiums were

effectively on par with those of the prior year. London market AGM and ATRe premiums shrank significantly due to the adherence
to underwriting discipline against a backdrop of consistently challenging market conditions.

AEGL purchases reinsurance to mitigate the impact of major events and an undue frequency of smaller fosses. A number of the
reinsurance programmes operated by AEGL during 2015 were with an ACE Group company, ACE Tempest Reinsurance Lid. AEGL
also has the benefit, particularly for US and worldwide catastrophe exposures, of reinsurance programmes shared with other ACE
entities, including Syndicate 2488 at Lloyd’s. These arrangements result in an increase in the reinsurance purchasing power of the
ACE Group, which ultimately benefits all ACE subsidiaries, including AEGL. A reduction in ceded reinsurance spend as a
percentage of gross written premiums has resulted in net written premium growth of 4% against prior year.

The absence of very severe catastrophes and another quiet hurricane season in the North Atlantic resulted in lower than average
natural catastrophe related losses in 2015, with mérket economic losses amounting to approximately US$90 billien and total insured
fosses of circa US$27 billion, AEGL’s exposure to large losses is managed by adherence to clear risk management and underwriting
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guidelines and the use of reinsurance protection and sophisticated modelling and analysis. AEGL’s catastrophe losses net of
reinsurance recoveries and reinstatement premiums during 2015 amounted to £4.4 million (2014: £10.0 million) with the most
significant losses emanating from Storm Desmond in the UK, flooding in Continental Europe and the Tianjin explosion in China.

Prior period reserve releases were £90.7 million (2014: £94.1 million) with positive developments within a number of classes,
particularly Liability and Property.

Excluding catastrophe losses and prior period development, the current accident year loss ratio for the year was 53.9% (2014:
57.6%), demonstrating the strength of the undetlying business and the positive impact of the portfolio review process despite the
sustained challenging conditions of the insurance and reinsurance markets.

Operaling expenses constitute commissions and general administrative expenses. AEGL continues to focus on the strict management
of each of these components in line with the growth of the business.

Investment Report
AEGL maintains six active investment grade fixed income portfolios, the core currencies of which are sterling, euro and US dallars.

Further passive portfolios are maintained in Switzerland and Turkey to meet local solvency requirements. AEGL also allocates a
limited proportion of funds available for investrnent to alternative strategies. These altemnative strategies include high-yield bonds,
syndicated bank loans and global equities. In 2015 a further small alternative asset portfolio was established, to invest in private loans
although limited activity had taken place in 2015 and the maximum funding to this strategy has been limited to less than 3% of the
total portfolio.

Funds allocated to alternative strategies continued to fall comfortably within the established limits and the majority of AEGL’s
investments continued to be allocated to high quality, diversified, actively managed portfolios with exposure to a broad range of
sectors. Consistent with previous years, ACE’s investment guidelines and external manager positioning continued to restrict exposure
to peripheral Eurozone countries.

The approximate currency split of AEGL’s investment porifolios is sterling 42%, US dollars 32% and euro 23%. Other currency
investments comprise approximately 1% of the total, .

Overall AEGL generated a positive investment return of 0.2% in 2015,

Financial Position
Capital
AEGL maintains an efficient capital structure consistent with the company’s risk profile and regulatory and market requirements.

The company assesses its own capital needs on a detailed risk measurement basis, and then secks to maintain financial strength and
capital adequacy to support business objectives and meet the requirements of policyholders, regulators and rating agencies whilst
retaining financial flexibility by ensuring liquidity.

AEGL assesses its risk profile and capital requirements using an internal model which has been developed to meet Solvency II
requirements as well as the Individual Capital Assessment (“ICA”) principles that continued te remain in force throughout 2015. The
internal model is supported by a robust validation and governance framework which ensures its ongoing appropriateness and is
refined to reflect AEGL’s experience, changes in the risk profile and advances in modelling methodologies.

In line with regulatory requirements that were in force to the end of 2015, AEGL managed its capital levels in 2015 in the context of
the minimum requirement, the Capital Resources Requirement, the Enhanced Capital Requirement, which computes a capital level
using an allowance for industry risk factors related to premiums, reserves and assets, and its Individual Capital Guidance (*[CG").
The latest ICG was issued by the Prudential Regulation Authority (“PRA™) following an ICA submission in 2013, With shareholders’
funds of £1,078.8 million at year end 2015, the company continues to be appropriately capitalised against each of these measures.

Solvency 11
Solvency II regulation came into force on 1 January 2016.

ACE recognises the impact of Solvency II, not just to its EU-based operations, but also to the wider group. The ACE Solvency 11
programme was initiated by ACE Limited’s Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM") Board and AEGL's Solvency Tl project has
received extensive support from the wider group. At the outset, ACE took the strategic decision to build a Global Capital Model
(“GCM™) that would provide a consistent and comprehensive tool to measure risk and capital requirements across the ACE Group.
This atlows ACE to connect the measurement of risk and capital at a legal entity level and across business units that span and
interconnect legal entities. The GCM was used in determining AEGL’s Solvency Capital Requirement from 2012 onwards,

Throughout 2015 AEGL continued 10 develop and embed necessary regulatory requirements in anticipation of the implementation of
Solvency T1. AEGL has transitioned its Solvency II project deliverables into its desired “Target Operating Model” which ensures that
the Pillar [ and Pillar [f components are embedded into the company’s “business as usual” operations.

From | January 2016 AEGL’s regulatory capital requirement will be set according to the Solvency [I standard formula. The Solvency
1[ own funds, under both the standard formula and GCM capital measures, are sufficient to meet this requirement.

AEGL operates effective project governance, provided through both the ACE European Group Solvency I1 Steering Committee and
uitimately, the ACE Solvency Programme Global Steering Committee. An Intenat Model Steering Committee that reports into the
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AEGL Executive Committee provides ongoing govemance to ensure the Solvency I aspects are appropriately and continuously
embedded into AEGL business as usual operations.

Ratings
AEGL holds financial strength ratings of “A++" from A.M. Best and “AA” from Standard & Poor’s (“S&P™).

Following the announcement of the Chubb acquisition on 1 July 2015, S&P affirmed the “AA” financial strength rating and
counterparty credit ratings of ACE Limited’s core operating insurance companies, including AEGL, and revised the outlook to
“Negative™ from “Stable” due to S&P’s belief that the combined company may face integration challenges and may hald capital
below the “AAA™ level over the intermediate term. However S&P believe the combined entities will ultimately create a stronger
franchise and new found status among the global multiline insurers, and that integration risks are partiatly mitigated by strong ERM
practices, world class leadership, and the adoption of the Chubb brand name.

On 2 July A.M. Best placed the firancial strength ratings of ACE Limited’s core subsidiaries, including AEGL “Under review with
negalive implications™. This rating action reflects A.M. Best’s view of the potential uncertainty regarding ACE’s ability to execute
on its plan given the complexity, size and scope of this acquisition. A.M. Best have stated that the under review status wili be
removed shortly after the transaction has closed and they have reviewed the final integration plan and financial position.

Governance

AEGL has a documented corporate governance framework, the purpose of which is to exercise oversight and control over the
management of the business.

The AEGL Board of Directors (“the Board™) is responsible for decisions in connection with a number of maters, including those of a
significant strategic, structural, capital, financial reporting, internal control, risk, policy or compliance nature. The Board meets
routinely six times a year and additionally on other occasions to discharge its responsibilities in respect of these and other matters. In
2015 the Board met ten times, a number of which meetings were dedicated solely to Solvency Il requirements.

The Board comprises six independent non-executive directors and seven executive directors. One new executive director and one
non-executive director joined the Board in 2015. Membership of the Board is kept under review to ensure that the composition and
available expertise remains relevant to the current needs of the company. AEGL values the contribution of its non-executive directoes
in providing contrasting insights, experience and challenge in the Board’s discussions. Details of director appointments and
resignations can be found in the Directors’ Report on page 15.

Key non-routine Board activity during the year included, i) reviews of policies affecting the company’s internal model for capital-
setting, ii) consideration of the degree to which management’s planning processes take account of customer experience, iii) review of
the company's whistieblowing processes and policy, iii) consideration of the methods of validation of the company’s regulatory
capital figure employed by management, and iv} adoption of revised arrangements in compliance with the new regulatory
requirements under the Senior Insurance Manager Regime.

The Board received regular reports on the status of business results, business and function plans, resourcing, developments in the risk
and regulatory environments, on consumer conduct, regulatory compliance, actuarial and solv¢ncy matters, One meeting was set
aside to consider high-level business strategy and to review Board and management performance over the previous year.

The Board has delegated a number of matters to committees. Each of the following committees has formal terms of reference and
matters reserved to it. Each, with the exception of the Executive Committee and the Product Oversight Committee, includes non-
executive directors in its membership, and each reports to the Board regularly in respect of its remit. The terms of reference of each
continuing Board committee were unchanged in 2015.

The Audit Committee, which comprises exclusively non-executive directors, considers and makes recommendations to0 the Board on
areas including validation of solvency calculations, intemnal controls, financial reporting, whistleblowing, actuarial matters and the
external audit. It receives reports from the Risk Committee, the compliance and finance functions and Internal Audit on a quarterly
basis,

In relation to the external audit process, the Commiittee monitors the nature and scope of work in the audit of the statutory financial
statements and other external reperting requirements.

In the case of the internal audit function, the Compmittee's role involves agreeing and monitering, in conjunction with the Group audit
function, the nature and scope of work to be carried out by the internal audit teamn and the availability of sufficient resources. The
Audit Committee kept close review Internal Audit resources during 2015, to ensure that they remained adequate to carry out the
annual audit plan for the year, particularly in the light of the demands placed on the audit team by Intemal Model validation,

The Commitiee’s role is aimed at providing assurance 1o the Board and Group management that the internal control systems, agreed
by executive management as being appropriate for the prudent management of the business, are operating as designed. At all times
the Audit Commitiee is expected to challenge any aspect of these processes which it considers weak or generally poor practice.

During 2015 the Committee received extemally-produced reports on controls over financial crime and customer conduct risk, a
presentation on the taxation function and a review of the whistleblowing framewaork.

The Board has delegated responsibility for the oversight and implementation of its risk management framework to the Risk
Committee. The Committee oversees and advises the Board on risk exposures, future risk strategy, the design and implementation of
the framework into the business and on solvency and capital matters. It also ensures that business risks and controls are recorded and
monitored. It recejves regular reports on the Company’s *Own Risk and Solvency Assessment” metrics, required by Solvency II,
which helps to provide an independent overview of management’s assessment of risk and a check against agreed risk appetites.
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During the year the Committee continued to consider the policies and methodology used in connection with the company’s Internal
Capital Model and assessment of risk. It received a number of reports on technology-related risks and on the risks arising from
outsourcing processes to external agencies.

Towards the end of 2015 the Board constituted a Product Oversight Committee as a Board Committee, to provide organisation-
wide consisteat oversight in respect of conduct towards customer. Over a transitional period the Committee will assume
respansibility for the customer conduct oversight of both consumer and commercial lines of business, whereas previcusly a Product
Govermnance & Conduct Committee had reported via the Executive Committee in respect of consumer lines business only. The
Committees members include senior management representatives, and the committee will be attended by a Non-Executive Director.
The Committee met for the first time in January 2016 and is scheduled to meet monthiy thereafier.

The remit of the Nominations Committee is to advise and recommend in connection with appointments to and the structure of the
Board, including diversity and independence of composition, Board evaluation, succession planning for the non-executive directors
and leadership needs.

The Executive Committee comprises ali executive directors of AEGL and other members of the senior management team. The
primary role of the Committee is to oversee the day-to-day management of business operations and performance, and to assist the
President in implementing and overseeing operational strategies and decisions determined by the Board. The Executive Committee is
also responsible for the oversight of support function activities, key steering groups and sub-committees including investment,
internal model steering, credit risk, broker review, reserving and project reporting. It meets monthly to oversee and discuss current
issues. A number of specialist sub-committees, such as those for broker credit control and reserving, report to the Executive
Committee to ensure that various aspects of the business are reviewed by a wide senior management group.

Risk & Control Framework

The ACE Group is a global underwriting franchise whose risk management obligation to stakeholders is simple: ensure sufficient
financial strength over the long term in order to pay policyholder claims while simultaneously building and sustaining sharcholder
value.

The ERM strategy helps achieve the geal of building shareholder value by systematically identifying, and then monitoring and
managing, the various risks to the achievement of corporate business objectives and thereby minimising potential disruptions that
could otherwise diminish shareholder value or balance sheet strength.

AEGL has adopted the ACE Group Enterprise Risk Management Framework (“RMF™), which describes the role of ERM within
AEGL and how it helps the company achieve its business objectives, meet its corporate obligations and maintain the reputation of
ACE’s business. ACE’s documented RMF is principles-based and sets out the organisational framework for risk taking, monitoring
and governance.

The RMF adopts a “three lines of defence” model, comprising day-to-day risk management and controls, risk management oversight,
and independent assurance.

The RMF identifies the key risks to which each business sector, and the company as a whole, is exposed, and their resultant impact
on ¢conomic and regulatory capital. This framework employs Seolvency Il and Individual Capital Adequacy Standards (“1CAS™)
principles to assess risk and manage capital requirements to ensure the capital required to support AEGL’s business objectives and to
meet the requirements of policyholders, regulators and rating agencies is in place.

The AEGL Board is ultimately responsible for ensuring that the company operates within an established framework of effective
systems of intermal control, including the approval of the overall risk tolerance for the organisation’ and compliance with policies,
procedures, internal controls and regulatory requirements.

The Board’s oversight of the RMF is effected through the various committees and functions with particular purposes and direction
around the monitoring of risk tolerances and oversight of internal controls and compliance procedures. AEGL’s risk management
function has a strong mandate from the Board to promote the RMF and embed it throughout the company.

The company’s RMF was re-approved by the Board in 2015 together with a review of individual risk policies and risk appetite
statements which set out defined risk-tolerance constraints for the execution of the business strategy. All key risk policies and
procedures are subject to Board approval and ongoing review by executive management, the Risk Committee and the intemal audit
function. .

Principal Risks

The RMF classifies individual risk sources into four major categories: insurance, financial, operational and strategic. Insurance is
ACE’s primary risk category; the three other risk categories present an exposure primarily from that assumption of insurance risk.

Other risks, including group risk and emerging risk are also considered.
Insurance Risk

The principal risks from AEGL’s insurance and reinsurance business arise from its underwriting activities, both prospective and
retrospective. Key risks include unexpected losses arising from inaccurate pricing, fluctuations in the timing, frequency and severity
of claims compared to expectations, inadequate reinsurance protection and inadequate reserving.

Underwriting risks and line sizes are continuaily monitored through the established peer review process and automated exception
reporting. Each underwriter is given an authority based on technical expertise and experience to bind risks that fall within specified
classes of insurance and specified maximum limits. Formal price monitoring procedures have been in place since early 2002 and
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form part of the standard monthly management statistics. These contribute to the quarterly actuarial review whereby the loss outcome
of the underwriting activity is continually re-assessed and considered by the Reserve Sub-Committee.

With such a large and diverse book, it is vital that the company’s aggregate exposures are continually monitored and adjustments
made te the underwriting profile as appropriate. The company operates a dedicated catastrophe management function independent of
underwriting management, whose responsibility is to model aggrepate risk and assist with the pricing of this risk, providing a key
contrel to the underwriting process.

Reinsurance is used to help mitigate some of the above insurance risk. However, the possibility of reinsurance risk itself arises when
reinsurance purchasing proves inadequate in amount, fails to protect the underlying coverage or falls short when the reinsurer fails to

pay.
Financial Risk

Financial risk includes a wide range of risks associated with activities such as investments, credit, liquidity and the impact of foreign
exchange fluctuations:

s Investment risk includes the impact of market volatility on asset values attributable to such factors as interest rate
movements and / or price changes.

s Credit risk arises from the possibility that the financial position of our counterparties deteriorates, and financial loss in the
event of creditor default.

*  Liquidity risk refers to the possibility that cash or equivalents, coupled with operating cash flows, will be insufficient to
provide for claims payments te policyholders and other needs such as interest payments.

e  Foreign exchange risk occurs when assets and liabilities are denominated in different currencies and materialises when
asset holdings are decreased or liabilities increased by exchange rate movements.

Other financial nsk sources manifest themselves through an impact on asset values. Among these are investment risk due to
unanticipated interest rate movements having impacts on asset values, and asset-liability management risk when asset values are
insufficient or unavailable to pay liabilities when due.

AEGL has an investment strategy which is aligned with ils underwriting liabilities. There are also defined investment guidelines in
respect of asset allocation, duration, liquidity and credit risk exposure with quality control around investment portfolic management
to ensure compliance with the set guidelines.

These risks are discussed in more detail in Note 2 to the financial statements.
Operational Risk

Operational risk is the possibility of loss resulting from inadequate or failed intemal processes, people or systems, or from external
events other than those falling within strategic risk as defined below. Significant operational risk sources include claims processing,
IT secunty, outsourcing and vendor management, business continuity, fraud, and regulatory compliance (including conduct risk).

AEGL seeks to ensure that it is not exposed to operational risk in excess of the nisk appetite with mitigating strategies including
business continuity plans that have appropriate controls relating to key operational procedures and processes.

Strategic Risk

Strategic risk refers to the outcome from sub-optimal decisions that may be made or not made in respect of strategic planning,
execution of strategy or responsiveness to changes in industry or competitive landscapes.

The AEGL Board is responsible for the management of strategic risks arising from the execution of both the strategic and annual
plans. The Board also receives reports produced to monitor and track business performance against the approved plan.

A key strategic risk will be the integration of AEGL with Chubb legal entities following the acquisition. The risks associated with
the integration will be measured and monitored on an on-going basis using the AEG RMF.

Other Risks

Group risks: This is the potential impact on the company of risks anising in other parts of the ACE Group. This could include direct
or indirect financial loss and operational, reputational or regulatory issues. As a strategically important member of the ACE Group,
the company uses group resources in a number of areas, including IT and asset management, as well as reinsurance and capital
support. Group risk is assessed, monitored and reported as part of the company’s risk management processes. Additionally, intra-
group amangements are govermned in an appropriate arms-length manner. The intra-group arrangements involve formal contracts,
equitable and transparent transfer pricing, and full respect for the integrity thereof, as well as all laws and regulations facing the legal
entities in question. 7 .

Emerging risks: An integral part of the risk management framework is the identification and assessment of emerging risks. AEGL
has defined emerging risks as any events, situations or trends that may arise within its internal and external operating environment
that could significantly impact the achievement of its corporate objectives in either the short or long term. There is an internal system
for the identification, assessment and monitoring of such risks with reports issued to senior management including analyses which
are often iterative in nature and conclude with recommended action plans that can be implemented to minimise or otherwise manage
the emerging risk.
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Compliance

Compliance with regulation, legal and ethical standards is a high priority for the ACE Group and AEGL, and the compliance function
has an important oversight role in this regard. Annual affirmation of the ACE Group Code of Conduct is required of all employees
and directors.

As a material subsidiary of ACE Limited, a US listed company, the financial control environment in which the US GAAP financial
statements are derived is subject to the requirements of US Sarbanes-Oxley legislation. AEGL has formalised documentation and
tested contrals to enable ACE Limited to fulfit the requirements of the legislation.

AEGL is also committed to fulfilling its other compliance-related duties, including its observance of customer-focused policies, in
line with regulatory principles, and it uses various metrics to assess its performance.

The company employs a skilled and specialist workforce to manage its regulatory and compliance responsibilities and aims to
operate to a high standard. AEGL recognises and values its relationships with regulators in ¢ach of its jurisdictions and engages in
open dialogue and communication to address and resolve any issues.

Employees

The ACE Group is dedicated to providing a safe and ethical working environment for its employees and is fundamentally committed
to the creation of an inclusive, respectful and equitable workplace. Through its policies and practices for recruitment, development,
retention and promotion, AEGL seeks a diverse workforce that is effective in its local markets and communities, and takes full
advantage of a wide range of experiences and backgrounds.

ACE is an equal oppontunities employer and it is company policy to promote equality of opportunity and to avoid unlawful
discrimination in employment. The company seeks to create a workplace where all employees, agency staff and contractors are
treated appropriately, equitably and with dignity and respect.

Applications for employment by disabled persons arc always fully considered, bearing in mind the aptitudes and abilities of the
applicant concermed. In the event of members of staff becoming disabled, every effort is made to ensure that their employment with
the company continues and that appropriate adjustments are made. It is the policy of the ACE Group that the training, career
development and promotion of disabled persens should, as far as possible, be identical with that of other employees.

ACE is an organisation dedicated to providing superior client, shareholder and employee value, and seeks to foster an environment of
professional excellence that enables employees to be creative, agile, innovative and ethical in meeting customers’ nesds. AEGL
actively supports the personal and professional development of all its employees and operates talent and leadership development
programmes to help staff realise their full career potential.

Communication with employees is primarily effected through the corporate intranet and regular bricfings and presentations by ACE
Limited’s Chief Executive Officer and Jocal senior management.

AEGL supports a wide range of activities that benefit the community through the ACE International Foundation and the ACE
Eurcpean Charity Committee, predominantly in the areas of education, poverty, health and the environment. Employees also
participate in a number of local voluntary community schemes. In October, employees also participated in the ACE Group's “Global
Day of Service”, a tradition that began in 2005 and reflects ACE’s firm belief that positive contributions to communities return long-
lasting benefits to society and the company’s employees and business. AEGL employees across the UK and Europe participated in
volunteer projects focused on education, poverty, health and the environment in the communities where they live and work. AEGL
also actively supports employees in personat fundraising efforts through an employee charity-matching scheme.

Details of the number of employees and related costs can be found in note 8 to the financial statements.

Approved by the Board of Directors

M K Hammeond p
Chief Financial Officer M”

31 March 2016
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The directors are picased to submit their report and the audited financial statements for the year to 31 December 2015,
Future Developments

Likely future developments in the business of the company are discussed in the Strategic Report.

Results apd Dividends

The company made a profit on ordinary activities before tax for the year to 31 December 2015 of £56.9 million (20]4 £246.9
million).

Shareholders’ funds at the 31 December 2015 totalted £1,078.8 million (2014: £1,002.0 million).
The directors do net propose a dividend (2014: £50.0 million).
Employees

Staff based in the company’s branches oulside the UK are directly employed by the company. Staff that support the UK branch
operatiens of the company are employed by an affiliate, ACE INA Services U.K. Limited. Their costs are inchaded in management
recharges from this service company.

Directors

The following have been directors from 1 January 2015 to the date of this report unless otherwise indicated:
Executive directors:

P J Drinan (resigned 14 December 2015)

M K Hammond

D Jaksic (appointed 7 March 2016)

A J Kendrick

] Moghrabi

R P Murray

D P Robinson

AM W Shaw

K L H Underhill (resigned 21 January 2016)

Non-executive directors:

J A Napier

M Bailey (appointed 10 December 2015)

L C Powers-Freeling (resigned 7 July 2015)

A R Prindl

C E Riley

T € Wade

M J Yardley

Qualifying third-party indemnity provisions (as defined by section 234 of the Companies Act 2006) are put in place for the benefit of

the directors and, at the date of this report, are in in force in relation to certain losses and liabilities whlch they may incur (or have
incurred) in connection with their duties, powers or office.

The company also has the benefit of a group insurance company management activities policy effected by Chubb Limited. No charge
was made to the company during the year for this policy.

Financial Risk Management

Information on the use of financial instruments by the company and its management of financial risk is disclosed in note 2 to the
financial statements. [n particular the company’s exposures to interest rale risk, equity price risk, currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk are separately disclosed in that note. The company’s exposure to cash flow risk is addressed under the headings of
“Credit risk™ and “Liquidity risk”.
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Branches Qutside the UK
In addition, to the UK headquarters, the company has a further 19 branches across Europe.

Statement as to Disclosure of Information to Auditors

Each of the persons who is a director at the date of this report confirms that:

1. so far as he or she is aware, there is no information relevant to the audit of the company’s financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015 of which the auditors are unaware, and

2. the director has taken all steps that he or she ought to have taken in his duty as a director in order to make himself or herself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditors are aware of that information.

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, Directors’ Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors have prepared
the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicabte law). Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In
preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements;

- prepare the financial statements on the going concemn basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company will
continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure that
the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsiblé for safeguarding the assets of the company
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularitics.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Auditors

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, will continue to hold office in accordance with Section 487 of the Companies Act
2006.

By Order of the Board

M L Mellor

for and on behalf of

ACE London Services Limited
Secretary, 31 March 2016

{00 Leadenhall Street

London
£C3A 1BP
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Report on the financial statements

Qur opinion

In our opinion, ACE European Group Limited’s financizl statements (the “financial statements”™):

. give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2015 and of its profit for the year then
ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

What we have audited
The financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Financial Statements (the “Annual Report™), comprise:

. the Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2015;

. the Profit and Loss account for the year then ended;

. the Statement of Comprehensive [ncome for the year then ended;

- the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended; and

. the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statements is United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, comprising FRS 102 *“The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland™, and applicable
law (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), having regard to the statutory requirement for insurance companies
to maintain equalisation provisions. The nature of equalisation provisions, the amounts set aside at 31 December 2015, and the effect
of the movement in those provisions during the year on shareholders’ funds, the balance on the general business technical account
and profit before tax, are disclosed in note 21.

In applying the financial reporting framework, the directors have made a number of subjective judgements, for example in respect of
significant accounting estimates. In making such estimates, they have made assumptions and considered future events.

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors® Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial staterments.

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of accounting records and information and explanations received
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not
visited by us; or
. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Directors’ remuneration
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration
specified by law are not made. We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Respoansibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Our responsibilities and those of the directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors” Responsibilities set out on page 16, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.
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Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and Intemational
Standards on Auditing (UK and lreland)} (“ISAs (UK & Ireland)™). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accepl or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where
expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

What an audit of financial statements involves

We conducted our audit in accordance with 1SAs (UK & Ireland). An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of:

. whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed;

. the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors; and

. the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We primarily focus our work in these areas by assessing the directors® judgements against available evidence, forming our own
judgements, and evaluating the disclosures in the financial statements,

We test and examine information, using sampling and other auditing techniques, to the extent we consider necessary to provide a
reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions. We obtain audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of controls, substantive
procedures or a combination of both. .

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report and Financial Statements to identify
material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materiatly incorrect
based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of
any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

,\LJL ‘\)J\Ihs

Nick Wilks (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

31 March 2016
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2015 2014
Note £7000 £7000

Technical account — general business
Earned preminms, net of reinsurance:
Gross premiums written — continuing operations 3 2,202,229 2,322,512

— discontinued operations 3 (1,740) 231
Gross premiums written 3 2,200,489 2,322,743
Qutward reinsurance p remiums (1,047,747) (1,219,065)
Net premiums written 1,552,742 1,103,678
Change in the gross provision for unearned premiums (36,721} (55,007)
Change in the provision tor unearned premiums — reinsurers’ share (5,406) 19,709
Eamed premiums, net of reinsurance 1,110,615 1,068,320
Claims incurred, net of reinsurance:
Claims paid:
Gross amount 3 (1,186,461) (1,085,021)
Reinsurers’ share 614,621 542,098
Net paid claims (571,840) (542,923)
Change in the provision for claims outstanding
Gross amount 3 16,294 (106,118)
Reinsurers” share 43,028 117,491
Change in the net provision for claims cutstanding 59,322 11,373
Claims incurred, net of reinsurance ] (512,518) (531,550}
Net operating expenses 5 (510,260) (484,310)
Change in the equalisation provision 21 (6,260) (4,748)

Balance on the techaical account for general business 81,877 47,712
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2015 2014
Note £000 £000
Non-technical account
Balance on the technical account for general business 81,577 47,712
Investment income 9 95,555 97,563
Unrealised gains on investments 9 10,976 103,451
Investment expenses and charpes 9 (16,450) {23,646)
Unrealised losses on investments 9 (83,705) (34,521)
Foreign exchange differences {30,509) 59,811
Other expenses {538) {3,475)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 56,906 ' 246,895
Coniinuing operations 60,251 247,815
Disconsinned operations (3,345) {920)
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities 10 (24,133} (63,489)
Profit for the financial year 32,773 183,405

There is no difference between the profit on ordinary activities before taxation and the profit for the financial year for the current or
prior year and their historical cost equivalents.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 December 2015

Prolit for the financial year 32,773 183,406
Other comprehensive income:

Currency translation differences 42,411 {56,732)
Actuarial gain / (loss) recognised in relation to pension schemes 2,192 (6,890)
Movement on deferred taxation relating to pension liability (584) 213

Total comprehensive income for the year 76,792 120,697
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Assets

Investmeats
Other financial investments
Financial derivative instruments

Deposits with ceding undertakings

Reinsurers’ share of technical provisions

Provision for uncamed premiums

Provision for claims outstanding

Debtors — amounts falling due within one year

Debtors arising out of direct insurance operations:

amounts owed by policyholders

amounts owed by intermediaries

Debtors anising out of reinsurance operations

Other debtors

Other assets
Tangible assets
Cash at bank and in hand

Prepayments and accrued income
Accrued interest and rent
Deferred acquisition costs

Other prepayments and accrued income

Total assets

Note

12

8]

PAGE 21

2015 2014
£2000 £:000
2,649,456 2,722,617

1,233 1,963
- 7
2,650,689 2,724,587

344,592 361,792
2,104,517 2,068,893
2,449,109 2,430,685

30414 29,515
399,933 398,172
226,762 212,440
104,093 99,456
761,202 739,583

4,089 3,994

63,274 75,542

67,363 79,536

33,157 32,869
129,213 151,986

602 642
162,972 185,497
6,091,335 6,159,888
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2015 2014
Note £°000 £7000
Liabilities
Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital 17 544,741 544,741
Profit and loss account 508,369 431,577
M erger reserve 25,653 25,653
Total shareholders’ funds 1,078,763 1,001,971
Technical provisions
Provision for unearned premiums 19 801,868 799,518
Provision for claims outstanding 19 3,656,716 3,713,917
Equalisation provision 21 105,102 08,842
4,563,686 4,612,277
Deposits received from reinsurers 6,263 6,442
Creditors — amounts falling due within one year
Creditors arising out of direct insurance operations 15,095 25,063
Creditors arising out of reinsurance operations 187,179 200,819
Bank overdraft 2 74,560 69,179
Other creditors including taxation and social security 20 94,583 128,150
371,357 423,211
Other financial liabilities 12 495 4,566
Accruals and deferred income
Deferred acquisition costs relating to reinsurance 18 31,792 66,954
Qther accruals and deferred income 29,415 33,275
61,207 100,229
Total liabilities excluding pension liability 6,081,771 6,148,696
Pension liability t6 9,564 11,192
Total liabilities _ 6,091,335 6,159,888

The notes on pages 24 to 49 are an integrat part of these financial statements,

The financial statements on pages 19 to 49 were approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2016 and were signed on its
behalf by:

M K Hammond M
Chief Financial Officer

31 March 2016
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At 31 December 2013 as previously stated

Changes on transition to FRS 102 /103

At 1 January 2014 as restated

Profit for the financial year

Other comprehensive income:

Currency translation differences

Actuarial loss recognised in relation to pension schemes
Movement on deferred taxation relating to pension liability
Dividends paid on equity shares

As 31 December 2014

Profit for the financial year

Otker comprehensive income:

Currency translation differences

Actuarial gain recognised in relation to pension schemes

Movement on deferred taxation relating to pension liability

As 31 December 2018

PAGE 23

Called-up Merger  Profit and
. Total
share capital reserve  loss account
Note £000 £'000 £000 £:000
544,741 25,633 357,854 928,248
27 - - 3,026 3,026
544,741 25,653 360,880 931,274
183,406 183,406
- - (56.732) (56,732)
- . (6,890) (6,890)
- - 913 913
1 - - (50,000) (50,000)
544,741 25,653 431,577 1,001,971
32,773 32,773
. - 42,411 42,411
- - 2.192 2,192
- - (584) (584)
544,741 25,653 508,369 1,078,763

On 1 January 2005 the company issved 376,567,035 £1 shares in consideration for the transfer of the assets, liabilities and .
obligations of ACE Insurance S.A -N.V. The transfer was treated as a group reconstruction under FRS 6 “Acquisitions and
Mergers™ and consequently merger accounting principles were applied. The merger reserve was the difference between the net

asset value of the transferred business and the nominal value of the shares issued by the company as consideration.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation

ACE European Group Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in the United Kingdom. The financial statements have
been prepared under the provision of The Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008
(“S12008/410”) relating to insurance companies’ individual financial statements and applicable accounting standards in the United
Kingdom, including Financial Reporting Standard FRS 102, “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom
and the Republic of Ireland” (“FRS 102"} and Financial Reporting Standard FRS 103, “Insurance Contracts” (“FRS 103").

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated. The company has adopted FRS 102 and FRS 103 in these
financial statements. The prior financial year financial statements were restated for material adjustments on adoption of FRS 102 and
103 in the curent financial year. For more information see Note 27. The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis,
under the historical cost convention medified to include the revaluation of certain financial assets and liabilities. The company is a
wholly owned subsidiary within the Chubb Limited group and is included within the consolidated financial statements of Chubb
Limited, which are publicly available. Consequently, the company has taken advantage of the exemption from preparing a cash flow
statement and disclosing details of share-based payments under the terms of FRS 102,

Continuing and discontinued operations

Discontinued operations include business underwritten by ACE European Group Limited (“AEGL”) prior {o its reauthorisation by
the Financial Services Autherity (“FSA™) in 2003. This business included UK marine and aviation business underwritten until 1994,
accident and health business underwritten until 1995 and United States surplus lines business underwritten until 1998. Following the
group reconstruction in 2005 (see the Statement of changes in equity); discontinued operations now also include marine and aviation
business underwritten by ACE Insurance 5.A.-N.V. in the London market prior to 1999. Al other operations are classified as
continuing.

Premiums written

Premiums written, which are stated gross of brokerage but exclusive of premium taxes, relate to business incepted during the year,
together with adjustments made in the year (0 premiums written in prior accounting periods. Estimates are made of pipeline
premiums, representing amounts due but not yet received or notified to the company by intermediaries.

Unearned premiums

Uneamed premiums represent the proportion of premiums written in the year that relate to unexpired terms of policies in force at the
balance sheet date, calculated on the basis of established risk profiles or time apportionment as appropriate.

Acquisition costs

Acquisition costs comprise brokerage, commissions and other related expenses, and are deferred over the period in which the related
premiums are earned.

Claims incurred

Claims incurred comprise the estimated cost of all claims occurring during the year, whether reported or not, inciuding related direct
and indirect expenses and adjustments to claims outstanding from previous years. Where applicable, deductions are made for
reinsurance, salvage and other recoveries.

Provision for claims outstanding and related reinsurance recoveries

The provision for claims outstanding is assessed on an individual case basis and is based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims
notified but not settied by the balance sheet date, together with the provision for related claims handling costs. The provision also
inctudes the estimated cost of claims incurred but not reported (“IBNR™) at the batance sheet date based on statistical methods.

These methods generally invelve projecting from past experience of the development of claims over time to form a view of the likely
ultimate claims to be experienced for more recent underwriting, having regard to variations in the business accepted and the
underlying terms and conditions. For the most recent years, where & high degree of volatility arises from projections, estimates may
be based in part on output from rating and other models of the business accepted and assessments of underwriting conditions. The
amount of salvage and subrogation recoveries is separately identified and, where material, reported as an asset.

The reinsurers’ share of the provision for claims outstanding is based on the amounts of outstanding claims and projections for
IBNR, net of estimated irrecoverable amounts, having regard to the reinsurance programme in place for the class of business, the
claims experience for the year and the current secunty rating of the reinsurance companies involved. A number of statistical
methods are used to assist in making these estimates.
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1.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

The two most critical assumptions as regards the provision for claims outstanding are that the past is a reasonable predictor of the
likely level of claims development, and that the rating and other models used for current business are fair reflections of the likely
levei of ultimate claims to be incurred.

Provisions for claims outstanding and related reinsurance recoveries — continued

The directors consider that the provision for gross claims cutstanding and related reinsurance recoveries is fairly stated on the basis
of the information currently available to them. However, the ultimate liability will vary as a result of subsequent information and
events and this may result in significant adjustments to the amounts provided. Adjustments to the amounts of claims pravisions
established in prior years are reflected in the financial statements for the period in which the adjustments are made. The methods
used, and the estimates made, are reviewed regularly.

When calculating the provision for claims cutstanding, the reported business segments are subject to specific issues, as set out below:
Fire and other damage to property; marine, aviation and transport; accident and heaith

These business segments are predominantly “short tail”; that is, there is not a significant delay between the occurtence of the claim
and the claim being reported to the company. The costs of claims notified to the company at the balance sheet date are estimated on a
case by case basis to reflect the individual circumstances of each claim. The ultimate expected cost of claims is projected from this
data by reference to statistics, which show how estimates of claims incurred in previous periods have developed over time to reflect
changes in the underlying estimates of the cost of notified claims and late notifications.

Third party liability (including marine and aviation lability)

Liability claims are longer tail than the classes of business described above and so a larger element of the provision for claims
outstanding relates to IBNR. Claims estimates for the company’s liability business are derived from a combination of loss ratio based
estimates and an estimate based upon actual claims experience using a predetermined formula whereby greater weight is given to
actual claims experience as time passes. The initial estimate of the loss ratio, based on the experience of previous years adjusted for
factors such as premium rate changes and claims inflation, and on the anticipated market experience, is an important assumption in
this estimation technique. In respect of liability claims, the assessment of claims inflation and anticipated market experience is
particularly sensitive to the level of court awards and to the development of legal precedent on matters of contract and tort. The
liability class of business is also subject to the emergence of new types of latent claims but no allowance is included for this as at the
balance sheet date.

Rein ance dccep I

This business segment ircludes both short tail and long tail business, and is subject to the issues laid out in the preceding two
sections above.

Asbestas, pollution and health claims (“APH")

The company has some exposure to APH from its discontinued operations. There may be a long delay between the occurrence and
notification of thes¢ types of claim. In estimating the cost of claims the company considers the type of risks written historically that
may give rise to exposure 1o these risks, notifications received from policyholders, the nature and extent of the cover provided, the
current legal environment, changes in the effectiveness of clean up technigues and industry benchmarks of the typical cost of claims
of this kind and of total expected insured lesses. The company is protected by way of a stop loss agreement with a fellow group
undertaking from any adverse development arising from such exposures in its marine and aviation account for 1991 and prior years.

Unexpired risks provision

A provision for unexpired risks is made where claims and related expenses arising afier the end of the financial period in respect of
coniracts concluded before that date, are expected to exceed the unearned premiums and premiums receivable under these contracts,
after the deduction of any acquisition costs deferred. The provision for unexpired risks is calculated by reference to classes of
business which are managed together, after taking into account relevant investment return.

Equalisation provision

Amounts are set aside as equalisation provisions in accordance with the Prudential Regulation Authority’s (“PRA”) Handbook for
the purpose of mitigating exceptionally high loss ratios in future years. The amounts provided are not liabilities because they are in
addition to the provisions required to meet the anticipated ultimate cost of settlement of outstanding claims at the balance sheet date.
Notwithstanding this, they are required by Schedule 3 to S12008/410 to be included within technical provisions.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised when they are approved by the Board of Directors.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Financial Assets and Liabilities

The company recognises a financial asset or a financial liability on its balance sheet when it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the iastrument. On initial recognition the company determines the category of financial instrument and values it
accordingly. The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments are acquired.

Investments - fair value through profit and loss

A financial asset is classified into this category at inception if they are acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short
term, if they form part of a portfolio of financial asscts in which there is evidence of short-term profit-taking, or if so designated to
minimise any measurement or recognition inconsistency with the associated liabilities.

Financial assets designated as fair value through profit and loss are initially recognised at fair value with any transaction costs being
expensed through the profit and loss account. For quoted investments where there is an active market, the fair value is their quoted
bid price at the balance sheet date. For quoted investments where there is no active market, the fair value is determined by reference
to prices for similar assets in active markets.

Realised gains and losses and unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are included in the profit and loss account in the period in which they arise.

Cash at bank and in hand and bank overdrafis

Cash at bank and in hand is cash in hand and deposits repayable on demand. Deposits are repayable on demand if they can be
withdrawn at any time without notice and without penalty or if a maturity or period of notice of not more than 24 hours or one
working day has been agreed. Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand.

Insurance and other receivables

Insurance and other receivables are recognised at fair value less any provision for impairment. Any impairment of a receivable will
be recogmised if there is evidence that the company will not be able to collect the amounts receivable according to the original terms
of the receivable.

Derivative financial instruments
The company has chosen to apply the disclosure requirements of FRS 102 in respect of financial instruments,

Derivative financial instruments are measured on initial recognition, and subsequently, a1 fair value. The gain or loss on
remeasurement to fair value is recopnised immediately in the profit and loss account. Fair values are obtained from quoted market
prices in active markets, including recent market transactions, and valuation techniques as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as
assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

The fair value of interest rate swaps is the estimated amount that the company would receive or pay to terminate the swap at the
balance sheet date, taking into account current interest rates and the current creditworthiness of the swap counterparties. The fair
value of forward exchange contracts is their quoted market price at the balance sheet date.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet only when there is a legally enforceable
right to offsct the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the Lability
simultaneously.

Purchases and sales of securities and currencies are recognised on trade date — the date on which the company commits to purchase
or sell the asset.
Stock lending

The company is party to a securitics lending agreement under which securities are lent to third parties on a short-term basis with
collateral provided in return. The securities lent are not derecognised; rather they continue to be recognised within the appropriate
investment classification.

Where the company is provided with collateral in the form of cash, it may hold the cash or reinvest it in other financial investments.
The company recognises the cash or investments and the related obligation to retum such collateral in the company’s balance sheet.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Tnvestment return

Investment return comprises all investment income, realised investment gains and losses and movements in unrealised gains and
losses, net of investment cxpenses, charges and inferest. FRS 102 requires that, for insurance entities, both realised and unrealised
investment gains and losses be included as part of investment return in the profit and loss account. Dividends are recorded on the
date on which the shares are quoted ex-dividend. Interest and expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis.

Realised gains and losses on investments carried at fair value are calculated as the difference between net sale proceeds and purchase
price. Movements in unrealised gains and losses on investments represent the difference between the valuation at the balance sheet
date and their purchase price or, if they have previously been revalued, their valuation at the last balance sheet date, together with the
reversal of unrealised gains and losses recognised in earlier accounting periods in respect of investment disposals it the current
period. :

Stock lending fees are recognised as earmned on a pro rata basis over the period of lending.
Tangible assets

Tangible assets are capitalised and depreciated by equal annual instalments over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Land and buildings Qver the shorter of the lease term or 50 years
Motor vehicles 4 years .

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining period of the lease
Fixtures and fittings 5 years

Computer, office equipment and software up to 5 years

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is recognised as a liability or asset if transactions have occurred at the balance sheet date that give rise to an
obligation to pay more tax in future, or a right to pay less tax in future. An asset is not recognised to the extent that the transfer of
economic benefits in future is uncertain. Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised are not discounted.

Operating leases

Rents payable under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account as incurred over the lease term.

Pension costs

The company operates a small number of funded defined benefit pension schemes in Europe with assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The pension asset or lability recognised in the balance shect is the value of the schemes’ assets less the present
value of the schemes’ liabilities.

The pension cost for the schemes is analysed between current service cost, past service cost and net expected return on pension
schemes. Current service cost is the actuarially calculated present value of the benefits earned by the active employees in each period.
Past service costs, relating to employee service in prior periods anising in the ¢urrent periogd as a result of the introduction of, or
improvement to, retirement benefits, are recognised in the profit and loss account on a straight-fine basis over the period in which
the increase in benefits vest.

Net expected return comprises the expected return on the pension scheme assets less interest on scheme liabilities.

The actuariat gains and losses which anise from valuations and from updating the latest actuarial valuations to refiect conditions at the
balance date are taken to the statement of comprehensive income for the period. The attributable deferred taxation is shown
separately in the statement of comprehensive income.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Foreign currencies

AEGL operates as a number of branches, each of which conducts business in a vaniety of transactional currencies. These branches
include both UK and overseas insurance operations and centralised treasury operations. Each of the branches is designated a
functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for, in functional currency, at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the
transactions. Gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions, from translating such transactions inte the functional
currency of the branch, and from the revaluation to year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities, are recognised in the
profit and loss account,

At each period end foreign currency monetary items are trans{ated using the closing rate. For this purpose all assets and liabilities
arising from insurance contracts (including uneamed premiums, deferred acquisition costs and unexpired risks provisions) are
monetary items. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction
and non-monetary items measured at fair value are measured using the exchange rate when fair value was determined.

Results of branches, recorded in their functional currency, are translated into sterling at average rates of exchange while assets and
liabitities are translated to sterling at year end exchange rates. Differences arising on translation are recorded in the statement of
comprehensive income.

2.  CAPITAL MANAGEMENT & FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Capital management

AEGL assesses its capital needs on a risk management basis and maintains an efficient capital structure consistent with the
company’s risk profile and business requirements, and to meet regulatory requirements. The company then seeks to maintain
financial strength and capital adequacy ta support business growth and meet the requirements of policyholders, rating agencies and
regulators, whilst retaining-financial flexibility by ensuring substantial [evels of liquidity. Once the capital needs have been met, it is
the policy of the company to distribute any suwrpius capital through dividends to its ultimate parent company.

From a prudential perspective, AEGL is regulated by the PRA and is subject to insurance selvency regulations which specify the
minimum amount and type of capital that must be held. In line with regulatory requirements that were in force to the end of 2015,
AEGL managed its capital levels in 2015 in the context of the minimum requirement, the Capital Resources Requirement, the
Enhanced Capital Requirement, which computes a capital level using an aflowance for industry risk factors related to premiums,
reserves and assets, and its Individual Capital Guidance (“[CG").

Solvency 11 regulation comes into force on [ Janvary 2016. From 1 January 2016, AEGL’s regulatory capital requirement will be set
according to the Solvency 11 standard formula. The company performs tests and controls to ensure continuous and full compliance
with the Solvency Il regulations.

The primary objectives of the company in managing capital can be summarised as follows:

e to satisfy the requirements of its policyhelders, regulators and rating agencies;

to match the profile of its assets and liabilities, taking account of the risks inherent in the business;
to manage exposures to key risks;

to maintain financial strength to support new business growth;

*  to retain financial flexibility by maintaining strong liquidity.

Insurance risk

Insurance risk arises from fluctuations in the frequency and/or severity of claims. The company mitigates this risk by maintaining
underwriting discipline throughout its operations. This policy is supported by each strategic business unit’s underwriting guidelines,
expertise and appropriate authority limits. These guidelines are updated regularly to reflect developments in the nature of the
insurance risks being underwritten., The company also uses a reinsurance programme to manage its insurance risk by providing cover
against certain large exposures.

Sepsitivity to insurance risk

As highlighted in Note 1, there is inherent uncertainty in the ultimate cost of claims for which the company uses a variety of different
actuarial techniques to estimate the provision for claims outstanding. If the net claims ratio for the year had been higher by 1%, then
the profit for the financial year would have been lower by £11.1 million (20£4: £10.7 million) and shareholders’ funds would have
been lower by £11.1million (2014: £10.7 million). [f the net claims ratio had been lower by 1%, then the profit for the financial year
would have been higher by £11.1 million (2014: £10.7 million) and shareholders’ funds would have been higher by £11.! million
(2014: £10.7 million). '
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2. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT & FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT — continued
Concentrations of insurance risk

As set out in Note 3, the company writes a diverse book of business across a number of underwriting classes. Approximately 30% of
the gross written premiums for 2015 (2014: 28%) related to fire and other damage to property and casualty line of insurance, with the
remainder split across a number of other classes.

Geographically, 55% (2014: 56%) of gross premiums written in 2015 relates to risks within continental Europe, with the remainder
being spread across the United Kingdom, Asia Pacific, the United States of America, Affica & Middle East and Latin America.

Financial risk management objectives

The company is exposed to a range of financial risks through its financial asscts and financial liabilities. The most important
components of this financial risk are market risk {including interest rate risk, equity price risk and currency risk), liquidity risk and
credit risk.

These financial risks principally arise from the investment activity of the business and consequent holdings in fixed income
investments, all of which are exposed 1o general and specific market movements. The underwriting activity of the business also
generates financial risk, particularly in the form of currency risk as well as liquidity and credit risk through its insurance and
reinsurance receivables and payables.

The notes below explain how financial risks are managed. The processes used to manape these risks are unchanged from previous
periods, and cover areas such as investment activity through stochastic modelling of the portfolio, within its internal capita! model
and consequent capital requirements.

Investment activity goveroance
The company operates an Investment Commitiee which functions under terms of reference determined by the Executive Committee

of the Board. The Committee is charged with establishing and effecting an appropriate investment policy for the company having
regard to the financial risk appetite of the company. In addition, the Committee has the responsibility for recommending the
appointment and removal of investment managers, for reviewing the managers’ performance and for reporting on all other material
aspects of the investment function.

The Investment Committee comprises senior Chubb management and is chaired by the Chief Executive Officer of ACE Asset
Management, the group’s investment specialists who provide advisory services to Chubb group companies including AEGL. The
Commitiee also includes the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of the company.

The investment management function is outsourced to specialist external managers,
Asset allocation policy

The Investment Committee has established a broad asset allocation policy which defines the limits for different asset types. The asset
allocation policy cites two major asset classes: investment grade fixed income securities and alternative assets. Alternative assets can
include equities, high-yield and emerging market instruments. The policy stipulates a target range of between 75% and [00% for
investment grade fixed income securities and a range of between 0% and 25% for altermative asset classes. The current allocation to
alternative assets sits at the mid of the target range, however, the position is regularly reviewed by the Investment Committee.

Investment guidelines

Investment management agreements have been established with the external investment managers. The agreements include specific
guidelines for each individual portfolio in order to limit risks arising from duration, equity price, currency, liquidity, credit and
counterparty exposures. The managers provide quarterly affirmation of compliance with these guidelines.

Interest rate risk

The company is exposed to interest rate risk primarily through its investments in fixed interest securities and, to the extent that claims
inflation is correlated to interest rates, its liabilities to policyholders. Interest rate risk arises in the fixed income investment portfolio
primarily through instrument duration. Accordingly, the investment guidetines include restrictions relating to the maximurn weighted
average duration of the portfolio. The restriction is stated by reference to the permissible duration variance compared to the
customised benchmark index by which the extemal investment managers” performance is assessed.

Sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk illustrates how changes in the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates at the reporting date. To illustrate the downside risk within the fixed interest
portfolio of £2,563 million at external managers as at 31 December 2015 (2014: £2,654 million), an increase of 10 basis points in
interest yields across all portfolios consecutively (principalty sterling, euro and US dollars) has been calculated. Such an increase
would decrease the market value of the investment portfolic and lead to a decrease in the total investment return of £118.7 million
and accordingly decrease total shareholders’ funds by £95.0 million.
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2, CAPITAL MANAGEMENT & FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
Equity price risk

The company is exposed to equity price risk as a result of its holdings in equity investments, classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss.

The risk in respect of equities is moderated through the asset allocation policy which limits the allocation to equities. The investment
guidelines restrict individual equity holdings relative to the size of the portfolio and the benchmark constituents.

All equity holdings of £33.4 million (2014: £30.7 million) are listed and represent 1% (2014: 1%) of the total investment portfolio. If
the value of all equity markets in which the company invests decreased by 10%, with all other variables held constant, the total
investment retum would decrease by £3.3 million and the total shareholders’ funds would deercase by £3.3 million.

Currency risk

The company is primarily exposed to currency risk in respect of assets and liabilities under policies of insurance denominated in
currencies other than sterling. The company maintains various currency balances generated through regular business activity but the
majority of the funds held are denominated in sterling, euros and US dollars. The company policy seeks to ensure that an
approximate currency match of assets and liabilities is maintained, with the bulk of surplus funds held in sterling, euros and US
doltars.

Any component of the sharcholders® funds denominated in currencies other than sterling gives rise to currency risk due to exchange
rate volatility relative to sterling.

The company is also exposed to currency risk in the investment portfolio as the investment guidelinés allow the managers to invest a
portion of the individual portfolios in securities not denominated in the designated core currency of the portfolio. However, the
investment management agreements stipulate that the majority of any exposure to nen-core currencies must be hedged, thus matching
the risk. These allocations to non-core currencies are included within the quarterly evaluation of the currency alignment reviewed by
the Investment Committee.

The accounting policy for foreign currencies is stated in note 1 to the financial statements. Profit and loss results pertaining to foreign
branches are translated to sterling using the average rates of exchange for the year. Balance sheet components (monetary assets and
liabilities) are translated to sterling using the rates of exchange at year end.

For the profit and loss account, the 2015 average eurofsteriing rate of €1.375/£1 is up on the prior period (2014: €1.236/£1) and the
US dollar/sterling rate of US$1.539/£1 is down on the prior period (2014: US$1.654/£1). Had sterling weakened by [0% against all
currencies (primarily the euro and US dollar) and all other variables remained constant, the profit before tax for the year would have
been £12.3 million less than the amount reported.

For the monetary components of the balance sheet, the year-end rates used to convert euro to sterling have increased by 7% to
€1.364/£1 and US dollar to sterling has decreased 5% to US$).489/£1 (2014: €1.274/£1 and US$1.56115/£1). Assuming sterling had
weakened by 10% against all currencies (primarily the euro and US dollar) and all other variables remained constant, the effect of
translating year end foreign branch net assets based on these parameters would have resulted in decreased shareholders’ funds of
£69.5 million, which would have appeared as a loss in the statement of comprehensive income,

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the company is unable to meet its obligations as they fal! due. To counter this risk, the company aims to
maintain funds in the form of cash or cash equivalents to meet known cash flows. In addition, the asset allocation policy and the

investment guidelines are structured in order to ensure that funds are predominantly held in investment grade fixed income securities,
the proceeds of which are readily realisable.

AEGL participates in a notional pooling programme with other Chubb group companies under a facility operated by Bank Mendes
Gans, a subsidiary of ING, which specialises in global liquidity management. The facility operates by the notional pooling of
designated balances of the Chubb group participants in order to provide additional liquidity. Chubb group participants may overdraw
individual account balances to fund immediate short termn needs against credit balances held elsewhere within the pool. On this basis,
AEGL maintained an overdraft of £74.5 million at year end (2014: £69.2 million) and credit balances of £63.3 million (2014: £75.6
million) as presented on the balance sheet.

The company also benefits from letter of credit facilities which can be utilised to meet certain funding needs and notional pooling
facilities with other Chubb group companies which serve to previde additional liquidity.

As indicated in the balance sheet, the company’s financial liabilitics are all payable within one year. Non-derivative financial
liabilities with contractual maturities are payable within normal terms of trade, which is on average 60 days. Non-derivative financial
liabilities with contractual maturities are limited to reinsurance premiums payable and expense accruals, Derivative financial
liabilities at the balance sheet date have remaining contractual maturities of £0.06 million within 1 month, £0.19 million between 1
and 3 months, Enil between 3 months and 1 year and £0.25 million after more than one year.
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2. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT & FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT — cantinued
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in fill when due. The company is exposed to credit risk
through its investment activity and its insurance operations.

Credit risk -~ investment

The company is exposed to investment credit and price risk as a result of its holings in fixed income and equity investments. The
risk in respect of fixed income investments is moderated by the application of detailed investment guidelines which limit the size of
holdings with individual issuers, restrict duration and dictate minimum credit quality, both for individual holdings and for the
aggrepate weighted portfelio.

The avel'i;ge credit quality of investment portfolios using Standard and Poor’s ratings remained high throughout the year and at year
end was “A”. This is comparable to the previous year (“AA™). AEGL had £33.4 million equity holdings at 2015 year end (2014:
£30.7 million).

The risk in respect of equities is moderated through the asset allocation policy which limits the allocation to equities. The investment
guidelines restrict individual equity holdings relative to the size of the portfolio and the benchmark constituents.

The investment guidelines seek to limit the credit risk of each of the portfolios through specifying eligible/ineligible investments;
setting maximum counterparty exposures and minimum weighted credit quality and individual issuer credit quality; and requiring
collateral and indemnity arrangements for stock lending transactions.

The company engages in a securities lending program from which it generates net investment income from the lending of certain of
its investments to other institutions for shon periods of time. The value of securities loaned is limited to 40% of the company's
aggregate portfolio. Collateral is provided against the market value of the loaned securities. The market value is monitered on a daily
basis with additional collateral obtained or refunded as the market value of the loaned securities changes.

The company maintains strict control limits on open derivative positions, by both amount and term. The amount subject to credit risk
at any one time is limited to the current fair value of derivative financial assets.

Credit risk — insurance operations
The company is exposed to credit risk as a result of its regular insurance and reinsurance activity. The areas of key exposure are:

*  reinsurers’ share of provision for claims outstanding;

»  debtors arising from reinsurers in respect of claims already paid;

e amounts due from direet insurance and reinsurance policyholders; and
s  amounts due from direct insurance and reinsurance intermediaries.

Ceded reinsurance is used to manage and mitigate inwards direct insurance and reinsurance risk. Ceded reinsurance does not
discharge the company’s liability as primary insurer. If a ceded reinsurer fails to pay a claim, the company remains liable for the
payment to the policyholder. A Reinsurance Security Committee is operated by the Chubb group which analyses the creditworthiness
of ceded reinsurers on a quarterly basis by reviewing their financial strength. In addition, the recent payment history of ceded
reinsurers is used to update the reinsurance purchasing strategy.

With regard to direct insurance and reinsurance receivables, the company operates a committee to review broker sccurity, a process
for monitoring arrangements with managing general agents, and, in certain circumstances, the requirement for collateral to be posted
by the policyholder to the benefit of the company.
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2.  CAPITAL MANAGEMENT & FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT — contintued
Credit risk — insurance and investment operations

The assets bearing credit risk are summarised below:

2015 2014

£000 £000
Other financial investments 2,649,456 2,722,617
Derivative financial instruments 1,233 1,963
Reinsurers’ share of technical provisions 2,449,109 2,430,685
Debtors arising out of direct insurance operations 430,347 427,687
Debtors arising from reinsurance operations 226,762 212,440
Total assets bearing credit risk 5,756,907 5,795,392

Other financial investments and derivative financial instruments are designated as fair value through profit or loss at incepticn, and
their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented investment strategy as detailed in note 1. The
Standard and Poor’s credit rating for other financial investments and derivative financial securities is detailed below.

2015 2014

£'000 £'000
AAA 805,243 876.479
AA 521,996 620,418
A 448,516 526,734
BBB 561,940 395,056
Below BBB or not rated 312,994 305,893
2,650,689 2,724,580

QOther financial investments and derivative financial instruments are neither past due nor impaired.

The amount of change, during the period and cumulatively, in the fair value of receivables that is attributed to changes in credit risk
is represented by the provision for impairment against receivables past due.

Reinsurers’ share of technical provisions includes claims outstanding, related claims handling costs, IBNR and unearned premium
reserve. This is described along with the valuation methods in note 1. This balance includes .0% past due that have been impaired
(2014: 0.0%).

Debtors arising out of direct and reinsurance operations are held at fair vafue less any provision for impairment as described in note
1. They include 0.2% (2014: 0.2%) that have been impaired and 24.5% (2014: 22.0%) that are past due, but not impaired. The latier
is aged 23.5% up to six menths (2014: 20.6%), 0.7% six months to a year (2014: 1,.2%) and the remaining 0.3% is older than a year
(2014: 0.2%).

The Standard and Poor’s credit rating for reinsurers share of technical provisions and debtors arising out of reinsurance operations
are detailed overleaf.
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2015 2014
£°000 £000
AA 2,158,497 2,150,363
A 354,903 316,640
BBB 3,312 3,231
Below BBB or not rated 159,159 172.891
2,675,871 2,643,125

Where appropriate the company seeks to obtain collateral from counterparties to mitigate the credit risk exposure from insurance and
reinsurance receivables. At 31 December 2015 the collateral provided to the company totalled £808.2 miltion (2014: £582.1 mitlion).
trust funds — 72.9% (2014: 5.9%), cash — 1,3% (2014:

This balance is represented by Letters of Credit — 25.8% (2014: 34.9%),
1.7%) and floating charge - 0.0% (2014: 57.5%).

The maximum exposure of receivables to credit risk at the balance sheet date is the carrying value less any collateral obtained from
counterparties. For Lthe purpose of this disclosure “receivables’ comprises ‘Reinsurers® share of technical provisions®, ‘Debtors arising
out of direct insurance operations’ and ‘Debtors arising from reinsurance operations’. At the balance sheet date the maximum

exposure of receivables to credit risk was £2,298.0 million (2014: £2,484.0 million).

3. SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS

Segmental information in the format required by the Companies Act 2006 is as follows:

Gross Gross Gross Gross .
P P . . Reinsurance
prémiums premivms claims operating
. bafance
written earned incurred expenses
£000 £2000 £000 £000 £000
Year to 31 December 2015 !
Continuing operations:
Direct insurance
Accident and health 422,084 419,404 (147,250) (147,066) (39,048)
Marine, aviation and transport 95,589 94,834 (53.805) (23,768) (17.812)
Fire and other damage to property 669,137 640,403 (476,889) (240,151) (18,003)
Third party liability 458,353 461,397 (279.942) (109,826) (60,812)
Miscellaneous 147,988 145,723 (66,673) (39,850) (37.406)
Reinsurance acceptances 409,078 403,748 (150,137) (114,275} (52317
2,202,229 2,165,509 {1,174,696) (674,936) (225,458)
Discontinued operations (1,740} {1,741} 4,529 (176) (5,154)
2,200,489 2,163,768 (1,170,167) {675,112) {230,652)




ACE EUROPEAN GROUP LIMITED PAGE 34

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2015

3. SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS — continued

'Gr(fss Gr(.:nss Gross claims Gros.s Reinsurance
prerr.nums premiums incurred operating balance
writlen earned EeXpENSEs
©£°000 £000 £7000 £7000 £'000
Year to 31 December 2014 '
Continuing operations:
Direct insurance
Accident and health 505,907 478,320 {187,748) {223,225) (36,923)
M arine, aviation and transport 97,449 99,319 (54,537) (25,753) (21,607)
Fire and other damage to property 655,050 650,691 (376,228) (219,952) (142,153)
Third party liability 487,407 481,714 (209,098) (110,181) (143,306}
M iscellaneous 164,422 157,608 (78,509) (39,689) (28,606)
Reinsurance acceptances 412,277 399,795 (283,962) (101,524) 69,856
2,322,512 2,267,447 (1,190,082} {720,324) (302,739)
Discontinued operations 231 229 (1,057) (1,585} 571
2,322,743 2,267,676 (1,191,139) (721,909) (302,168)

The reinsurance balance represents the credit (charge) to the technical account from the aggregate of all items relating to outwards
reinsurance. '

Analysis by geographic area —origin

Gross writien premiums Profit (Joss) before taxation Net assets
2015 4 2015 2014 2015 2014
£'000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000
United Kingdom 1,005,949 1,033,092 (65,443) 96,329 299,653 278,141
Other EEA states t,170,222 1,266,122 114,763 150,073 732,714 684,999
Qther countries 24,318 23,529 7,586 493 46,336 38,831
2,200,489 2,322,743 56,906 246,395 1,078,763 1,001,971

Gross written premium information by destination (location of risk) as required by FRS 102 as follows:

2015 2014

£°000 £'000
United Kingdom 580,252 506,492
United States of America 56,668 62,631
Continental Europe 1,202,812 1,290,996
Africa & Middle East 45,937 59,976
Asia/Pacific 78.617 84,393
Americas 40,973 55,181
Worldwide 196,970 172,843
Discontinued business (1,740) 231

2,200,489 2,322,743
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4. MOVEMENT IN PRIOR YEARS' PROVISION FOR CLAIMS OUTSTANDING

The prior years’ net provision for claims outstanding generated a surplus for 2015 (2014: surplus) as detailed below:

2015 2014
£:000 £°000
Continuing operations:
Accident and health 6,907 6,969
Marine, aviation and transport 13,037 9,470
Fire and other damage to property 23,292 14,171
Third party liability 55,094 68,470
Miscelaneous (5,662) {6,329)
92,668 92,751
Discontinued operations (1,945) 1,370
90,723 94,121
5. NETOPERATING EXPENSES - TECHNICAL ACCOUNT -
2015 2014
£'900 £°000
Acquisition costs 413,106 480,614
Change in net deferred acquisition costs (16,518) (10,066)
Administrative expenses 254,403 253,517
Reinsurance commissions (140,731) (239,755)
510,260 484,310

Administrative expenses include costs that are incurred by ACE INA Services UK, Limited (“AIS™), a fellow group undertaking,
and recharged to the company in the form of management charges. In particular, this charge includes the cost of the AIS staff
engaged in the business of AEGL.

Total commissions for direct insurance accounted for by the company during the year amounted to £308.1 million (2014: £326.4
million}, and are included within acquisition costs.

6.  AUDTOR'S REMUNERATION

2015 2014

£2000 £000
Fees pay able to the Company 's auditors for the audit of the Company’s financial statements 469 487

Fees payable to the Company’s auditors for other services: :

Audit-related assurance services 305 237
Tax compliance services 336 345
Tax advisory services 158 105
Other non-audit services 540 90
1,808 1,264

Audit-related assurance services include reports under section 404 of the US Public Company Accounting Reform and Investor
Protection Act 2002 and also the audit of the Company’s regulatory return.
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7. OPERATING LEASE RENTALS
The total rentals under operating leases, charged as an expense in the profit and loss account, are disclosed below:
2015 2014
£'000 £000
Leasehold propenty 5,214 3,668
The tota! of futurc minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leascs is as follows:
2015 2014
£700 £000
Operating leases which expire:
Within 1 year 782 1,136
Between two and five years 10,350 12,895
More than five years 8,511 6,742
19,643 20,773
8. DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES
2015 2014
£'000 £7000
Cost of staff employed by the company
Wages and salaries 64,139 69,078
Social security costs 15,243 16,318
Other pension costs 5,641 5,240
Other staff costs 6,473 6,303
91,496 66,939
The monthly average number of employees of the company during the year was as follows:
20158 2014
No. No.
Underwriting 742 758
Claims 183 170
Other 277 282
1,202 1,210

The disclosures above relate to staff based in the company’s branches outside the UK who are directly employed by the company.
Staff that support the UK branch operations of the company and centralised functions that are managed in the UK are employed by
AIS and their costs are incorporated in management recharges from this service company. For disclosure purposes, it is not practical

to allocate these amounts to the underlying entities to which the staff provide services.
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8. DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES - continued

Directors’ ¢moluments

All directors received emoluments through AIS in respect of their services to ACE group companies. The cost of these emoluments
is incorporated within the management recharges from AIS. For disclosure purposes, it is not practical to allocate these amounts to
the underlying entities to which the directors provide services. Consequently, the following amounts represent the total
emoluments paid by AlS to the directors of this company. :

2015 2014

£°000 £°000
A ppregate emoluments and benefits 4,839 4872
Company pension contributions to money purchase pension schemes 132 o129
4,971 5,001

Included in the above amounts paid by ALS in respect of the dircctors of this company, the highest paid director was paid a total of
£787,668 (2014: £808,261) in respect of emaluments and benefits. The amount of acerued pension and accrued lump sum in relation
to the highest paid director at the end of the year were £Nil (2014: £Nil) and £Nil (2014; £Ni1) respectively.

The aggregate emoluments above do not include share based remuneration. All executive directors are entitled and received shares in
Chubb Limited under long-term incentive plans. During the year, 3 directors exercised options over the shares of Chubb Limited.
The highest paid director exercised share options during the year.

Until 31 March 2002, retirement benefits accrued under the ACE London Pension Scheme to | curtent director under the final salary
section. Disclosures relating to this scheme are contained within the financial statements for AIS. From 1 April 2002, pension
benefits are accruing to 6 current directors under the ACE European Group UK Pension Plan (Stakeholder scheme).

9. INVESTMENT RETURN

2015 2014
£000 £'000
Investment income
Income from investments 81,656 81,368
Gains on the realisation of investments 13,899 16,195
95,555 97,563
Investments on expenses and charges
Investment management expenses (9,231) (9,041)
Losses on the realisation of investments : (7,219) (14,605)
(16,450) (23,646)
Net unrealised gains less losses on investments
Unrealised gains on investments 10,976 103,451
Unrealised losses on investments (83,705) (34,521)
(72,729) 68,930

Total investment return 6,376 142,847




ACE EUROPEAN GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2015

10. TAXATION ON PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

(a) Tax on profit on ordinary activitics

The tax charge is made up as follows:

2015 2014
£000 £000
Current taxatian
UK corporation tax at 20.25% (2014: 21.5%) 11,546 54,856
Adjustments in respect of prior years (1,138) 239
Total current taxation 10,408 55,095
Double taxation relief {11,546) ({28.297)
(1,138) 26,798
Faoreign taxdation
Current taxation on income for the period 32284 45,555
Adjustinenis in respect of previous periods {7.054) (6.592)
25,230 38,963
Deferred taxarion (Naote I14)
Origination and reversal of timing differences 131 (1.807)
Adjustments in respect of previous periods (109) -
Effect of change in 1ax rates 19 (465)
Total deferred tax charpged 41 {2,272}
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 24,133
Tax included in the f af comprehensive i
The tax credit / (charge) is made up as follows:
Actuarial loss on pension scheme 382 {(213)
Qrigination and reversal of timing differences
Changes in rate 202 -
Tutal tax charge / (eredit) 584 213
e ettt
{b) Factors affecting the current tax charge
The tax assessed for the year is higher than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 20.25% (2014: 21.5%).
N
The differences are recouciled below:
2015 2014
£'000 £000
Profit on ordinary activities before eax 56,906 246,895
Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by standard rate of UK
corporation tax of 20.25% (2014: 21.5%) 11,523 53,082
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 85 1,563
Higher taxation ¢8Ies On Overseas eamings 20,807 15937
Orher - (275)
Changes in rate 19 (465)
Adjustments in respect of prior periods - current tax (8,192) {6,353)
Adjustments in respect of prior periods - deferred tax (109) -
Total tax charvge for the year 24,133 63 489

A reduction in the UK corporation rate from 21% to 20% took effect from | April 2015,

The adjustments in respect of previous periods arise from differences between overseas and UK tax bases.

The company has unrecognised eligible unrelieved forcign tax (EUFT) totalling £50.5 million as at 31 December 2015 which is
unlikely to be relieved in the foreseeable future.
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11. DIVIDENDS
During 2015 the company did not pay a dividend (2014: 9.2p per share totalling £50.0 million).

12, OTHER FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS
Market Value Cost Market Value Cost
2015 2015 2014 2014
£'000 £°000 £°000 £000
f::rfl:juz::: other variable y ield securities and units in 33,428 32,663 ‘ 30,704 29,600
Private Equity 6,862 6,952 - -
Delby securitics and other fied interest securities 1,562,813 2,514,988 2,654,139 2,527,734
Deposits with credit institutions* 46,353 46,353 37,774 37,714
2,649,456 2,600,956 2,722,617 2,595,108

None of the above investments, except equities, are listed on a recognised exchange.

*Deposits with credit institutions includes £29.8 million (2014: £23.3 million) of collateral in respect of stock lending arrangements
(note 22).

Derivative financial instruments

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
2015 2015 2014 2014
£000 £°000 £7000 £'000
Forward foreign currency contracts 393 244 818 676
Fixed income options and futures 840 251 1,145 3,890
1,233 495 1,963 4,566

The cost of entering into derivative financial instruments was £2,075 (2014: £397,032).
Currency derivatives

The company utilises currency derivatives to manage currency exposure which arises through the acquisition of investments in
currencies other than the designated core currency of the investment portfolio.

At the balance sheet date, the total notional amount of cutstanding forward foreign exchange contracts to which the company is
committed are as follows:

2015 2014
£'000 £000

Forward foreign exchange contracts 96 €8

At 31 December 2013, the fair value of the company’s currency derivatives resuits in a gain of £0.2 million (2014: gain of £0.1
million). These amounts are based on rates of exchange at the balance sheet date, comprising £0.4 million of assets (2014: £0.8
million) and £0.2 million of liabilities (2014: £0.7 million).

A loss of £0.7 million (2014: loss of £1.4 million) has been recognised in the profit and loss account in respect of contracts which
matured during the period.

The company does not currently designate its foreign currency detiominated debt as a hedging instrument for the purpose of hedging
the translation of its foreign operations.



ACE EUROPEAN GROUP LIMITED PAGE 40

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2015

12. OTHER FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS - continued
Fixed income options and futures

Options and futures contracts on fixed income securitics may be utilised by the investment managers as part of their strategy to
mitigate duration risk, enhance yield or to obtain exposure to a particular instrument or market.

At 31 December 2015, the fair value of the company’s fixed income derivatives is an asset of £0.6 million (2014: liability of £2.7
million) comprising £0.8 million of assets (20i4: £1.2 million) and £0.2 million of liabilities (2014: £3.9 million).

A gain of £2.4 million (2014: gain of £9.4 million) has been recognised in the profit and loss account in respect of contracts
which matured in the period.

FRS 102 requires the company to classify financial instruments into a fair value hierarchy as follows:
—  Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2 — !nputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.c. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices), and

- Level 3 —Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

For 2015 the company has taken carly adoption of the Financial Reporting Council’s Amendments to FRS 102 ~ Fair value
hierarchy disclosure, the amendments of which simplify the preparation of disclosures about financial instruments for financial
institutions and retirement benefit plans.

An analysis of financial instruments at 31 December 2015 by fair value hierarchy is set out below:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£000 £°000 ’ £'000 £000
Assets:
Sh?res and other vanable yield securities and units in 33.428 ) } 33,428
unit trusts
Private Equity - - 6,863 6,863
Debt securities and other fixed interest securities 101,003 2,450,987 10,823 2,562,813
Deposits with credit institutions 16,830 29,522 - 46,352
Derivative financial instruments 840 393 - 1,233
Total assets at fair value 152,101 2,480,902 17,686 2,650,689
Liabilities:
Derivative financial instruments 251 244 - 495

Total liabilities at fair value . 251 244 - 495
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12. OTHER FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS — continued

An analysis of financial instruments at 31 December 2014 by fair value hierarchy is set out below:

Level 1 Lewvel 2 Level 3 Total
£°000 £000 £°000 £7000
Assets:
Shz'ires and other variable yield securities and units in 30,704 . l 20,404
unit trusts o
Debt securities and other fixed interest securities 105,178 2,537,046 11,015 2,654,139
Deposits with credit institutions 14,719 23,055 - 37,774
Drerivative financial instruments 1,145 g18 - 1,963
Total assets at fair value 151,746 2,561,819 11,015 2,724,580
Liabilities:
Derivative financial instruments 3,890 676 - 4,566
Total liabilities at fair value 3,890 676 - 4,566

Shares and other variable yield securities and units in unit trusts only comprise listed equities. As the fair values of these securities
are based on quoted market prices they are classified within Level 1.

‘Debt securities and aother fixed interest securities’ with active markets such as Government securities are classified within Level I,
as fair values are based on quoted market prices. For debt securities and other fixed interest securities that trade in less active
markets, including corporate securities, fair values are based on the output of pricing models, the significant inputs intc which
include, but are not limited to, yield curves, credit risks and spreads, measures of volatility, and prepayment speeds. These debt
securities and other fixed interest securities are classified within Level 2. Debt securities and other fixed intergst securities for which
pricing is unobservable are classified within Level 3.

‘Deposits with credit institutions” includes short term investments, such as liquidity funds. Where such securities are traded in active
markets, they are classified within Level 1, as fair values are based on quoted market prices. Where no active market exists for such
securities they are typically classified within Level 2 and where pricing is unobservable, Level 3.

Where ‘Derivative financial instruments’ are actively traded the values of these securitics are based on quoted market prices.
Accordingly they are classified within Level 1. Instruments that are not actively traded are classified within Level 2.

Duning the period no significant investments were transferred between Level | and Level 2.

2015 2014

£000 £7000
Balance at 1 January 1L015 6,243
Gains Recogpised in the Profit and Loss Account® 155 473
Purchases 6,952 8,485
Sales {468) (4,212)
Transfers in/(out) of Level 3** 3 26
Balance at 31 December 17,6858 11,015

* Gains Recognised in the Profit and Loss Account comprise realised gains of £Nil (2014 gain of £28,000) which are presented
within [nvestiment Income, unrealised losses of £382,000 (2014: gain of £137,000) and foreign exchange gains of £537,000 (2014
gain of £308,000) al! of which are presented in the Non-Technical Account. Of this amount a £155,000 gain (2014: gain of £257,000)
relates to investments held at the end of the period and comprises £Nit of realised gain (2014; £Nil), £382,000 of unrealised loss
(2014: gain of £138,000) and £537,000 of foreign exchange gain (2014: gain of £119,000).
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12. OTHER FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS — continued

** During the period a small number of investment grade and high yield fixed interest investments were transferred into and out of
Level 3 due to changes in their pricing source. The net value of the investments transferred was £0.03 million (2014: £0.03 million}.

13. OTHER DEBTORS

2015 2014
£000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year:
Amounts due from group undertakings 94,529 88,989
Corporation tax receivable - -
Deferred taxation (note 14) 4,261 4,886
Receivable for sates of securities 1,122 886
Other debtors 4,181 4,695
104,093 99,456
14, DEFERRED TAXATION
Deferred tax
The deferred tax included in the statement of financial position is as follows:
- 2015 2014
£000 £'000
Accelerated capital allowances 887 641
Share-based payments . 35 ' -
Pension costs : 1,814 2.236
Deferred costs 1,358 1,774
UPR & DAC 197 235
Deferred tax 4,261 4,886
An analysis of the movement in deferred tax is as follows:
2015 2014
£'000 £'000
At Y January 4,387 1,703
Prior year adjustment ' 109 -
Deferred tax charge to profit and loss account (130) 1,807
Deferred tax credit to other comprehensive income (381) 913
Change in tax rate (224) 463
4,261 4.886

The amount of the ner reversal of deferred tax assets and liabilitites expect to occur in 2016 is £134k (2015: £§34k)
largely in respect of the reversal of timing differences on qualify ing fixed assets.

Finance (No. 2) Act 2015 enacted 2 reduction in corporation tax rates to 20% from 1 April 2013, to 19% from | April 2017 and 18%
from 1 April 2020.
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15. TANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost

At 1 January 2015
Additions
Disposals

Foreign exchange differences

At 31 December 2015

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2015

Charge for the period
Disposals

Foreign exchange differences

At 31 December 2015

Net book value
31 December 2015

31 December 2014

16. PENSIONS

PAGE 43
Leasehold Computer,
Land and Motor improvements, Office Total
Buildings Vehicles Fixtures and Equipment a
Fittings and S oftware
£000 £000 £7009 £7000 £°000
1,355 1,081 12,041 10,566 25,043
18 33 2,083 559 2,693
- (404) ,131) (4,589) (9,124)
(89) 75) (197) (693 (1,654)
1,284 635 9,196 5,843 16,958
1,000 1,035 9,641 9,373 21,049
25 44 1370 535 1,974
- (404} (3,835) (4,534) (8,773)
{66) 69 (633) (613) (1,381)
959 606 6,543 4,761 12,869
325 29 2,653 1,082 4,089
3ss 46 2,400 1,193 3,994

The company operates a small number of defined benefit pension schemes in Continental Europe. As at 31 December 2015, the
apgregate assets and liabilities relating to these schemes were £32.1 million (2014: £34.5 million) and £41.7 million (2014: £45.7
million) respectively. Company conuributions 1o the schemes totalled £1.1 million (2014: 1.4 million) and the expense recognised in
the profit and loss account was £1.6 million (2014: £1.0 million).

17. CALLED-UP SHARE CAPITAL

Allotted, issued and fully paid:

376,567,035 'A' Ordinary £1 shares
148,174,109 'B' Ordinary £ shares

2015 2014

£7000 £000
376,567 376,567
168,174 168,174
544,741 544,741




ACE EUROPEAN GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2015

18. DEFERRED ACQUISITION COSTS

The reconciliation of opening and ¢losing deferred acquisition costs is as follows:

PAGE 44

Gross Reinsurers' share
2013 2014 2015 2014
£000 £000 £000 £'000
At 1 January 151,986 121,159 66.954 57.611
Change in acquisition costs deferred during the year (7,602 12,220 (24,1203 2,154
Foreign exchange (losses) / gains (15,171) 18,607 (11,042) 7,189
At 31 December 129,213 151,986 31,792 66,954
19. RECONCILIATION OF INSURANCE BALANCE
Gross Reinsurers’ share
2015 2014 20158 2014
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
At 1 January 799,518 754,498 361,792 340,876
Increasef(decrease) in provision 36,721 55,067 (5,406) 19,709
Foreign exchange movements (34,371) (10,047) (11,794) 1,207
At 3t December 801,868 799,518 344.592 361,792
The reconciliation of opeping and closing provision for claims is as follows:
Gross Reinsurers' share
2015 2014 2015 20t4
£'000 £'000 £000 £000
At 1 January 3,713,917 3,692,554 2,068,893 2,001,698
lncreasef{decrease) in provision (16,294) 106,118 43,028 117,491
Foreign exchange movements {40,907) (84,755) {7,404) (50,296)
A1 31 December 3,656,716 3,713,917 2,104,517 2,068,893
20. OTHER CREDITORS INCLUDING TAXATION AND SOCIAL SECURITY
2015 2014
£'000 £°000
Cotporation taxation payable 12,513 39,273
Payable for purchases of securities 5,927 10,146
Other creditors ) 46,375 55,434
Liability for stock lending collateral (note 22} 29,768 23,297
94,583 128,150

21, EQUALISATION PROVISION

As laid out in the accounting policies, an equalisation provision is established in the financial statements. The effect of this provision
is to reduce shareholders’ funds by £105,102,000 (2014: 98,842,000). The increase during the year had the effect of decreasing the
balance on the technical account for general business and decreasing the profit on ordinary activities before taxation by £6,260,000

{2014: £4,748,000).
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22, STOCK LENDING
The company participates in stock lending activities with State Street Bank and Trust company.

20158 2014

£000 £°000
Aggregate value of securities on loan at 31 December 413,500 403,819
Income from stock duringthe year 491 7I3

In respect of securities on loan at the year end, the company held £422.9 million (2014: £413.9 million) as collateral, the value of
which is above the value of the loan securities by 2.2% (2014: 2.5% above), as a result of unrealised gains generated by the liquidity
fund in which the collateral is invested. These unrealised gains are included in investment retumn.

Included within the £422.6 million (2014: £413.9 million) of collateral held is £29.8 million (20¥4: £23.3 million) in the form of cash
which has been reinvested by the company. This is included on the face of the balance sheet within “Other financial investments’,

23. LETTER OF CREDIT FACILITIES

Under a facility with Citibank NA, the value of letters of credit outstanding was £54.5 million (2014: £42 8 million) with associated
collateral of £64.7 million (2014: £55.6 million). Under a facility with Lloyds TSB Bank plc, there is a further letter of credit
outstanding for £0.67 million (2014: £0.67 millicn), equally matched by collateral. Collateral is included within other financial
investments and cash at bank and in hand on the face of the balance sheet.

24. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
No capital expenditure was authorised at 31 December 2015 which has not been provided far in these financial statements.

25. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the year, there were no material transactions or balances between AEGL and fellow group companies, key management
personnel or members of their close family, which require disclosure under the Companies Act 2006.

Advantage has been taken of the exemption in FRS 102 from disclosing details of transactions with Chubb Limited and its subsidiary
undertakings as required by that standard. :
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26. CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT TABLES
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The following tables show the development of claims over a period of time on both a gross and net of reinsurance basis. FRS 103
requires that claims development shall go back to the period when the earliest claim arose for which there is still uncertainty about
the amount and timing of the claims payment, but need not go back more than 10 years. The top half of the table shows how the
estimates of total claims for each accident year develop over time. The lower half of the table reconciles the cumulative claims to the

amount appearing in the balance sheet.

The cumulative claims estimates and payments for ¢ach accident year are translated into sterling at the year-end rates that applied at

- the end of each accident year.

Gross insurance contract outstanding claims provision as at 31 December 201 5:

Accident year

Estimate of cumulative claims incurred
At end of accident year

One year later

Two years later

Three years later

Four years later
Current estimate of cumulative clains
incurred

Cumulative claims paid
At end of accident year

One year later

Two years later

Three years later

Four years later
Cumulative pay ments 1o date

Gross outsianding claims provision at 31
December 2015 at ¢original exchange rates

Foreign exchange adjustment

Total gross cutstanding claims provision
per the Balance Sheet

% Surplus / {deficiency ) of initial gross
reserve

2010 & prior ) 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Total
£000 £°G00 £°000 £'000 £'000 £°000 £'000
1,401,687  1,25937( 1,267,073 1,342 382 1,310,472
1,442,121 1,243,367 1,274,500 1,354,079
1,380,792 1,245,780  1,242.536
1,377,541 1,228,722
1,325.932
1.325,932 1.228,722 1,242,536 1,354,079 1,310,472
(316,817}  (316,119)  (358,367)  (384,875)  (428,122)
(762,763) (618296}  (639,247) .(698.816)
(912,676)  (738,010)  (772,848)
(985,213)  (856,834)
¢1.032.387)
¢1,039,387)  (856.834)  (772,848)  (698,816)  (428,122)
286,545 371,888 469,688 £55,263 £82.350
(15,981) (44,543) (22,577 {14,336) -
1,088419 270,564 327.345 447,111 640,927 882,350 3,656,716
5.4% 2.4% 1.9% -0.9%
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26. CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT TABLES - continued

Net insurance contract outstanding claims provision as at 31 December 2015:

2010 & prior 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Total
Accident year £°000 £°000 £°000 £000 £°000 £:000 £000
Estimate of cumulative claims incurred .
At end of accident year 599,788 631,640 646,824 624,869 606,662
One year later 646,305 6£24,444 546,418 645,855
Two years later 633,292 619,605 6i4,374
Three years later 641,861 598,982
Four years later 674 663
Current estimate of cumulative chaitns
incurred 624,663 598,982 614,374 645,855 606,662
Cumulative claims pad
At end of accident year (172,507)  (173,826)  (208,103)  (216,400)  (245,090)
One year later (345,947)  (324,187) (358,320)  (353,312)
Two years later (425,469)  (387,698) (408.476)
Three years later (455,909)  (434,3125)
Four years tater {485,823}
Curmulative pay ments to date (485,823)  (434,325)  (408,476)  (353,312)  (245,090)
Net outstanding claims provision at 31
December 2015 at original exchange rates 138,840 164,657 205,398 292,543 361,572
Foreign exchange adjustment (8,889) (12,608) {10,592y {5,601} -
Totai net outstanding claims provision per
the Balance Sheet 426,379 129,951 152,049 195,306 286,042 361,572 1,552,199

% Surplus / {deficiency) of initial net
reserve -4,1% 52% 5.0% -3.4%
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27. EXPLANATION OF TRANSITION TO FRS 102 and FRS 103

This is the first financial year that the company has presented its financial statements under FRS 102 and FRS 103 issued by the
Financial Reporting Council. The following disclosures are required in the year of transition. The last financial statements under UK
GAAP were for the financial year ended 31 December 2014 and the date of the transition to FRS 102 was therefore 1 January 2014.
As a consequence of adopting FRS 102 and 103, accounting policies have changed to comply with these standards.

Unearned premiums and Deferred acquisition costs

FRS 102 requires an entity, at the end of each reporting pericd, te translate foreign currency menetary items using the closing rate
and non-monetary items using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction or the date when fair value was determined (for non-
monetary items measured at fair value). For the purposes of applying the requirements of Section 30 Foreign Currency Transiation
of FRS 102 an entity shall treat all asscts and liabilitics arising from an insurance contract as monelary items. As such, uneamed
premiums and deferred acquisition costs, previously translated from transactional to functional currency at historic exchange rates,
have been restated at closing rates with the resulting difference being accounted for within foreign exchange gains / losses.

Reconcifiation of equity

At | January At 31 December

2014 2014
£'000 £000
Equity reported under previous UK GAAP 928,248 1,002,915
Adjustments to equity on transition to FR5 102/103
Insurance balances treated as monetary items 3,784 (1,179)
Deferred tax on balances treated as monetary items (758) 235
Equity reported under FRS 102 and 103 931.274 1,001,971

Notes to the reconciliation of equity at 1 January 2014

Insurance balances treated as monetary items

FRS 103 requires that all assets and liabilities arising from an insurance contract are treated as monetary items for foreign
currency translation purposes. Previously, balances such as unearned premiums and deferred acquisition costs were
treated as non-monetary items. Net of taxation, this had the impact of increasing total equity by £3.0 million upon
transition and decreasing total equity by £0.9 million at the y ear ended 31 December 2014,
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27. EXPLANATION OF TRANSITION TO FRS 102 and FRS 103 - continued

Reconcitiation of total comprehensive income for 2014

Total comprehensive income for the financial y ear under previous UK GAAP
Insurance balances treated as monetary items
Deferred tax on insurance balances treated as monetary items

Tatal comprehenstve income for the financial year under FRS 102 /103

Notes to the reconciliation of total comprehensive income for 2014

Insurance balances treated as monetary items

PAGE 49

At 31 December
2014
£7000

124,667
{4,903)

993

120,697

FRS 103 requires that all assets and liabilities arising from an insurance contract are treated as monetary items for foreign
currency translation purposes. Previously, batances such as unearned premiums and deferred acquisition costs were
treated as non-monetary items. Net of taxation, this had the impact of decreasing comprehensive income by £4.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2014 (£4.0 million decrease in profit or loss and £Nil changg in other comprehensive

income).

18. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On 30 June 2015, ACE Limited (“ACE"), together with its wholly owned indirect subsidiary, William Investmment Holdings
Corporation, entered into an Agreement and Flan of Merger ("the Merger") with The Chubb Corporaticn (“Chubb”), a3 company
organised under the laws of the United States of America. The Merger was completed on 14 January 2016 and ACE Limited was

renamed Chubb Limited.

The Merger will affect the company's activities as ACE and Chubb look to integrate both their European operations (“the

Integration"}, but the directors do not consider there to be any effect on these financial statements.

29. ULTIMATE PARENT COMPANY

The ultimate holding company is Chubb Limited, a company registered in Zurich, Switzerland, with its headquarters in Zurich,
Swikzerland and it is quoted on the New York Stack Exchange. Copies of the ultimate holding company’s consolidated financial
statements can be cbtained from Investor Relations at ACE’s executive offices at 17 Woodbourne Avenue, Hamilton HM 08,

Bermuda.
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ACE European Group Limited (“AEGL”) is one of Europe's leading commercial insurance and reinsurance companies,
providing a range of property and casualty, accident and health and persenal lines insurance products for a diverse range
of clients. With shareholders” funds approaching £1.4 billion at year end 2016, AEGL is a large, well-capitalised company
operating a successful underwriting business throughout the UK, Ireland and Continental Furope.

2016: A remarkable year

In January 2016, ACE Limited acquired The Chubb Corporation to become the world’s largest publicly traded property
and casualty insurer. I was truly excited by the prospect of these two highly regarded insurance companies coming
together, and the opportunities that it would bring for the group in Eurcpe. I'm pleased to report that our plans for a fully
integrated business are coming to fruition and the reality is as good as, if not better, than I'd hoped for.

As a combined organisation, we benefit from complementary business lines, greater market presence and deeper
technical expertise. We have more in-depth client knowledge and have gained experience in new industry sectors. And we
now benefit from a wider distribution network and better access to independent brokers across Europe.

We have made huge steps in integrating the companies this year. We have in place experienced leadership to guide the
business into the future. We have brought our people together and co-located many of our teams in offices across the UK
and Europe. I believe we have earned the respect of brokers, partners and clients, both in our interactions with them and
in our expanded capabilities in finding seluticns to their risk challenges.

In terms of our financial performance, we continue to produce great results, especially given current market conditions
and the additional workload that integration has brought this year. AEGL's 2016 gross written premiums were £2.4
billion, up almost 9% over prior year, and our pre-tax profit of £193.2 million was over three times higher than the £56.9
million generated in 2015. .

Integration work will continue throughout 2017. One of our key priorities is to simplify the legal entity structure of our
Eurcpean insurance entities and optimise operational efficiencies by consolidating Chubb’s other European non-life
retail companies, namely Chubb Insuranee Company of Europe SE (“CICE”) and Chubb Bermuda Insurance Ireland
Designated Activity Company (“CBII”), into AEGL by means of a cross-border merger. Post integration, AEGL will be
renamed Chubb Eurepean Group Limited in acknowledgement of the strength of the global Chubb brand.

Rising to the challenges of 2017

If 2016 proved anything, it was how difficult it is to make predictions. As insurers, we face an uncertain and rapidly
changing landscape and we must be ready and more agile than ever in responding to new developments, challenges and
risks on behalf of our brokers and clients.

The insurance industry environment in the UK and Europe today is incredibly difficult. Insurance rates have reached, or
are in danger of reaching, unsustainable levels in many classes and with so much capital, both traditional and alternative,
relatively benign loss experience over the past few years and continuing high levels of prior year reserve releases, it is
hard to see why conditions should change significantly in the near term. So the way in which insurers define and
implement their business appétites, underwriting discipline, risk selection, portfolio management and use of data could
well be the differentiators that separate the winners from the losers over the next few years. We at Chubb are well
prepared to rise to the challenges and the opportunities that will present themselves. We will continue to write for
underwriting profit and 1 am confident we have the focus and the discipline to allow us to perform strongly and with
margin to reinvest for the future.

We are cognisant of the need to remain relevant in a constantly changing environment. There are new types af risk
entering the marketplace every day — many reflecting the technological advances that have begun to define the world we
live in today.

We remain a key player in our chosen fields and are actively working to create new niche, packaged and enhanced
tailored insurance and risk management solutions, which are more accessible to our customers and address their
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- evolving needs. We believe that we also need to look beyond the traditional insurance policy and go beyond purely
financial compensation, venturing deeper into risk management, loss control and “hands-on” crisis response.

In 2016 we launched a number of new products including Cyber Enterprise Risk Management, Warranties & Indemnities
and Contingency coverages; and introduced a Biogas and Solar package product where clients can benefit from Chubb’s
tailored risk management services. We also enhanced our middle market proposition with the launch of ‘MasterPackage’,
a single property and lability policy offering comprehensive, warranty-free cover for businesses with domestic and/or
international operations. As a result of the acquisition of The Chubb Corporation, we have also added High Net Worth
business, primarily motor and home and contents insurance including jewellery and fine art collections for affluent
individuals, to our portfolio.

In conclusion

The events of 2016 have underlined to me the critical importance of values and culture in insurance. We will continue to
focus on our clients, pooling our skills and expertise with our partners to provide the strategic counsel and risk
management expertise they need. We pride ourselves on delivering superior customer service and outcomes, and adhere
to clear and agreed service standards through risk management, compliance and conduet governance practices in all
areas of the AEGL business.

Finally, I want to acknowledge the dedication and commitment of my colleagues throughout the region and thank
everyone who has supported AEGL this year — the leadership teams, the underwriters, the support staff and of course all
of our brokers, partners and clients, 2017 will bring with it a new set of opportunities and challenges and I am excited to
be leading L through the year ahead.

A J Kendrick
President
18 April 2017
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The Board of AEGL has prepared this report in accordance with Section 414A of the Companies Act 2006. In addition to
this statutory requirement, this report also addresses other aspects of the company’s business which the Board believes
will be of benefit to interested parties.

Ownership

Chubb Limited, the ultimate parent of AEGL; is the Swiss-incorporated holding company of the Chubb Group of
Companies. Chubb Limited and its direct and indirect subsidiaries, collectively the Chubb Group of Companies (“Chubb”)
are a global insurance and reinsurance organisation. At December 31, 2016, Chubb Limited held total assets of $159.8
billion and shareholders’ equity of $48.3 billion. It is listed on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE: CB) and is a
component of the S&P 500 index. The company maintains executive offices in Zurich, New York, London and other
locations, and employs approximately 30,000 people worldwide. '

Consolidation of Chubb’s UK and European Operating Entities

The Chubb group includes a number of European insurers in addition to AEGL, principally Chubb Insurance Cofnpany of
Europe SE (“CICE") and Chubb Bermuda International Insurance Designated Activity Company (“CBII”). In order to
optimise operational efficiency, governance and capital, Chubb is intending to consolidate CICE and CBII into one entity,
AEGL, through the operation of a Part VII transfer and cross border merger during 2017.

Potential Impact of the UK’s Exit from the European Union

On 23 June 2016, the United Kingdom voted in a national referendum to withdraw from the European Union ("EU").
This unprecedented process will be triggered by invoking Article 50 of the Lisbon Treaty, paving the way for what is
expected to be two years of negotiations to agree the terms of the UK's departure and its future relationship with the EU.

In the event that, following the UK's withdrawal from the EU, UK insurers were unable to access European risks through
the EU Single Market or by an equivalent means, Chubb may reorganise its operations and legal entity structure in the
UK and the EU. The Board has considered potential risks and uncertainties arising from the result of the referendum and
the possible impact on the future performance and position of the business. Contingency plans are in place should the
UK'’s exit from the European Union impede AEGL’s current and planned operational model and business practices.

Business Querview

Chubb is the world’s largest publicly traded property and casualty insurer. With operations in 54 countries, Chubb
provides commercial and personal property and casualty insurance, personal accident and supplemental health
insurance, reinsurance and life insurance to a diverse group of clients.

The company is distinguished by its extensive product and service offerings, broad distribution capabilities, exceptional
financial strength, superior claims handling expertise and local operations globally.

The company serves multinational corparations, mid-size and small businesses with property and casualty insurance and
risk engineering services; affluent and high net worth individuals with substantial assets to protect; individuals
purchasing life, personal accident, supplemental health, homeowners, automobile and specialty personal insurance
coverage; companies and affinity groups providing or offering accident and health insurance programs and life insurance
to their employees or memhers; and insurers managing exposures with reinsurance coverage. Chubb’s core operating
insurance companies maintain financial strength ratings of “AA” from Standard & Poor’s and “A++” from A.M. Best.

AEGL is a major contributor to Chubb, generating almost 10% of the group’s overall gross written premium in 2016.

AEGL is one of Europe’s leading commercial insurance and reinsurance companies and operates a successful
underwriting franchise throughout the UK, Ireland and Continental Europe. Headquartered in the UK with branch
offices across Europe, AEGL and its European Economic Area (“EEA”) branches hold cross-border permissions
throughout the EEA. AEGL is also a ‘white listed’ surplus lines insurance and reinsurance company in the United States,
entitling it to write surplus lines in all US states and US territories. Business is accessed by a variety of distribution
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channels and the company has strong relationships with the broker community, its corporate partners and direct

markets.

The company offers its clients a bread range of insurance and risk solutions encompassing property & casualty, accident
& health and personal lines classes. with policies written under the brand names “Chubb Europe”, “Chubb Global
Markets” and “Chubb Tempest Re”. These brands capitalise on the distinctiveness and strength of the Chubb name and
acknowledge the company’s strong insurance platforms, reputation, skill sets, financial strength ratings and consistent

management philosophy.

The principal business segments of Chubb Europe are managed as UK & Ireland Property and Casualty (“UK&I P&C"),
Continental Europe Property and Casualty (“CE P&C”), Accident and Health {“A&H”) and Specialty Personal Lines
(“SPL"). :
The P&C operations provide client-focused insurance solutions and risk management and engineering services for a
range of UK and European multinational, large and mid-sized commercial clients, with products encompassing property,
primary and excess casualty, financial lines, surety, marine cargo and construction related risks.

The A&H division underwrites a range of A&H and leisure travel related products, providing benefits and services to
individuals, employee groups and affinity groups throughout Europe. In some cases these products are packaged under
‘other brands or form part of another service provider’s products. A range of persanal accident and sickness insurance
products including short-term: disability, critical condition and hospitalisation/recovery are also offered across a number

of European countries.

The SPL team has developed innovative insurance solutions and industry-leading claims capabilities for Mobile Network
Operators and Electrical Retailers, in order to provide their customers with protection for their mobile devices.

Chubb Global Markets (“CGM”) is the group’s specialty international underwriting business. Its parallel distribution
capabilities mean that underwriting products may be offered through both AEGL and Lioyd's Syndicate 2488, managed
by ACE Underwriting Agencies Limited. CGM’s produet range includes tailored solutions for aviation, energy, financial
lines, marine, property, political risks and excess & surplus lines (“E&S”) insurance risks.

With underwriting operations located in Londen and Zurich, Chubb Tempest Re International (“CTRe"} writes
traditional and non-traditional aviation, casualty, marine and property treaty reinsurance worldwide. Products are
offered predominantly through AEGL and Lloyd’s Syndicate 2488, and also through various overseas Chubb group legal
entities.

AEGL benefits from comprehensive and fully integrated support functions encompassing claims, finance and actuarial,
risk management, legal and compliance, human resources, operations and IT.

The split of 2016 gross written premiums by business unit is illustrated below:

CTIRe
cGM 4% UKI PRC

SPL
16%
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Business Objectives & Strategy

AEGL is distinguished by its market-leading risk expertise, a disciplined approach to underwriting, local presence
offering fast access to decision makers and a commitment to its customers founded upon a superior claims service.

AEGL has an established underwriting ethos that permeates the company. Top line growth is not the primary driver for
the company and underwriters are fully prepared to shed volume as necessary in order to maintain an underwriting
profit. Using AEGL's underwriting skills and targeted marketing strategies, the company aims to generate growth in
areas where risk-adjusted underwriting margins are favourable, and achieve better terms or shrink business where they

are not,

AEGL is headquartered in London but can issue policies locally throughout its network of UK and European branch
offices. This encourages underwriting flexibility and high levels of service for brokers and clients whilst ensuring local
regulatory and tax requirements are adhered to. AEGL is an established player in the multinational marketplace and has
the capability to provide fully integrated international insurance programmes for clients. AEGL's dedicated and
experienced international underwriting and service teams work with Chubb’s global network of offices to provide
seamless, tailored solutions to the often unique and complex needs of multinational companies which includes agreeing
coverage, issuing policies, adjusting claims and moving funds, all in accordance with legislative requirements and agreed
service standards. The continuing trend of companies expanding beyond their local and national borders makes
multinational business a key priority for AEGL.

The company strives to offer superior service levels in all aspects of its operations, from policy processing to engineering
risk management and claims handling. AEGL continues to invest in technelogy to improve its operational efficiency,

underwriter support and broker interfaces.

AEGL is committed to protecting and preserving its capital. It operates a conservative investment strategy and has
maintained its focus on cash flow management and liquidity to secure its long term position in the insurance market.

Investment Strategy

AEGL operates a conservative investment strategy by establishing highly liquid, diversified, high quality portfolios
managed by expert external managers. Detailed Chubb group investment guidelines are established for each managed
portfolio including Chubb customised benchmarks against which the manager performance is measured.

AEGL maintains six active investment grade fixed income portfolios, the core currencies of which are sterling, euro and
US dollars.

Further passive portfolios are maintained in Switzerland and Turkey to meet local solvency requirements, AEGL also
allocates a limited proportion of funds available for investment to alternative strategies. These alternative strategies
include high-yield bonds, syndicated bank loans, private loans and global equities.

Funds allocated to alternative strategie;ks continued to fall comfortably within the established limits and the majority of
AEGL’s investments continued to be allocated to high quality, diversified, actively managed portfolios with exposure to a
broad range of sectors. Consistent with previous years, AEGL's investment guidelines and external manager positicning
continued to restrict exposure to peripheral Eurozone countries.

The approximate currency split of AEGL's investment portfolios is sterling 40%, US dollars 31% and euro 28%. Other
currency investments comprise approximately 1% of the total.
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Presentation of Financial Statements

The financial statements have been prepared under the provision of The Large and Medium-sized Companies and
Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 (“Si2008/410”) relating to insurance companies’ individual financial
statements and applicable accounting standards in the UK.

Key Performance Indicators

The following financial key performance indicators ("KPIS”) have been deemed relevant to the company’s business. These
KPIs are reviewed regularly by the AEGL Board.

£ million 2016 2015
Gross premiums written 2,388.0 2,200.5
Net premiums written 1,318.0 1,152.7
Combined ratio % * 92.5% 92.1%
Profit before tax 193.2 56.9

* Ratic of net claims incurred, commission and expenses to net premiums earned

The Board also monitors the capital needs of the company. Further details in this regard are set out in the ‘Financial
position’ section of this Strategic Report.

Management also use a variety of other performance indicators, including production volumes, retention raties, price
menitoring, loss and expense analyses, and operating metrics in assessing the performance of each of the business
segments. All financial results are monitored against plan, forecast and prior year on a regular basis.

Results & Performance

2016 produced a pre-tax operating prefit of £193.2 millipn and a combined ratio of g2.5%. A summary of the reported
financial results is shown in the following table.

£ million 2016 2015
Gross premiums written 2,388.0 é,zoo.s
Net premiums written 1,318.0 1,152.7
Net premiums earned 1,260.4 1,110.6
Incurred losses 586.9 512.5
Operating expenses - 578.7 510.3
Underwriting profit 94.8 87.8
Equalisation reserve movement (105.1} 6.3
Investment return 120.9 6.4
Net other income / (charges) ' (127.6) (31.0)
Net pre-tax profit 193.2  56.9
Combined ratio % 92.5% 92.1%
Rating Environment

Retail commercial P&C insurance pricing in the UK and Ireland remained competitive during the year, with most lines
experiencing single-digit rate reductions, Rating pressures were most pronounced on fire and technical lines renewals,
although pockets of improvement were experienced in the marine sector, As in previous years, pricing was less volatile in
the Continental Europe P&C markets and the overall price change on renewal business for the year was only marginally
negative. Business retention across the region remained strong and although competition for new business was fierce.
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There was no respite in competition for CGM’s wholesale business during the year, and a number of accounts were non-
renewed due to inadequate rating or terms. Overall pricing on renewal business was negative, driven by adverse rate
movements, notably within the aviation and energy portfolios.

There was also sustained pressure on pricing and acquisition costs in the traditional A&H markets, with competitors
increasingly willing to underwrite insurance business at aggressive combined ratios.

Conditions in the reinsurance market remained difficult as a consequence of over supply. Whilst the rate reductions were
not as pronounced as the previous years, the market seemed more concerned with top line share rather than bottom line
profitability.

All areas of the business experienced pressure on commission levels and fees. Brokers continued to push for increased
remuneration and new facilities inundate the market, making some accounts less mobile or more expensive to
underwrite. AEGL continues to leverage its position as a lead insurer to ensure that all commissions payable are justified
and bring additional value to the company.

Drivers of Underwriting Result

AEGL underwrites UK, Continental Europe, US and international business which is principally transacted in sterling,
euros and US dollars. For accounting purposes and within this report, the operating results of the business are presented
in sterling. The significant depreciation of sterling against other currencies, notably the euro and US dollar, during the
year has impacted the comparison of 2016 results against those of the prior year.

On an ‘as reported’ basis, gross written premiums increased by almost 9% in comparison to prior year. If the impact of
currency movements is excluded, top line growth was just over 1%, with increases in the SPL and Tempest Re businesses
offset by reductions in retail and wholesale P&C and A%H, primarily as a result of challenging market conditiens.

AEGL purchases reinsurance to mitigate the impact of major events and an undue frequency of smaller losses. A number
of the reinsurance programmes operated by AEGL during 2016 were with a Chubb company, Chubb Tempest
Reinsurance Ltd. AEGL also has the benefit, particularly for US and worldwide catastrophe exposures, of reinsurance
programmes shared with other Chubb entities, including Syndicate 2488 at Lloyd’s. These arrangements result in an
increase in the reinsurance purchasing power of Chubb, which ultimately benefits all subsidiaries, including AEGL. There
~ wereno significant changes to the company’s reinsurance purchasing strategy in 2016.

After relatively benign natural catastrophe loss experience over the past few years, 2016 was hit by a number of
devastating earthquakes and powerful storms. Global economic losses totalled approximately US$175 billion, with
insured losses estimated at US$50 billion’. AEGL’s exposure to large losses is managed by adherence to clear risk
management and underwriting guidelines and the use of reinsurance protection and sophisticated modelling and
analysis. The company’s catastrophe losses net of reinsurance recoveries and reinstatement premiums during 2016
amounted to.£6.8 million (2015: £4.4 million} with the most significant losses emanating from storms and fleoding in
the UK and Continental Europe, and hurricane activity in the US.

Prior period reserve releases were £54.1 million (2015: £90.7 million) with positive developments within a nu_mber of
classes, particularly Casualty and Financial Lines. Execluding catastrophe losses and prior peried development, the
current accident year loss ratio for the year was 50.3% (2015; 53.9%), demonstrating the strength of the underlying
business and the positive impact of the portfolic review process despite the sustained challenging conditions of the
insurance and reinsurance markets.

Operating expenses constitute commissions and general administrative expenses. AEGL continues to focus on the strict
management of each of these components in line with the growth of the business.

! Source: Munich Re press release, 4 January 2017
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Financial Markets Review

Volatility ebbed and flowed in 2016, with plummeting oil and commodity prices at the start of the year giving way to the
surprising outcomes of the UK’s Brexit referendum and the election of Donald Trump in the US. The year was also
defined by a divergence in economic policy, as the Federal Reserve (“Fed™) raised rales in December, while the European
Central Bank (“ECB”) continued easing.

Early in the year, global growth concerns in the midst of uncertainty from China, falling commaodity prices and questions
about the efficacy of central bank policies sparked a sell-off in risk assets. Despite the elevated volatility in financial
markets, the fundamental backdrop remained mostly intact and supportive central banks helped reignite risk appetite in
part with calming rhetoric and actions. The ECB announced additional easing measures in Europe, with a focus on credit
expansion. Also, concerns about global influences and financial conditions kept the Fed on hold, with the statement
suggesting a tolerance for overshooting their inflation target.

However, in late June, the unexpected outcome of the UK's Brexit referendum dominated headlines and market
movements. Departing from the prevalent trend that began in mid-Q1 and extending through much of June, volatility
began to rise as sovereign yields rallied significantly while risk assets generally underperformed. Still, the fundamental
backdrop remained mostly intact and expectations for further central bank easing helped anchor risk appetite. Steadier
commodity prices and fiseal stimulus in China helped bolster market sentiment, even as central banks remained on hold
ahead of the referendum. Softer-than-expected employment data pushed market expectations for the next Fed rate hike
out to 2018,

As the year progressed, markets sheok off the impact of the Brexit vote and volatility decreased. Central banks featured
prominently in the headlines as monetary policy concerns, in particular, the longevity of central bank support, lingered
beneath the seemingly benign market environment. The Bank of Japan’s “comprehensive review,” the ECB's inaction,
and the Fed’s solidifying path towards an eventual December rate hike all contributed to sovereign yields generally rising. -

Following the surprise election of Donald Trump, the market reaction was almost as surprising. In less than a day
following Trump’s decisive victory, volatility fell, equities rallied, credit spreads tightened and the dollar
strengthened. Meanwhile, rates rose dramatically as most markets focused on the pro-growth and inflationary potential
of expansionary fiscal policy, tax cuts, and deregulation. The risk seeking sentiment continued through December, even
as market participants absorbed the potentially damaging protectionist rhetoric of the incoming Trump administration,
leaving bond yields substantially higher than the low levels witnessed earlier in the year.

Investment Performance

Economic activity in 2016 provided a positive environment for fixed income investors. Yields on intermediate investment
grade bonds fell significantly during the year for sterling and euro denominated portfolios. For AEGL this resulted in
total returns in excess of 5.5% and 3.5% for sterling and euro mandates respectively. In the US, intermediate government
yields increased modestly and investment grade corporate yields were broadly unchanged in 2016. For AEGL, this
resulted in total returns of around 4% for US dollar investment grade mandates.

AEGL's alternative investment assets which constitute less than 14% of the total portfolio also generated strong absolute
returns during 2016. The bulk of this allocation relates to upper tier US dollar high yield bonds which returned over 11%
for the year. The modest allocations to equites, bank loans and private loans generated total returns of 9%, 7% and 10%

respectively,

Overall, AEGL generated a total return of 4.6% on balances available for investment during 2016.
Financial Position

Capital

AEGL maintains an efficient capital structure consistent with the company’s risk profile and regulatory and market
requirements.
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The company assesses its own capital needs on a detailed risk measurement basis, and then seeks to maintain financial
strength and capital adequacy to support business objectives and meet the requirements of policyholders, regulators and
rating agencies whilst retaining financial flexibility by ensuring liquidity.

Solvency II regulation came into force on 1 Jannary 2016. AEGL managed its capilal levels in 2016 in the context of the
Solvency II Standard Formula Solvency Capital Requirement and the Solvency IT Minimum Capital Requirement, which
computes capital levels based on European industry risk factors related to premiums, reserves and assets. AEGL
maintained capital throughout 2016 over and above the Solvency II Standard Formula Solvency Capital Requirement
with an additional margin. With shareholders’ funds of £1,397.5 million at year end 2016, the company continues to be
appropriately capitalised against each of these measures.

For internal purposes, AEGL assesses its risk profile and own capital requirements using an internal model which has
been developed to meet Solvency II requirements. The internal model is supported by a robust validation and governance
framework which ensures its ongoing appropriateness and is refined to reflect AEGL’s experience, changes in the risk
profile and advances in modelling methodologies. An Internal Model Steering Committee that reports into the AEGL
Executive Committee provides ongoing governance to ensure the Solvency II aspects are appropriately and continuously
embedded into AEGL business as usual operations.

Ratings

AEGL holds financial strength ratings of “A++" from A.M. Best and “AA” from Standard & Poor’s ("S&P”). Both ratings
have a stable outlook.

Governance

AEGL has a documented corporate governance framework, the purpose of which is to exercise oversight and control over
the management of the business.

The AEGL Board of Directors (“the Board”) has reserved responsibility for decisions in connection with a number of
matters, including those of a significant strategic, structural, capital, financial reporting, internal control, risk, policy or
compliance nature. The Board meets routinely six times a year and additionally on other occasions to discharge its
responsibilities in respect of these and other matters. In 2016 the Board met eleven times.

The Board comprises six independent non-executive directors and eight executive directors. In 2016 one executive and
one non-executive director left the Board and two new executive directors and one non-executive director joined.
Membership of the Board is kept under review to ensure that the composition and available expertise remains relevant to
the current needs of the company. In 2016, two of the appointed executive and non-executive directors that joined the
Board served also as directors of CICE; in an environment when the functions of the two companies were becoming
closely aligned this enabled AEGL to take advantage of existing board level experience of CICE's business model.

AEGL greatly values the contribution of its non-executive directors in providing contrasting insights, experience and
challenge in the Board's discussions. Details of director appointments and resignations can be found in the Directors’
Report on page 17.

Key non-routine Board activity during the year included, i) consideration of conduct risk contrel frameworks and
performance of the business and adoption of revised formal frameworks for customer and financial erime monitoring, ii)
formalisation of the high level underwriting control framework, iii) plans for integration of European entities via cross
border merger, iv) information security risk mitigation, v) assessment of the company’s approach to gauging its culture,
vi) consideration of the approach to capital management, vii) review of the status and effectiveness of integration of the
functions supporting both AEGL and CICE during the process of alighment of those two companies and viii)
consideration of the revision of certain policies in support of the alignment.

The Board received regular reports on the status of business results, business and function plans, resourcing,
developments in the risk and regulatory environments, on consumer conduct, regulatory compliance, actuarial and
solvency matters. One meeting was set aside to consider high-level business strategy.
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The Board has delegated a number of matters to committees. Each of the following committees has formal terms of
reference and matters reserved to it. Each, with the exception of the Executive Committee, Product Oversight Committee
and the Routine Business Committee, includes non-executive directors in its membership, and each reports to the Board
regularly in respect of its remit, The terms of reference of each Board commitiee were reviewed and refreshed in 2016,

Lul uot significantly amended.

The Audit Committee, which comprises exclusively non-executive directors, considers and makes recommendations to
the Board on areas including validation of solvency calculations, internal controls, financial reporting, whistleblowing,
actuarial matters and the external audit, It receives reports from the compliance, actuarial and finance functions and

Internal Audit on a quarterly basis.

In relation to the external audit process, the Committee monitors the nature and scope of work in the audit of the
statutory financial statements and other external reporting requirements. It meets regularly with the external Auditor

without management being present.

In the case of the internal audit function, the Committee’s role involves agreeing and monitoring, in conjunction with the
Group audit function, the nature and scope of work to be carried out by the internal audit team and the availability of
sufficient resources. The Audit Committee kept a close review of the Internal Audit resources during 2016 to ensure that
they remained adequate to carry out the annual audit plan for the year.

The Committee’s role is aimed at providing assurance to the Board and Chubb group management that the internal
control systems, agreed by executive management as bheing appropriate for the prudent management of the business, are
operating as designed. At all times the Audit Committee is expected to challenge any aspect of these processes which it
considers weak or generally poor practice.

During 2016 the Committee in particular reviewed the approach taken to validation of internal model results, and also
considered the effect on the finance and assurance functions of the integration of the company’s operations with those of
CICE.

The Board has delegated responsibility for the oversight and implementation of its risk management framework to the
Risk Committee, The Committee oversees and advises the Board on risk exposures, future risk strategy, the design and
implementation of the framework into the husiness on solvency and capital matters. It also ensures that business risks
and controls are recorded and monitored. It receives regular reports on the Company’s “Own Risk and Solvency
Assessment” metrics, required by Solvency II, which helps to provide an independent overview of management's
assessment of risk and a check against risk appetites agreed by the Board. ‘

During the year the Risk Committee’s non-routine activity inctuded: i) reviewing reports on the improvement being made
in cyber and information security and the development of the Cyber Risk Framework; ii) observations on the
implementation of the Conduct Risk Framework; iii} consideration of integration risk during the alignment of AEGL and
CICE systems and personnel and the impact to company culture; and iv) assessing the potential outcomes for the
UK/European Union referendum and subsequent implications to the Company’s operations.

The Product Oversight Committee provides organisation-wide consistent aversight in respect of conduct towards
customers, receiving management information in line with the revised customer conduct control framework. The
Committee’s members include senior management representatives including those for all major lines of business. Non-
Executive Directors are also invited to attend these meetings..

The remit of the Nominations Committee is to advise and recommend in connection with appointments to and the
structure of the Board, including diversity and independence of composition, Board evaluation, succession planning for
the non-executive directors and leadership needs.

The Executive Committee comprises all executive directors of AEGL and other members of the senior management
team. The primary role of the Committee is to oversee the day-to-day management of business operations and
performance, and to assist the President in implementing and overseeing operational strategies and decisions
determined by the Board. The Executive Committee is also responsible for the oversight of support function activities,
key steering groups and sub-committees including investment, internal model steering, credit risk, broker review,
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reserving, underwriting and project reporting. It meets monthly to oversee and discuss current issues. A number of
specialist sub-committees, such as those for broker credit control and reserving, report to the Executive Committee to
ensure that various aspects of the business are reviewed by a wide senior management group.

AEGL has a Routine Business Committee which meets on an ad hoc basis between formal Board meetings to

consider authorisation of routine activity.

Risk & Control Framework

The Chubb Group is a global underwriting franchise whose risk management obligation to stakeholders is simple: ensure
sufficient financial strength over the long term in order to pay policyholder claims while simultaneously building and
sustaining shareholder value.

The Chubb Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM”) strategy helps achieve the goal of building shareholder value by
systematically identifying, and then monitoring and managing, the various risks to the achievement of corporate business
objectives and thereby minimising potential disruptions that could otherwise diminish shareholder value or balance
sheet strength.

AEGL has adopted the Chubb Group Enterprise Risk Management Framework ("RMF”}, which describes the role of ERM
within AEGL and how it helps the company achieve its business objectives, meet its corporate obligations and maintain
the reputation of Chubb’s business. Chubb’s documented RMF is principles-based and sets out the organisational
framework for risk taking, monitoring and governance.

The RMF adopts a “three lines of defence” model, comprising day-to-day risk management and controls, risk
management oversight, and independent assurance.

The RMF identifies the key risks to which each business sector, and the company as a whole, is exposed, and their
resultant impact on economic and regulatory capital. This framework employs Solvency II principles to assess risk and
manage capital requirements to ensure the capital required to support AEGL’s business objectives and to meet the
requirements of policyholders, regulators and rating agencies is in place.

The AEGL Board is ultimately responsible for ensuring that the company operates within an established framework of
effective systems of internal control, including the approval of the overall risk tolerance for the organisation and
compliance with policies, procedures, internal controls and regulatory requirements.

The Board’s oversight of the RMF is effected through the various committees and functions with particular purposes and
direction around the meonitoring of risk tolerances and oversight of internal controls and compliance procedures. AEGL’s
risk management function has a strong mandate from the Board to promote the RMF and embed it throughout the
company.

The company's RMF was re-approved by the Board in 2016 together with 2 review of individual risk policies and risk
appetite statements which set out defined risk-tolerance constraints for the execution of the business strategy. All key
risk policies and procedures are subject to Board approval and ongoing review by executive management, the Risk
Committee and the internal audit function.

Principal Risks

The RMF classifies individual risk sources into four major categories: insurance, financial, operational and strategic.
Insurance is Chubb's primary risk category; the three other risk categories present an exposure primarily from that

assumption of insurance risk.

Other risks, including group risk and emerging risk are also considered. Risks associated with integration are actively
considered but are not considered to be a new risk source — rather an extension of previcusly identified risks.

Insurance Risk

The principal risks from AEGL’s insurance and reinsurance business arise from its underwriting activities, both
prospective and retrospective. Key risks include unexpected losses arising from inaccurate pricing, fluctuations in the
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timing, frequency and severity of claims compared to expectations, inadequate reinsurance protection and inadequate

reserving.

Underwriting risks and line sizes are continually monitored through the established peer review process and automated
exception reporting. Each underwriter is given an authority based on technical expertisc and experience to bind risks that
fall within specified classes of insurance and specified maximum limits. Formal price monitoring procedures have been
in place since early 2002 and form part of the standard monthly management statistics. These contribute to the quarterly
actuarial review whereby the loss outcome of the underwriting activity is continually re-assessed and considered by the
Reserve Sub-Committee.

With such a large and diverse book, it is vital that the company’s aggregate exposures are continually monitored and
adjustments made to the underwriting profile as appropriate. The company operates a dedicated catastrophe
management function independent of underwriting managefnent, whose responsibility is to model aggregate risk and
assist with the pricing of this risk, providing a key control to the underwriting process.

Reinsurance is used to help mitigate some of the above insurance risk. However, the possibility of reinsurance risk itself
arises when reinsurance purchasing proves inadequate in amount, fails to protect the underlying coverage or falls short
when the reinsurer fails to pay.

Financial Risk

Financial risk includes a wide range of risks associated with activities such as investments, credit, liquidity and the
impact of foreign exchange fluctuations:
e Investment risk includes the impact of market volatility on asset values attributable to such factors as interest
rate movements and / or price changes.
»  Credit risk arises from the possibility that the financial position of our counterparties deteriorates, and financial
loss in the event of creditor default.
« Liquidity risk refers to the possibility that cash or equivalents, coupled with operating cash flows, will be
insufficient to provide for claims payments to policyholders and other needs such as interest payments.
+ - Foreign exchange risk occurs when assets and liabilities are denominated in different currencies and
materialises when asset holdings are decreased or liabilities increased by exchange rate movements.

Other financial risk sources manifest themselves through an impact on asset values. Among these are investment risk due
to unanticipated interest rate movements having impacts on asset values, and asset-liability management risk when asset

values are insufficient or unavailable to pay liabilities when due.

AEGL has an investment strategy which is aligned with its underwriting liabilities. There are also defined investment
guidelines in respect of asset allocation, duration, liquidity and credit risk exposure with quality control around
investment portfolio management to ensure compliance with the set guidelines.

These risks are discussed in more detail in Note 2 to the financial statements.
Operational Risk

Operational risk is.the possibility of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people or systems, or
from external events other than those falling within strategic risk as defined below. Significant operational risk sources
include claims processing, IT security, outsourcing and vendor management, business continuity, fraud, and regulatory
compliance (including conduct risk).

AEGL seeks to ensure that it is not exposed to operational risk in excess of the risk appetite with mitigating strategies
including business continuity plans that have appropriate controls relating to key operational procedures and processes.

Strategic Risk

Strategic risk refers to the outcome from sub-optimal decisions that may be made or not made in respect of strategic
planning, execution of strategy or responsiveness to changes in industry or competitive landscapes.
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The AEGL Board is responsible for the management of strategic risks arising from the execution of both the strategic and
annua! plans. The Board also receives reports produced to monitor and track business performance against the approved

plan.

A key strategic risk continues to be the integration of AEGL with Chubh legal entities following the acquisition. The risks
associated with the integration will continue to be measured and monitored on an on-going basis using the Chubb RMF.

The strategic risks associated with the UK’s withdrawal from the EU were measured and monitored throughout 2016
using the Chubb RMF. Contingency plans are in place, where the risks associated will continue to be measured and

monitored on an on-going basis.
Other Risks

Group risks: This is the potential impact on the company of risks arising in other parts of the Chubb group. This could
include direct or indirect financial loss and operational, reputational or regulatory issues. As a strategically important
member of the Chubb group, the company uses group resources in a number of areas, including IT and asset
management, as well as reinsurance and capital support. Group risk is assessed, monitored and reported as part of the
company’s risk management processes. Additionally, intra-group arrangements are governed in an appropriate arms-
length manner. The intra-group arrangements involve formal contracts, equitable and transparent transfer pricing, and
full respect for the integrity thereof, as well as all laws and regulations facing the legal entities in question.

Emerging risks: An integral part of the risk management framework is the identification and assessment of emerging
risks. AEGL has defined emerging risks as any events, situations or trends that may arise within its internal and external
operating environment that could significantly impact the achievement of its corporate objectives in either the short or
long term. There is an internal system for the identification, assessment and monitoring of such risks with reports issued
to senior management including analyses which are often iterative in nature and conclude with recommended action
plans that can be implemented to minimise or otherwise manage the emerging risk.

Compliance

Compliance with regulation, legal and ethical standards is a high priority for Chubb and AEGL, and the compliance
function has an important oversight role in this regard. Annual affirmation of the Chubb Code of Conduct is required of
all employees and directors.

As a material subsidiary of Chubb Limited, a US listed company, the financial control environment in which the US
GAAP financial statements are derived is subject to the requirements of US Sarbanes-Oxley legislation. AEGL has
formalised documentation and tested controls to enable Chubb Limited to fulfil the requirements of the legislation,

AEGL is also committed to fulfilling its other compliance-related duties, including its observance of customer-focused
policies, in line with regulatory principles, and it uses various metrics to assess its performance.

The company employs a skilled and specialist workforce to manage its regulatory and compliance responsibilities and
aims to operate to a high standard. AEGL recognises and values its relationships with regulators in each of its
jurisdictions and engages in open dialogue and communication to address and resalve any issues.

Employees

Chubb is dedicated to providing a safe and ethical working environment for its employees and is fundamentally
committed to the creation of an inclusive, respectful and equitable workplace. Through its policies and practices for
recruitment, development, retention and promotion, AEGL seeks a diverse workforce that is effective in its local markets
and communities, and takes full advantage of a wide range of experiences and backgrounds.

Chubb is an equal opportunities employer and it is company policy to promote equality of opportunity and to avoid
unlawful discrimination in employment. The company seeks to create a workplace where all employees, agency staff and
contractors are treated appropriately, equitably and with dignity and respect.
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~ Chubb is an organisation dedicated to providing superior underwriting, service and execution, and seeks to foster an

environment of professional excellence that enables employees to be creative, agile, innovative and ethical in meeting
customers’ needs, whilst abigning personal development te the company's performance objectives. AEGL actively
supports the personal and professional development of all its employees and operates talent and leadership development
progranumues to help staff realise their full career potential. The company operates a performance management process
designed to allow each employee's performance to be objectively reviewed and measured so that AEGL can maximise
potential, motivate, celebrate success and set clear expectations of its employees that are aligned to the company’s

strategic aims.

Communication with employees is primarily effected through the corporate intranet and regular briefings and
presentations by Chubb Limited’s Chief Executive Officer and local senior management. . Information provided is
intended to present employees with key information on performance, strategy, market data and general information on
the company. Employees are also provided with opportunities to raise qﬁestions in each of these forums.

AEGL supports a wide range of activities that benefit the community through the Chubb International Foundatien and
the Chubb Community Support Committee, predominantly in the areas of education, poverty, health and the
environment. Employees also participate in a number of local voluntary community schemes and personal fundraising
efforts which AEGL supports through a charity-matching scheme.

Details of the number of employees and related costs can be found in note 8 to the financial statements.

Approved by the Board of Directors

M K Hammond

Chief Financial Officer
18 April 2017
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The directors are pleased to submit their report and the audited financial statements for the year to 31 December 2016.

Future Developments

Likely future developments in the business of the company are discussed in the Strategic Report.

Results and Dividends

The company made a profit on ordinary activities before tax for the year to 31 December 2016 of £193.2 million (2015:
£56.9 million).

Shareholders’ funds at the 31 December 2016 totalled £1,397.5 million (2015: £1,078.8 million).

An interim dividend of £100.0 million (2015: £Nil) was approved by the Board on 15 November 2016. The directors do
not propose a final dividend.

Employees

Staff based in the company’s branches outside the UK are directly employed by the company. Staff that support the UK
branch operations of the company are employed by an affiliate, ACE INA Services U.K. Limited. Their costs are included
in management recharges from this service company.

Directors

The following have been directors from 1 Januvary 2016 to the date of this report unless otherwise indicated:

Executive directors:

M K Hammond

D Jaksic (appointed 7 March 2016)

A J Kendrick

J Moghrabi

R P Murray

J U Rehman {(appointed 13 June 2016)

D P Robinson

A MW Shaw

K L H Underhill (resigned 21 January 2016)

Non-executive directors:

J A Napier

M Bailey

K N O’'shiel (appointed 14 November 2016)
A R Prindl (resigned 31 October 2016)

CE Riley

T C Wade

M J Yardley
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Qualifying third-party indemnity provisions (as defined by section 234 of the Companies Act 2006) are put in place for
the benefit of the directors and, at the date of this report, are in in force in relation to certain losses and liabilities which
they may incur (or have incurred) in connection with their duties, powers or office,

The company also has the benefit of a group insurance company management activities policy effected by Chubb Limited.
No charge was made to the company during the year for this policy.

Financial Risk Management

Information on the use of financial instruments by the company apd its management of financial risk is disclosed in note
2 to the financial statements, In particular the company’s exposures to interest rate risk, equity price risk, currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk are separately disclosed in that note. The company’s exposure to cash flow risk is addressed
under the headings of “Credit risk” and “Liquidity risk”.

Branches Qutside the UK

In addition, to the UK headquarters, the company has a further 19 branches across Europe.

Statement as to Disclosure of Information to Auditors

Each of the persons who is a director at the date of this report confirms that:
1. so far as he or she is aware, there is no information relevant to the audit of the company’s financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2016 of which the auditors are unaware, and
2. the director has taken all steps that he or she ought to have taken in his duty as a director in order to make
himself or herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditors are
aware of that information.

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, Directors’ Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors
have prepared the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
(United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and
of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

.. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
. make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;
. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the company’s website. Legislation in the United
Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other

jurisdictions.
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Auditors

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, will continue to hold office in accordance with Section 487 of the
Companies Act 2006.

By Order of the Board

M L Mellor

for and on behalf of

Chubb Londen Services Limited
Secretary, 18 April 2017

100 Leadenhall Street

London
EC3A 3BP
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Report on the financial statements

Our opinion
In our opinion, ACE European Group Limited’s financial statements (the “financial statements™):

« give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2016 and of its profit for the year

then ended;
= have beer properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Aceounting Practice; and
s have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

What we have audited
The financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Financial Statements (the “Annual Report™), comprise:

¢ the Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2016;

e the Profit and Loss account and the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year then ended;

» the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended; and

* the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statements is United Kingdom

Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland”, and applicable law (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In applying the financial reporting framework, the directors have made a number of subjective judgements, for example in
respect of significant accounting estimates. In making such estimates, they have made assumptions and considered future

events.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

= the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

» the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal

requirements.

In addition, in light of the Imowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we are required to report if we have identified any material misstatements in the
Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report. We have nothing to report in this respect.

Other matters on which we are reguired to report by exception

Adequacy of aceounting records and information and explanations received

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

« adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

¢ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.
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Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, certain disclosures of directors’
remuneration specified by law are not made. We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Responstbhilities for the financial statements and the audit
Our responsibilities and those of the directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 18, the directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (“ISAs (UK & Ireland}”). Those standards require us to comply with
the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no cther purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept
or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

What an audit of financial statements involues

We conducted our audit in accordance with ISAs (UK & Ireland). An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of:

+ whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s circumstances and have been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed;

» the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors; and

» the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We primarily focus our work in these areas by assessing the directors’ judgements against available evidence, forming our
own judgements, and evaluating the disclosures in the financial statements.

We test and examine information, using sampling and other auditing techniques, to the extent we consider necessary to
provide a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions. We obtain audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of
controls, substantive procedures or a combination of both.

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report to identify material inconsistencies
with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or
materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any
apparent materia]l misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report. With respect to the
Strategic Report and Directors’ Report, we consider whether those reports include the disclosures required by applicable
lepal requirements.

Nick Wilks (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

18 April 2017
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2016 2015
) Note £000 £°000

Technical account —general business
Earti¢d premiums, net of reinsurance:
Gross premiums written — continuing operations 3 2,390,113 2,202,229

— discontinued operations 3 (2,162) (1,740)
Gross premiums written 3 2,387,951 2,200,489
Outward reinsurance premiums *{1,069,964) (1,047,747)
Net premiums written 1,317,987 1,152,742
Change in the gross provision for unearned premiums (59,207) (36,721)
Change in the provision for unearned premiums — reinsurers’ share 1,633 (5,406)
Earned premiums, net of reinsurance 1,260,413 1,110,615
Claims incurred, net of reinsurance:
Claims paid:
Gross amount 3 (1,272,709) (1,186,461)
Reinsurers” share 662,328 614,621
Net paid claims (610,381) (571,840)
Change in the provision for claims outstanding
Gross amount 3 (111,081) 16,294
Reinsurers’ share 134,540 43,028
Change in the net provision for claims outstanding 23,459 59,322
Claims incurred, net ¢f reinsurance (586,922) (512,518)
Net operating expenses 5 (578,676) (510,260)
Change in the equalisation provision 21 105,102 (6,260)
Balance on the technical account for general business 199,917 81,577
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2016 2015

Note £000 £:000
Non-technical account
Balance on the technical account for general business 199,917 81,577
Investment income ] 9 96,220 95,555
Unrealised. gains on investments 9 921,934 10,976
Investment expenses and charges 9 (41,401) (16,450)
Unrealised losses on investments 9 (25,841) (83,705)
Foreign exchange differences . (126,884) (30,509)
Other expenses (721) (538)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 193,224 56,906
Continuing operations 197,314 60,251
Discontinued operations (4,090) (3,345)
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities 10 (32,841) (24,133)
Profit for the financial year 160,383 32,773

There is no difference between the profit on ordinary activities before taxation and the profit for the financial year for the
current or prior year and their historical cost equivalents.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 December 2016

2016 2015

Note - £'000 £7000
Profit for the financial year 160,383 32,773
Currency translation differences 259,640 42,411
Actuarial (loss) / gain recognised in relation to p ension schemes (772) 2,192
M ovement on deferred taxation relating to pension liability (553) {584)

Total comprehensive income for the year : 418,698 76,792
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2016 2015
Note £'000 £°000
Assets
Investumenls
Other financial investments 12 2,997,692 2,649,456
Financial derivative instruments 12 745 1,233
2,998,437 2,650,689
Reinsurers’® share of technical provisions
Provision for unearned premiums 19 365,539 344,592
Provision for claims outstanding 19 2,446,397 2,104,517
2,811 936 2,449,109
Debtors — amounts falling due within one year
Debtors arising out of direct insurance operations:
amounts owed by policy holders 33,395 30,414
amounts owed by intermediaries 489,969 399,933
Debtors arising out of reinsurance operations 244,801 226,762
Other debtors 13 58,719 104,093
826,884 761,202
Other assets
Intangble assets 15 50,951 -
Tangible assets ) 16 3,593 4,089
Cash at bank and in hand 2 60,209 63,274
114,753 67,363
Prepayments and accrued income
Accrued interest and rent 35,597 33,157
Deferred acquisition costs 19 164,912 129,213
Other prepayments and accrued income 309 602
200,818 162,972
Total assets 6,952,828 6,091,335
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BALANCE SHEET
at 31 December 2016
2016 2015
Note £000 £°000
Liabilities ’
Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital 18 544,741 544,741
Profit and loss account 827,067 508,369
M erger reserve 25,653 25,653
Total sharecholders® funds 1,397,461 1,078,763
Technical provisions -
Provision for unearned premiums 19 929,851 801,868
Provision for claims outstanding . 19 4,085,881 3,656,716
Equalisation provisian 21 - 105,102
5,015,732 4,563,686
Deposits received from reinsurers 7,892 6,263
Creditors — amounts falling due within one year
Creditors arising out of direct insurance operations 20,863 15,095
Creditors arising out of reinsurance operations 253,872 187,179
Bank overdraft o 2 51,821 74,500
Other creditors including raxation and social security 20 107,239 94,583
433,795 371,357
Other financial liabilities 12 742 495
Accruals and deferred income
Deferred acquisition costs relating to reinsurance 19 40,191 31,792
Other accruals and deferred income 48,769 29,415
88,960 61,207
Total liabilities excluding pension liability 6,944,582 6,081,771
Pension liability 17 8,246 9,564
Total liabilities 6,952,828 6,091,335

The notes on pages 27 to 53 are an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 22 to 53 were approved by the Board of Directors on 18 April 2017 and were signed
on its behalf by:

M K Hammond
Chief Financial Officer
18 April 2017
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2016
Cailed-up Merger  Profit and
. Total
share capital reserve loss account

Note £°000 £000 £000 £7000
At 1 January 2015 544,741 25,653 431,577 1,001,971
Profit for the financial year 32,773 32,773
Other comprehensive income:
Curmrency translation differences - - 42,411 42 411
Actuarial pin tecognised in relation to pension schemes - - 2,192 2,192
Movement on deferred taxation relating to pension liability - - (584) (584)
Dividends paid on equity shares 11 - - - .
As 31 December 2015 544,741 25,653 508,369 1,078,763
Profit for the financial year 160,383 160,383
Other comprehensive income:
Currency translation differences - - 259,640 259,640
Actuarial loss recognised in relation to pension schemes - - (772) (772)
Meovement on deferred taxation relating to pension Hability - - (553) (553)
Dividends paid on equity shares 1 - - (100,000) (100,000)
As 31 December 2016 544,741 25,653 827,067 1,397,461
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 '

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

ACE European Group Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in the United Kingdom. The financial
stalemments have been prepared under the provision of The Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts
and Reports) Regulations 2008 (“S12008/410") relating to insurance companies’ individual financial statements and
applicable accounting standards in the United Kingdom, including Financial Reporting Standard FRS 102, “The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland” (“FRS 102") and Financial Reporting
Standard FRS 103, “Insurance Contracts” (“FRS 103”).

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated. The company has adopted FRS
102 and FRS 103 in these financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, under the
historical cost convention modified to include the revaluation of certain financial assets and liabilities. The company is a
wholly owned subsidiary within the Chubb Limited group and is included within the consclidated financial statements of
Chubb Limited, which are publicly available. Consequently, the company has taken advantage of the exemption from
preparing a cash flow statement and disclosing details of share-based payments under the terms of FRS 102.

Continuing and discontinued operations

Discontinued operations include business underwritten by ACE European Group Limited (“AEGL”) prior to its
reauthorisation by the Financial Services Authority (“FSA”) in 2003. This business included UK marine and aviation
business underwritten until 1994, accident and health business underwritten until 1995 and United States surplus lines
business underwritten until 1998. Following the group reconstruction in 2005 (see the Statement of changes in equity);
discontinued operations now also include marine and aviation business underwritten by Chubb Insurance S.A-N.V. in
the London market prior to 1999. All other operations are classified as continuing,.

Premiums written

Premiums written, which are stated gross of brokerage but exclusive of premium taxes, relate to business incepted during
the year, together with adjustments made in the year to premiums written in prior accounting periods. Estimates are
made of pipeline premiums, representing amounts due but not yet received or notified to the company by intermediaries.

Unearned premiums

Unearned premiums represent the propertion of premiums written in the year that relate to unexpired terms of policies
in force at the balance sheet date, calculated on the basis of established risk profiles or time apportionment as
appropriate.

Acquisition costs

Acquisition costs comprise brokerage, commissions and other related expenses, and are deferred over the period in
which the related premiums are earned.

Claims incurred

Claims incurred comprise the estimated cost of all claims oceurring during the year, whether reported or not, including
related direet and indirect expenses and adjustments to claims outstanding from previous years. Where applicable,
deductions are made for reinsurance, salvage and other recoveries.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Provision for claims outstanding and related reinsurance recoveries

The provision for claims outstanding is assessed on an individual case basis and is based on the cstimated ultimate cyst
of all claims notified but not settled by the balance sheet date, together with the provision for related claims handling
costs. The provision also includes the estimated cost of claims incurred but net reported (“IBNR”) at the balance sheet
date based on statistical methods.

These methods generally involve projecting from past experience of the development of claims over time to form a view
of the likely ultimate claims to be experienced for more recent underwriting, having regard to variations in the business
accepted and the underlying terms and conditions. For the most recent years, where a high degree of volatility arises
from projections, estimates may be based in part on output from rating and other models of the business accepted and
assessments of underwriting conditions. The amount of salvage and subrogation recoveries is separately identified and,
where material, reported as an asset.

The reinsurers’ share of the provision for claims outstanding is based on the amounts of outstanding claims and
projections for IBNR, net of estimated irrecoverable amounts, having regard to the reinsurance programsme in place for
the class of business, the claims experience for the year and the current security rating of the reinsurance companies
involved, A number of statistical methods are used to assist in making these estimates.

The two most critical assumptions as regards the provision for claims outstanding are that the past is a reasonable
predictor of the likely level of claims development, and that the rating and other models used for current business are fair
reflections of the likely level of ultimate claims to be incurred.

The directors consider that the provision for gross claims outstanding and related reinsurance recoveries is fairly stated
on the basis of the information currently available to them. However, the ultimate hability will vary as a result of
subsequent information and events and this may result in significant adjustments to the amounts provided. Adjustments
to the amounts of claims provisions established in prior years are reflected in the financial statements for the period in
which the adjustments are made. The methods used, and the estimates made, are reviewed regularly.

When calculating the provision for claims outstanding, the reported business segments are subject to specific issues, as

set out below:

Fire and other damage to property; marine, aviation and transport; accident and health

These business segments are predominantly “short tail”; that is, there is not a significant delay between the occurrence of
the claim and the claim being reported to the company. The costs of claims notified to the company at the balance sheet
date are estimated on a case by case basis to reflect the individual circumstances of each clairn. The ultimate expected
cost of claims is projected from this data by reference to statistics, which show how estimates of claims incurred in
previous periods have developed over time to reflect changes in the underlying estimates of the cost of notified claims

and late notifications.

Third party lability (including marine and aviation liability)

Liability elaims are longer tail than the classes of business described above and so a larger element of the provision for
claims outstanding relates to IBNR. Claims estimates for the company’s liability business are derived from a combination
of loss ratio based estimates and an estimate based upon actual claims experience using a predetermined formula
whereby greater weight is given to actual claims experience as time passes. The initial estimate of the loss ratio, based on
the experience of previous years adjusted for factors such as premium rate changes and claims inflation, and on the
anticipated market experience, is an important assumption in this estimation technique. In respect of liability claims, the
assessment of claims inflation and anticipated market experience is particularly sensitive to the level of court awards and
to the development of legal precedent on matters of contract and tort. The liability class of business is also subject to the
emergence of new types of latent claims but no allowance is included for this as at the balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Pravisions for claims outstanding and related reinsurance recoveries ~ continued

Retnsurance acceptances

This business segment includes both short tail and long tail business, and is subject to the issues laid out in the preceding

two sections above.

Asbestos, pollution and health claims ("APH”)

The company has some exposure to APH from its discontinued operations. There may be a long delay between the
occurrence and notification of these types of claim. In estimating the cost of claims the company considers the type of
risks written historically that may give rise to exposure to these risks, notifications received from pelicyholders, the
nature and extent of the cover provided, the current legal environment, changes in the effectiveness of clean up
techniques and industry benchmarks of the typical cost of claims of this kind and of total expected insured losses. The
company is protected by way of a stop loss agreement with a fellow group undertaking from any adverse development
arising from such exposures in its marine and aviation account for 1991 and prior years.

Unexpired risks provision

A provision for unexpired risks is made where claims and related expenses arising after the end of the financial period in
respect of contracts concluded before that date, are expected to exceed the unearned premiums and premiums receivable
under these contracts, after the deduction of any acquisition costs deferred. The provision for unexpired risks is
calculated by reference to classes of business which are managed together, after taking into account relevant investment

return.
Equalisation provision

From 1 January 2016, the requirement for UK insurers to maintain equalisation provisions was removed from the PRA
Rulebook, and the requirements to maintain equalisation provisions under Council Directive 87/343/EEC were repealed
by the Solvency II Directive.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised when they are approved by the Board of Directors.

Financial Assets and Liabilities

The company recognises a financial asset or a financial liability on its balance sheet when it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. On initial recognition the company determines the categery of financial
instrument and values it accordingly. The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments are acquired.

Investments — fair value through profit and loss

A financial asset is classified into this category at inception if they are acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the short term, if they form part of a portfolio of financial assets in which there is evidence of short-term profit-taking, or
if so designated to minimise any measurement or recognition inconsistency with the associated liabilities.

Financial assets designated as fair value through profit and less are initially recognised at fair value with any transaction
costs being expensed through the profit and loss account. For quoted investments where there is an active market, the
fair value is their quoted bid price at the balance sheet date. For quoted investments where there is no active market, the
fair value is determined by reference to prices for similar assets in active markets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ,
31 December 2016

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Realised gains and losses and unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are included in the profit and loss account in the period in which they arise.

Cash at bank and in hand and bank overdrafts

Cash at bank and in hand is cash in hand and deposits repayable on demand. Deposits are repayable on demand if they
can be withdrawn at any time without notice and without penalty or if a maturity or peried of notice of not more than 24
hours or one werking day has been agreed. Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand.

Insurance and other receivables

Insurance and other receivables are recognised at fair value less any provision for impairment. Any impairment of a
receivable will be recognised if there is evidence that the company will not be able to collect the amounts receivable
according to the original terms of the receivable.

Derivative financial instruments
The company has chosen to apply the disclosure requirements of FRS 102 in respect of financial instruments.

Derivative financial instruments are measured on initial recognition, and subsequently, at fair value, The gain or loss on
remeasurement to fair value is recognised immediately in the profit and loss account. Fair values are obtained from
quoted market prices in active markets, including recent market transactions, and valuation techniques as appropriate.
All derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

The fair value of interest rate swaps is the estimated amount that the company would receive or pay to terminate the
swap at the balance sheet date, taking into account current interest rates and the current creditworthiness of the swap
counterparties. The fair value of forward exchange contracts is their quoted market price at the balance sheet date.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet only when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultanecusly.

Purchases and sales of securities and currencies are recognised on trade date — the date on which the company commits
to purchase or sell the asset.

Stock lending

The company is party to a securities lending agreement under which securities are lent to third parties on a short-term
basis with collateral provided in return. The securities lent are not derecognised; rather they continue to be recognised
within the appropriate investment classification.

Where the company is provided with collateral in the form of cash, it may hold the cash or reinvest it in other financial
investments. The company recognises the cash or investments and the related obligation to return such collaterzl in the
company’s balance sheet.

Investment return

Investment return comprises all investment income, realised investment gains and losses and movements in unrealised
gains and losses, net of investment expenses, charges and interest. FRS 102 requires that, for insurance entities, both
realised and unrealised investment gains and losses be included as part of investment return in the profit and loss
account. Dividends are recorded on the date on which the shares are quoted ex-dividend. Interest and expenses are

accounted for on an accruals basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 ‘

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Realised gains and ]osse; on investments carried at fair value are calculated as the difference between net sale proceeds
and purchase price. Movements in unrealised gains and losses on investments represent the difference between the
valuation at the balauce sheet date and their purchase price or, if they have previously been revalued, their valuation at
the last balance sheet date, together with the reversal of unrealised gains and losses recognised in earlier accounting
periods in respect of investment disposals in the current period.

Stock lending fees are recognised as earned on a pro rata basis over the period of lending.

Intangible assets

Amortisation is provided on all intangible fixed assets to write off their cost on a straight line basis over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Computer software . Up to 12 years

Tangible assets

Tangible assets are capitalised and depreciated by equal annual instalments over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Land and buildings ' Over the shorter of the lease term or 50 years
Motor vehicles 4 years

Leasehold improvements QOver the remaining period of the lease
Fixtures and fittings 5 years

Computer, office equipment and software up to 5 years

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is recognised as a liability or asset if transactions have occurred at the balance sheet date that give rise
to an obligation to pay more tax in future, or a right to pay less tax in future. An asset is not recognised to the extent that
the transfer of economic benefits in future is uncertain. Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised are not discounted.

Operating leases

Rents payable under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account as incurred over the lease term.

Pension costs

The company operates a small number of funded defined benefit pension schemes in Europe with assets held in separate
trustee-administered funds. The pension asset or liability recognised in the balance sheet is the value of the schemes’
assets less the present value of the schemes’ liabilities.

The pension cost for the schemes is analysed between current service cost, past service cost and net expected return on
pension schemes. Current service cost is the actuarially calculated present value of the benefits earned by the active
employees in each period. Past service costs, relating to employee service in prior periods arisixig in the current period as
a result of the introduction of, or improvement to, retirement benefits, are recognised in the profit and loss account on a
straight-line basis over the period in which the increase in benefits vest.

Net expected return comprises the expected return on the pension scheme assets less interest on scheme liabilities.

The actuarial gains and losses which arise from valuations and from updating the latest actuarial valuations to reflect
conditions at the balance date are taken to the statement of comprehensive income for the period. The attributable
deferred taxation is shown separately in the statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Foreign currencies

AEGL operates as a number of branches, each of which conducts business in a variety of transactional currencies. These
branches include both UK and overseas insurance operations and centralised treasury operations. Each of the branches is

designated a functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for, in functional currency, at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the
transactions. Gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions, from translating such transactions into
the functional currency of the branch, and from the revaluation to year end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities, are recognised in the profit and loss account.

At each period end foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate. For this purpose all assets and
liabilities arising from insurance contracts (including unearned premiums, deferred acquisition costs and unexpired risks
provisions) are monetary items. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rate
at the date of the transaction and non-monetary items measured at fair value are measured using the exchange rate when
fair value was determined.

Results of branches, recorded in their functional currency, are translated into sterling at average rates of exchange while
assets and liabilities are translated to sterling at year end exchange rates. Differences arising on translation are recorded
in the statement of comprehensive income.

2, CAPITAL MANAGEMENT & FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Capital management

AEGL assesses its capital needs on a risk management basis and maintains an efficient capital structure consistent with
the company’s risk profile and business requirements, and to meet regulatory requirements. The company then seeks to
maintain financial strength and capital adequacy to support business growth and meet the requirements of policyholders,
rating agencies and regulators, whilst retaining financial flexibility by ensuring substantia levels of liquidity. Once the
capital needs have been met, it is the policy of the company to distribute any surplus capital through dividends to its
ultimate parent company.

From a prudential perspective, AEGL is regulated by the PRA and is subject to insurance solvency regulations which
specify the minimum amount and type of capital that must be held. Solvency II regulation came into force on 1 January
2016. AEGL manages its capital levels in the context of the Solvency II Standard Formula Solvency Capital Requirement
and the Solvency II Minimum Capital Requirement, which computes capital levels based on European industry risk
factors related to premiums, reserves and assets, The company performs tests and controls to ensure continuous and futl
compliance with the Solvency II regulations. :

The primary objectives of the company in managing capital can be summarised as follows:

+  to satisfy the requirements of its policyholders, regulators and rating agencies;

+  to match the profile of its assets and liabilities, taking account of the risks inherent in the business;
+  to manage exposures to key risks;

* to maintain financial strength to support new business growth;

=  to retain financial flexibility by maintaining strong liquidity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

2, CAPITAL MANAGEMENT & FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT — continued

Insurance risk

Insurance risk arises from fluctuations in the frequency and/or severity of claims. The eompany mitigates this risk by
maintaining underwriting discipline throughout its operations. This policy is supported by each strategic business unit’s
underwriting guidelines, expertise and appropriate authority limits. These guidelines are updated regulazly to reflect
developments in the nature of the insurance risks being underwritten. The company also uses a reinsurance programme
to manage its insurance risk by providing cover against certain large exposures.

Sensttivity to insurance risk

As highlighted in Note 1, there is inherent uncertainty in the ultimate cost of claims for which the company uses a variety
of different actuarial techniques to estimate the provision for claims outstanding. If the net claims ratio for the year had
been higher by 1%, then the profit for the financial year would have been lower by £12.6 million (2015: £11.1 million) and
shareholders’ funds would have been lower by £12.6 million (2015: £11.1 million). If the net claims ratio had been lower
by 1%, then the profit for the financial year would have been higher by £12.6 million (2015: £11.1 million) and
shareholders’ funds would have been higher by £12.6 million (2015: £11.1 million).

Concentrations of insurance risk

As set out in Note 3, the company writes a diverse book of business across a number of underwriting classes.
Approximately 30% of the gross written premiums for 2016 (2015: 30%) related to fire and other damage to property
insurance, with the remainder split across a number of other classes.

Geographically, 55.9% (2015: 55%) of gross premiums written in 2016 relates to risks within continental Europe, with the
remainder being spread across the United Kingdom, Asia Pacific, the United States of America, Aftrica & Middle East and
Latin America. '

Financial risk management objectives

The company is exposed to a range of financial risks through its financial assets and financial liabilities. The most
important components of this financial risk are market risk (including interest rate risk, equity price risk and currency
risk), liquidity risk and credit risk.

These financial risks principally arise from the investment activity of the business and consequent holdings in fixed
income investments, all of which are exposed to general and specific market movements. The underwriting activity of the
business also generates finaneial risk, particularly in the form of currency risk as well as liquidity and credit risk through
its insurance and reinsurance receivables and payables.

The notes below explain how financial risks are managed. The processes used to manage these risks are unchanged from
previous periods, and cover areas such as investment activity through stochastic modelling of the portfolio, within its
internal capital model and consequent capital requirements.

Investment activity governance

The company operates an Investment Committee which functions under terms of reference determined by the Executive
Committee of the Board. The Committee is charged with establishing and effecting an appropriate investment policy for
the company having regard to the financial risk appetite of the company. In addition, the Commiitee has the

" responsibility for recommending the appointment and removal of investment managers, for reviewing the managers’
performance and for reporting on all other material aspects of the investment function.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

2, CAPITAL MANAGEMENT & FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

The Investment Committee comprises senior Chubb management and is chaired by the Chief Executive Officer of ACE
Asset Management, the group’s investment specialists who provide advisory services to Chubb group companies
including AEGL. The Committee also includes the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of the

company.

The investment management function is outsourced to specialist external managers.

Asset allocation policy

The Investment Committee has established a broad asset allocation policy which defines the limits for different asset
types. The asset allocation policy cites two major asset classes: investment grade fixed incotmne securities and alternative
assets. Alternative assets can include equities, high-yield and emerging market instruments. The policy stipulates a
target range of between 75% and 100% for investment grade fixed income securities and a range of between 0% and 25%
for alternative asset classes. The current allocation to alternative assets sits at the mid of the target range, however, the
position is regularly reviewed by the Investment Committee.

Investment guidelines

Investment management agreements have been established with the external investment managers. The agreements
include specific guidelines for each individual portfolic in order to limit risks arising from duration, equity price,
currency, liquidity, credit and counterparty exposures. The managers provide quarterly affirmation of compliance with

these guidelines.

Interest rate risk

The company is exposed to interest rate risk primarily through its investments in fixed interest securities and, to the
extent that claims inflation is correlated to interest rates, its liabilities to policyholders. Interest rate risk arises in the
fixed income investment portfolio primarily through instrument duration. Accordingly, the investment guidelines include
restrictions relating to the maximum weighted average duration of the portfolic. The restriction is stated by reference to
the permissible duration variance compared to the customised benchmark index by which the external investment

managers’ performance is assessed.

Sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk illustrates how changes in the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates at the reporting date. To illustrate the downside risk
within the fixed interest portfolio of £2,870 million at external managers as at 31 December 2016 (2015; £2,563 million),
an increase of 100 basis points in interest yields across all portfolios consecutively (principally sterling, euro and US
dollars) has been calculated. Such an increase would decrease the market value of the investment portfolio and lead to a
decrease in the total investment return of £133.8 million and accordingly decrease total shareholders’ funds by £107.0

million.

Equity price risk

The company is exposed to equity price risk as a result of its holdings in equity investments, classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit and loss.

The risk in respect of equities is moderated through the asset allocation policy which limits the allocation to equities. The
investment guidelines restrict individual equity holdings relative to the size of the portfolio and the benchmark
constituents.

All equity holdings of £42.2 million (2015: £33.4 million) are listed and represent 1% (2015: 1%) of the total investment
portfolio. If the value of all equity markets in which the company invests decreased by 10%, with all other variables held
constant, the total investment return would decrease by £4.2 million and the total shareholders’ funds would decrease by
£4.,2 million.
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2. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT & FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT — continued

Currency risk

The company is primarily exposed to currency risk in respect of assets ang liabilities under policics of insurance
denominated in currencies other than sterling. The company maintains various currency balances generated through
regular business activity but the majority of the funds held are denominated in sterling, euros and US dollars. The
company policy seeks to ensure that an approximate currency match of assets and liabilities is maintained, with the bulk
of surplus funds held in sterling, euros and US dollars.

Any component of the shareholders' funds denominated in currencies other than sterling gives rise to currency risk due
to exchange rate volatility relative to sterling.

The company is also exposed to currency risk in the investment portfolio as the investment guidelines allow the managers
to invest a portion of the individual portfolios in securities not denominated in the designated core currency of the
portfolio. However, the investment management agreements stipulate that the majority of any exposure to non-core
currencies must be hedged, thus matching the risk. These allocations to non-core currencies are included within the
quarterly evaluation of the currency alignment reviewed by the Investment Committee.

The accounting policy for foreign currencies is stated in note 1 to the financial statements. Profit and loss results
pertaining to foreign branches are translated to sterling using the average rates of exchange for the year. Balance sheet
components (monetary assets and liabilities) are translated to sterling using the rates of exchange at year end.

For the profit and loss account, the 2016 average euro/sterling rate of €1.238/£1 is down on the prior period (2015:
€1.5375/£1) and the US dollar/sterling rate of US$1.375/£1 is down on the prior period (2015: US$1.539/£1). If sterling
weakened by 10% against all currencies (primarily the euro and US dollar) and all other variables remained constant, the
profit before tax for the year would have been £10.7 million less than the amount reported. This amount is calculated as
10% of the profits arising from non-sterling business. This is significantly lower than the actual foreign exchange loss in
the current period as a result of various inter-branch currency balances that are in the process of being re-aligned. As a
consequence, foreign exchange gains or losses in the profit and loss account are in the future expected to be less sensitive
to changes in currency exchange rates.

For the monetary components of the balance sheet, the year-end rates used to convert euro to sterling have decreased by
12.7% to €1.191/£1 and US dollar to sterling has decreased 15% to US$1.266/£1 (2015: €1.364/£1 and US$1.48¢9/£1).
Assuming sterling had weakened by 10% against all currencies (primarily the euro and US dollar} and all other variables
remained constant, the effect of translating year end foreign branch net assets based on these parameters would have
resulted in decreased shareholders’ funds of £87.6 million, which would have appeared as a loss in the statement of
comprehensive income,

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the rigk that the company is unable tc meet its obligations as they fall due. To counter this risk,'the
company aims to maintain funds in the form of cash or cash equivalents to meet known cash flows. In addition, the asset

allocation policy and the investment guidelines are structured in order to ensure that funds are predominantly held in
investment grade fixed income securities, the proceeds of which are readily realisable.

AFEGL participates in a notional pooling programme with other Chubb group companies under a facility operated by Bank
Mendes Gans, a subsidiary of ING, which specialises in global liquidity management. The facility operates by the
notional pooling of designated balances of the Chubb group participants in order to provide additional liquidity. Chubb
group participants may overdraw individual account balances to fund immediate short term needs against credit
balances held elsewhere within the pool. On this basis, AEGL maintained an overdraft of £51.8 million at year end (2015:
£74.5 million) and credit balances of £60.2 million (2015: £63.3 million) as presented on the balance sheet.

The company also benefits from letter of credit facilities which can be utilised to meet certain funding needs and notional
pooling facilities with other Chubb group companies which serve to provide additional liquidity.
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2. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT & FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

As indicated in the balance sheet, the company's financial liabilities are all payable within one year. Non-derivative
financial liabilities with contractual maturities are payable within normal terms of trade, which is on average 60 days.
Non-derivative financial liabilities with contractual maturities are limited to reinsurance premiums payable and expense
accruals, Derivative financial liabilities at the balance sheet date have remaining contractual maturities of £0.00 million
within 1 month, £0.27 million between 1 and 3 months, £nil between 3 months and 1 year and £0.47 million after more
than one year, '

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when due. The company is exposed to
credit risk through its investment activity and its insurance operations.

Credit risk — investment

The company is exposed to investment credit and price risk as a result of its holdings in fixed income and equity
investments. The risk in respect of fixed income investmments is moderated by the application of detailed investment
guidelines which limit the size of holdings with individual issuers, restrict duration and dictate minimum credit quality,
both for individual heldings and for the aggregate weighted portfolio.

The average credit quality of investment portfolios using Standard and Poor’s ratings remained high throughout the year
and at year end was “A”, This is comparable to the previous year (“A”). AEGL had £42.2 million equity holdings at 2016
year end (2015: £33.4 million).

The risk in respect of equities is moderated through the asset allocation policy which limits the allocation to equities. The
investment guidelines restrict individual equity holdings relative to the size of the portfolio and the benchmark

constituents.

The investment guidelines seek to limit the credit risk of each of the portfolios through specifying eligible/ineligible
investments; setting maximum counterparty exposures and minimum weighted credit quality and individual issuer credit
quality; and requiring collateral and indemnity arrangements for stock lending transactions.

The company engages in a securities lending program from which it generates net investment income from the lending of
certain of its investments to other institutions for short periods of time. The value of securities loaned is limited to 40%
of the company’s aggregate portfolio. Collateral is provided against the market value of the loaned securities. The market
value is monitored on a daily basis with additional collateral obtained or refunded as the market value of the loaned

securities changes.

The company maintains strict control limits on open derivative positions, by both amount and term. The amount subject
to credit risk at any one time is limited to the current fair value of derivative financial assets.

Credit risk — insurance operations

The company is exposed to credit risk as a result of its regular insurance and reinsurance activity. The areas of key
exposure are: '

* reinsurers’ share of provision for claims outstanding;

*  debtors arising from reinsurers in respect of claims already paid;

*  amounts due from direct insurance and reinsurance policyholders; and
* amounts due from direct insurance and reinsurance intermediaries.
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2. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT & FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

Ceded reinsurance is used to manage and mitigate inwards direct insurance and reinsurance risk. Ceded reinsurance
does not discharge the company’s liability as primary insurer. If a ceded reinsurer fails to pay a claim, the company
remains liable for the payment to the policyholder. A Reinsurance Security Committee is operated by the Chubb group
which analyses the creditworthiness of ceded reinsurers on a quarterly basis by reviewing their financial strength. In
addition, the recent payment history of ceded reinsurers is used to update the reinsurance purchasing strategy.

With regard to direct insurance and reinsurance receivables, the company operates a committee to review broker
security, a process for monitoring arrangements with managing general agents, and, in certain circumstances, the
requirement for collateral to be posted by the policyholder to the benefit of the company.

Credit risk — insurance and investment operations

The assets bearing credit risk are summarised below:

2016 2015

£000 £°000
Other financial investments 2,997,692 2,649.456
Derivative financial instruments 745 1,233
Reinsurers’ share of technica! provistons ’ 2,811,936 2,.449.109
Debtors arising out of direct insurance operations 523,364 430,347
Debtors arising from reinsurance operations 244,801 226,762
Total assets bearing credit risk 6,578,538 5,756,907

Other financial investments and derivative financial instruments are designated as fair value through profit or loss at
inception, and their performance evaluated on 2 fair value basis, in accordance with a documented investment strategy as
detailed in note 1. The Standard and Poor’s credit rating for cther financial investments and derivative financial
securities is detailed below.

2016 2015

£000 £°000
AAA 315,814 805,243
AA 1,049,792 521,996
A 579,778 448,516
BBB 640,254 561,940
Below BBR or not rated 412,799 312,994
2,998,437 2,650,689

Other financial investments and derivative financial instruments are neither past due nor impaired.

The amount of change, during the period and cumulatively, in the fair value of receivables that is attributed to changes in
credit risk is represented by the provision for impairment against receivables past due.

Reinsurers’ share of technical provisions includes claims outstanding, related claims handling costs, IBNR and unearned
premium reserve. This is described along with the valuation methods in note 1. This balance includes 0.0% past due that
have been impaired (2015: 0.0%).
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2. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT & FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

Debtors arising out of direct and reinsurance operations are held at fair value less any provision for impairment as
described in note 1. They include 0.2% (2015: 0.2%) that have been impaired and 21.9% (2015: 24.5%) that are past due,
but not impaired, The latter is aged 20.4% up to six months (2015: 23.5%), 1.2% six months to a year (2015: 0.7%) and
the remaining 0.3% is clder than a year (2015; 0.3%).

The Standard and Poor’s credit rating for reinsurers share of technical provisions and debtors arising out of reinsurance
operations are detailed below.

2016 2015

£000 £°000
AA 2,343,931 2,158,497
A 519,779 354,903
BBB 1,768 3,312
Below BBB or not rated 191,239 159,159
3,056,737 2,675,871

Where appropriate the company seeks to obtain collateral from counterparties to mitigate the credit risk exposure from
insurance and reinsurance receivables. At 31 December 2016 the collateral provided to the company totalled £651.3
million (2015: £808.2 millicn). This balance is represented by Letters of Credit — 62.4% (2015: 25.8%), trust funds —
36.1 % (2015: 72.9%), cash - 1.4% (2015: 1.3%) and floating charge — 0.0% (2015: 0.0%).

The maximum exposure of receivables to credit risk at the balance sheet date is the carrying value less any collateral
obtained from counterparties. For the purpose of this disclosure ‘receivables’ comprises ‘Reinsurers’ share of technical
provisions’, ‘Debtors arising out of direct insurance operations’ and “Debtors arising from reinsurance operations’. At the
balance sheet date the maximum exposure of receivables to credit risk was £2,928.8 million (2015: £2,298.0 million).

3. SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS

Segmental information in the format required by the Companies Act 2006 is as follows:

Gross Gross Gross Gross

. . . . Reinsurance
premiums premiums claims operating

written earned incurred expenses balance

£'000 £'000 £°000 £000 £000
Year to 31 December 2016
Continuing op erations: Direct
insurance
Accident and health 418,951 419,719 (155,428) (154,151) (40,830)
Marine, aviation and transport 111,592 110,318 (70,222) {27,077 (19,360)
Fire and other damage to property 725,433 721,610 (300,582) (274,620) (219,520)
Third party liability 517,786 498979 (252,017) (121,775) (43,235)
M iscellaneous 159,765 153,253 (98,843) (38,019) (2,655)
Reinsurance acceptances 456,586 427,027 (501,572) (112,738) 207,762

2,390,113 2,330,906 {1,378,664) (733,380) (117,848)

Discontinued operations 2,162) (2,162) (5,126) - 1,089

2,387,951 2,328,744 (1,383,790) (733,380) (116,759)
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3. SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS — continued
Gross Gross . Gross .
. . Gross claims tin Reinsurance
pren:uums premiums incurred operating halance
written carned expenses
£°000 £°000 £°000 £°000 £°000
Year to 31 December 2015
Continuing operations:
Direct insurance
Aceident and health 422,084 419,404 (147,250) (147,066) (39,048)
M arine, aviation and transport 95,589 94,834 (53,805 {23,768) (17,812)
Fire and other damage (0 property 669,137 640,403 (476.889) (240,151) (18,003)
Third party liability 458,353 461,397 (279,942) (109,826) (60,812)
M iscellaneous 147,988 - 145,723 (66,673} {39,850) (37,406)
Reinsurance acceptances 409,078 403,748 (150,i37) (114,275) (52,377
2,202,229 2,165,509 (1,174,696) (674,936) (225,458)
Discontinued operations (1,740) (1,741) 4,529 (176) (5,194)
2,200,489 2,163,768 (1,170,167) (675,112) (230,652)

The reinsurance balance represents the credit (charge) to the technical account from the aggregate of all items relating to

outwards reinsurance.

Analysis by geographic area — origin

Gross written premiums Profit (loss) before taxation Net assets
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £7000
United Kingdom 1,045,345 1,005,949 136,515 (65,443) 460,467 299,653
Other EEA states : 1,315,445 1,170,222 56,277 114,763 882,546 732,774
Other countries 27,161 24318 432 7,586 54,448 46,336
2,837,951 2,200,489 193,224 56,906 1,397,461 1,078,763
Gross written premium information by destination (location of risk) as required by FRS 102 as follows:
2016 2015
£000 £000
United Kingdom 564,153 580,253
United States of America 67,385 56,668
Continental Europe 1,334,213 1,202,812
Africa & Middle East 57,158 45,937
Agia/Pacific 90,560 78,617
Americas 50,108 40,973
Worldwide 226,537 196,970
Discontinued business (2,162) {1,70)
2,387,951 2,200,489
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4. MOVEMENT IN PRIOR YEARS’ PROVISION FOR CLAIMS OUTSTANDING

The prior years’ net provision for claims outstanding generated a surplus for 2016 (2015: surplus) as detailed below:

2015 2015

£000 £000
Continuing operations:
Accident and health {20,462) 6,907
Marine, aviation and transport (5,054) 13,037
Fire and other damage to property 15,360 23,292
Third party liability 61,081 55,094
Miscellancous 7,178 (5,662)
58,103 92,668
Discontinued operations (4,038} (1,945)
54,065 : 90,723
5. NETOPERATING EXPENSES — TECHNICAL ACCOUNT
2016 2015
£°000 £000
Acquisition costs 446,078 413,106
Change in net deferred acquisition costs (10,999) (16,518)
Administrative expenses 303,054 254,403
Reinsurance commissions (159,457) (140,731)
578,676 510,260

Administrative expenses include costs that are incurred by ACE INA Services U.K. Limited (“AIS"), a fellow group
undertaking, and recharged to the company in the form of management charges. In particular, this charge includes the
cost of the AIS staff engaged in the business of AEGL.

In 2016 administrative expenses include integration costs of £45.1 million (2015: £Nil).

Total commissions for direct insurance accounted for by the company during the year amounted to £344.1 million (2015:
£308.1 million), and are included within acquisition costs.

6. AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

2016 2015

£000 £'000
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the andit of the Company s financial statements 6%4 469

Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for other servives:

Audit-related assurance services 200 305
Tax compliance services % 336
Tax advisory services ’ | ¥] 158
Other non-audit services 1,075 540
2,280 1,808

Audit-related assurance services include reports under section 404 of the US Public Company Accounting Reform and
Investor Protection Act 2002 and also the audit of the Company’s regulatory return.




ACE EUROPEAN GROUP LIMITED : PAGE 41

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

7. OPERATING LEASE RENTALS

The total rentals under operating leases, charged as an expense in the profit and loss account, are disclosed below:

2016 2015
£'000 £'000
Leasehold property 7,011 ' 5214
The fotal of future minimum lease payments under non-canceliable operating feases are as follows:
2016 2015
. £'000 £000
Operating leases which expire:
Within 1 year ] 1,262 . 782
Between two and five years 15,022 10,350
Mare than five years 3,497 8.511
19,781 19,643
8, DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES
2016 2015
£°000 £°000
Cost of staff employed by the company
Wages and salaries ’ 71,559 64,139
Social security costs 16,415 15,243
Other pension costs 6,332 5,641
Other staff costs 7,315 6,473
101,621 91,496
The monthly average number of employees of the company during the year was as follows:
2016 2015
No. No.
Underwriting 646 742
Claims 202 183
Other 274 277

1,121 1,202

The disclosures above relate to staff based in the company’s branches outside the UK who are directly employed by the
company. Staff that support the UK branch operations of the company and centralised functions that are managed in the
UX are employed by AIS and their costs are incorporated in management recharges from this service company. For
disclosure purposes, it is not practical to allocate these amounts to the underlying entities to which the staff provide
services,
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8. DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES — continued

Directors’ emoluments

All directors received emoluments through AIS in respect of their services to Chubb group companies. The enst of these
emoluments is incorporated within the management recharges from AIS. For disclosure purposes, it is not practical to
allocate these amounts to the underlying entities to which the directors provide services. Consequently, the following
amounts represent the total emoluments paid by AIS to the directers of this company.

2016 2015

. £000 £'000
Aggregate emoluments and benefits 5,359 4,839
Company pension contributions to money purchase pension schemes 23 132
5,382 4,971

Included in the above amounts paid by AIS in respect of the directors of this company, the highest paid director was paid
a total of £979,163 (2015: £787,668) in respect of emoluments and benefits. The amount of accrued pension and acerued
lump sum in relation to the highest paid director at the end of the year were £Nil (2015: £Nil) and £Nil (2015:; £Nil)
respectively. '

The aggregate emoluments above do not include share based remuneration. All executive directors are entitled to receive
shares in Chubb Limited under long-term incentive plans. During the year, 6 directors received shares in Chubb Limited
under long-term incentive plans and 6 directors exercised options over the shares of Chubb Limited. The highest paid
director exercised share options during the year.

Until 31 March 2002, retirement benefits accrued under the ACE London Pension Scheme to 1 current director under the
final salary section. Disclosures relating to this scheme are contained within the financial statements for AIS. From 1
April 2002, pension benefits are accruing to 5 current directors under the ACE European Group UK Pension Plan
(Stakeholder scheme).

9. INVESTMENT RETURN

2016 2015
£'000 £'000
Investment income
Income from investments 84,286 81,656
Gains on the realisation of investments 11,934 13,899
96,220 65,555
Investments on expenses and charges
Investment management expenses (10,635) (9.231)
Losses on the realisation of investments (30,766) (7,219)
(41,401} (16,450)
Net unrealised gains less losses on investments
Upnrrealised gains on investments 91,934 10,976
Unrealised losses on investments (25,841 (83,705)
66,093 (72,729)

Total investment return 120,912 6,376
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10. TAXATION ON PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

(a) Tax on profit on ordinary activities

The tax charge is made up as follows:

2016 2015
£ £
Current raxation
UK corporation tax at 20% (2015: 20.25%) 18,863 11,546
Adjustments in respect of prior years (846) (1,138)
Towi current uxation : 18,017 10,408
Daouble taxation refief (16,166) (11,546G)
1,851 {1,138)
Foreign taxation
Current taxation on income for the period 20,685 32,284
Adjustments in respect of previous periods (8,110) {7,054)
12,575 25,230
Deferred taxation
QOrigination and reversal of timing differences 20,123 131
Adjustments in respect of previous periods - (109)
Effect of change in tax rates {1,708) 19
Toral deferved tax charged 18,415 41
Tux on prafit on ondinary activities 32,841 24,133
— e,
Tax included in the star t of comprehensive income
The tax charge is made up as follows:
Actuarial loss on péension scheme 287 382
Changes in rate 266 203

Tatal tax charge

|

(b) Factors affecting the current tax charge

The tax assessed for the year is higher than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 20% (2015: -
The differences are reconciled below:

2016 2015
£ £
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 193,224 56,906
Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by standard rate of UK
corporation tax of 20% (2015: 20.25%) 38,645 11,523
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes . 543 85
Higher taxation rates on overseas eamings 4,317 20,807
Changes in rate (1,708) 19
Adjustments in respect of prior periods - current tax (8,956) (8,192)
Adjustments in respect of prior periods - deferred tax - (109)
Total tax charge for the year 32,841 24,133

The adjustments in respect of previous periods arise from differences between overseas and UK tax bases. The company
has unrecognised eligible unrelieved foreign tax (EUFT) totalling £59.9 million as at 31 December 2016 which is unlikely
to be relieved in the foreseeable future.
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11. DIVIDENDS

During 2016 the company paid a dividend of 18.4p per share totalling £100.0 million (2015 £Nil)

12. OTHER FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

Market Value Cost Market Value Cast
2016 2016 2015 2015
£000 £:000 £°000 £°000
Sh‘ares and other variable yield securities and units in 42,237 38,077 33,428 32,663
unit trusts . .
Private Equity 25,043 23,896 6,862 6,952
Debt securities and other fixed interest securities 2,869,945 2,743,798 2,562,813 2,514,988
Deposits with credit institutions* 60,467 60,467 46,353 46,353
2,997,692 2,866,238 2,649,456 2,600,956

None of the above investments, except equities, are listed on a recognised exchange.

*Deposits with credit institutions includes £30.1 million (2015: £29.8 million) of collateral in respect of stock lending
arrangements (note 22).

Derivative financial instruments

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

2016 2016 2015 2015

£'000 £000 £000 £7000
Forward foreign currency contracts 268 275 393 244
Fixed income options and futures 477 467 840 251
745 742 1,233 495

The cost of entering into derivative financial instruments was £286,707 (2015: £2,075).

Currency derivatives

The company utilises currency derivatives to manage currency exposure which arises through the acquisition of
investments in currencies other than the designated core currency of the investment portfolio.

At the balance sheet date, the total notional amount of outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts to which the
company is committed are as follows:

2016 . 2015
£°000 £°000

Forward foreign exchange contracts (14) 96

At 31 December 2016, the fair value of the company’s currency derivatives results in a loss of £0.01 million (2015: gain of
£0.2 million). These amounts are based on rates of exchange at the balance sheet date, comprising £0.3 million of assets
(2015: £0.4 million} and £0.3 million of liabilities {2015: £0.2 million).

A loss of £0.1 million (2015: loss of £0.7 million) has been recognised in the profit and loss account in respect of
contracts which matured during the period.
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12, OTHER FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS - continued

The company does not currently designate its foreign currency denominated debt as a hedging instrument for the
purpose of hedging the translation of its foreign operations.

Fixed income options and futures

Options and futures contracts on fixed income securities may be utilised by the investment managers as part of their
strategy to mitigate duration risk, enhance yield or to obtain exposure to a particular instrument or market.

At 31 December 2016, the fair value of the company’s fixed income derivatives is an asset of £0.01 million (2015: asset
of £0.6 million) comprising £0.48 million of assets (2015: £0.8 million) and £0.47 million of liabilities (2015: £0.2
million).

A loss of £2.8 million (2015: gain of £2.4 million) has been recognised in the profit and loss account in respect of
contracts which matured in the period.
FRS 102 requires the company to classify financial instruments into a fair value hierarchy as follows:

—  Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

— Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices), and

—  Level 3 — Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

For 2016 the company has taken early adoption of the Financial Reporting Council’'s Amendments to FRS 102 — Fair
value hierarchy disclosure, the amendments of which simplify the preparation of disclosures about financial
instruments for financial institutions and retirement benefit plans.

An analysis of financial instruments at 31 December 2016 by fair value hierarchy is set out below:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£°000 £°000 £°000 £2000
Assets:
Shjares and other variable yield securities and units in 42,237 ) ) 42,237
unit trusts
Private Equity - - 25,043 25,043
Debt securities and other fixed interest securities - 80,723 2,775,134 14,088 2,869,945
Deposits with credit institutions 30,355 30,112 - 60,467
Derivative financial instruments 477 268 - 745
Total assets at fair value 153,792 2,805,514 39,131 2,998,437
Liabilities:
Derivative financial instruments 468 275 - 743

Total liabilities at fair value 468 275 - 743
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12. OTHER FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS - continued

An analysis of financial instruments at 31 December 2015 by fair value hierarchy is set out below:

Fevel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£°000 £7000 £°000 £000
Assets:
Shfares and other variable y ield securities and units in 33,428 A ) 33,428
~umit trusts
Private Equity - - 6,863 6,863
Debt securities and other fixed interest securities 101,003 2,450,987 10,823 2,562,813
Deposits with credit institutions 16,830 29,522 - 46,352
Derivative financial instruments 840 393 - 1,233
. Total assets at fair value 152,101 2,480,902 17,686 2,650,689
Liabilities:
Derivative financial instruments 25t . 244 - 495
Total liabilities at fair value ) 251 244 - 495

Shares and other variable yield securities and units in unit trusts only comprise listed equities. As the fair values of
these securities are based on quoted market prices they are classified within Level 1.

‘Debt securities and other fixed interest securities’ with active markets such as Government securities are classified
within Level 1, as fair values are based on quoted market prices. For debt securities and other fixed interest securities
that trade in less active markets, including corporate securities, fair values are based on the output of pricing models,
the significant inputs into which include, but are not limited to, yield curves, credit risks and spreads, measures of
volatility, and prepayment speeds, These debt securities and other fixed interest securities are classified within Level
2. Debt securities and other fixed interest securities for which pricing is unobservable are classified within Level 3.

‘Deposits with credit institutions’ includes short term investments, such as liquidity funds. Where such securities are
traded in active markets, they are classified within Level 1, as fair values are based on quoted market prices. Where nc
active market exists for such securities they are typically classified within Level 2 and where pricing is unobservable,

Level 3.

Where ‘Derivative financial instruments’ are actively traded the values of these securities are based on quoted market
prices. Accordingly they are classified within Level 1. Instruments that are not actively traded are classified within

Level 2.

During the period no significant investments were transferred between Level 1 and Level 2.



ACE EUROPEAN GROUP LIMITED U PAGE 47

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

12, OTHER FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS — continued

2016 2015

£000 £000
Bulance at | January ’ 17,685 11,5
Gains Recognised in the Profit and Loss Account * 3,790 155
Purchases 15,937 6,952
Sales (572) (468)
Transfers inflout) of Level 3** 2,291 31
Balance at 31 December 19,131 17,685

* Gains recognised in the Profit and Loss Account comprise realised losses of £13,500 (2015: £Nil) which are presented
within Investment Income, unrealised gains of £892,000 (2015: losses of 382,000} and foreign exchange gains of
£2,911,000 (2015: gains of £537,000) all of which are presented in the Non-Technical Account. Of this amount a
£3,790,000 gain (2015: gain of £155,000) relates to investments held at the end of the period and comprises £13,500 of
realised loss (2615: £Nil), £892,000 of unrealised gain (2015 loss of £382,000) and £2,911,000 of foreign exchange gain .
(2015: gain of £537,000).

** During the period a small number of investment grade and high yield fixed interest investments were transferred into
and out of Level 3 due to changes in their pricing source. The net value of the investments transferred was £2.29 million
(2015: £0.03 million).

13. OTHER DEBTORS

2016 2015

£°000 £'000
Amounts falling due within one year:
Amounts due from group undertakings 44,571 94,529
Corporation tax receivable ‘ 3,778 -
Deferred taxation (note 14) ’ - 4,261
Receivable for sales of securities 4,676 1,122
Other debtors 5,694 4,181

58,719 104,093
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14. DEFERRED TAXATION

The deferred tax included in the statement of financial position is as follows:

2016 2015
£ £
Unrealised gains on investments
Accelerated capital allowances (1,016) 857
Share-based pay ments 19 35
Pension cgsts 1,402 ' 1,814
Deferred costs 791 1,358
UPR & DAC 168 197
Equalisation reserve (16,071)
Deferred tax (14,707) 4,261
-}
An analysis of the movement in deferred tax is as follows:
2016 2015
£ £
At I January 4,261 4,887
Prior y ear adjustment - 109
Deferred tax charge to profit and loss account (20,123) (131)
Deferred tax charge to other comprehensive income (553) (585)
Change in tax rate 1,708 (19)
' (14,707) 4,261

The amount of the net reversal of deferred tax assets and liabilitites expect to occur in 2016 is £3,426k (2015; £134k)
largely in respect of the reversal of timing differences on qualifying fixed assets.

Finance Act 2016 enacted a reduction in corporation tax rates to 19% from 1 April 2017 and 17% from 1 April 2020.
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Software Total
£°000 £7000

Cost

Al 1 January 2016 - -

Additions* 50,193 50,193

Disposals (123) (123)

Transfers** 3,344 3,344

Foreign exchange differences 461 461

At 31 December 2016 53,875 33,875

Accumulated depreciation

At | January 2016 - -

Charge for the period 274 274

Disposals (59) (59)

Transfers** 2,378 2,378

Foreign exchange differences 331 331

At 31 December 2016 2,924 2,924

Nee book value

31 December 2010 50,951 50,951

31 Decermnber 2015 - -
* Additions relate to Software balances acquired from ACE INA Services UK Limted at 31 December 2016.
»* Transfers relate to the reclassification of Software balances as at 1 January 2016 from Tangible assets (see Note 16).
16. TANGIBLE ASSETS

Leasehold Computer,
Land and Motor improvements, Qffice Total
Building Vehicles Fixtures and Equipment and
Fittings Software
£000 £'000 £000 £000 £000

Cost

At 1 Janvary 2016 1,284 635 9,196 5,843 16,958
Additions - - 963 a2 995
Disposals - (296) (8) (21) (325)
Transfers® - - . (3,344) (3,344)
Foreign exchange differences 186 [ 1,254 ast 1,882
At 31 December 2016 1,470 430 11,405 2,861 16,166
Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January 2016 959 606 6,543 4,761 12,869
Charge for the period 18 21 769 132 950
Disposals - (293 [{3] (21) {320)
Transfers* - - - (2,378) (2,378)
Foreign exchange differences 140 89 944 279 1,452
At 31 December 2016 1,127 413 8,250 2,773 £2,573
Net book value

31 December 2016 343 7 3,155 38 3,593
31 December 2015 325 29 2,653 1,082 4,089

* Transfers relate to the reclassification of Software balances as at 1 January 2016 to Intangible assets (see Note 15).
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17. PENSIONS

The company operates a small number of defined benefit pension schemes in Continental Europe. As at 31 December
2016, the aggregate assets and liabilities relating to these schemes were £43.5 million (2015: £32.1 million) and £51.7
million (2015: £41.7 million) respectively. Company contributions to the schemes totalled £1.3 million (2015: 1.1 million)
and the expense recognised in the profit and loss account was £1.6 million (2015: £1.6 million).

18. CALLED-UP SHARE CAPITAL

2016 . 2015
£'000 £'000
Allotted, issued and fully paid:
'‘A' Ordinary £1 shares 544,741 376,567
'B" Ordinary £1 shares - 168,174
544,741 544,741

On the 3 November 2016, the A and B class of shares were consolidated into Ordinary ‘A’ shares.

19. INSURANCE BALANCES

DEFERRED ACQUISITION COSTS
The reconciliation of op ening and closing deferred acguisition costs is as follows:

Gross Reinsurers” share
2016 2015 2016 2015
£000 £000 £'000 £000
At I Janvary 129,213 151,986 31,792 66,554
Change in acquisition costs deferred during the year 15,752 (7,602) 4,753 (24,120)
Foreign exchange gains / (losses) 19,947 (15.171) 3,646 (11,042}
At 31 December 164,912 129,213 40,191 31,792
UNEARNED PREMIUM
The reconciliation of opening and closing unearned premium provision is as follows:
Gross Reinsurers' share
2016 2015 2016 2015
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At | January 801,868 799,518 344,592 361,792
Increase/(decrease) in provision 59,207 36,721 1,633 (5,406)
Foreign exchange movements 68,776 (34,371) 19,314 (11,794)
At 31 December 929,851 801,868 365,539 344,592
CLAIMS OUTSTANDING
The reconciliation of opening and closing provision for claims is as follows:
Gross Reinsurers' share
2016 2015 2016 2015
£'000 - £000 £'000 £000
At I January 3,656,716 3,713,817 2,104,517 2,068,893
Increase/(decrease) in provision 111,081 (16,294) 134,540 43,028
Foreign exchange movements 318,084 (40,907} 207,340 (7,404)
At 31 December 4,085,881 3,656,716 2,446,397 2,104,517
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20. OTHER CEDITORS INCLUDING TAXATION AND SOCIAL SECURITY

2016 2015

£7000 £'000

Corporation taxation payable - 12,513
Deferred taxation {(note 14) 14,707 -
Pay able for purchases of securities 13,056 5,927
QOther creditors 49,216 46,375
Liability for stock lending collateral (note 22) 30,260 29,768
107,239 04,583

21. EQUALISATION PROVISION

From 1 January 2016, the requirement for UK insurers to maintain equalisation provisions was removed from the PRA
Rulebook, and the requirements to maintain equalisation provisions under Council Directive 87/343/EEC were repealed
by the Solvency II Directive. As a result, in 2016 the prior year’s closing equalisation provision of £105,102,000 has been
released to the profit and loss account. The release had the effect of increasing the balance on the technical account for
general business and increasing the profit on ordinary activities before taxation by £105,102,000 {2015: decrease on

profit before tax of £6,260,000).

22, STOCK LENDING

The company participates in stock lending activities with State Street Bank and Trust company.

2016 2015

£°000 £'000
Apgregate value of securities on loan at 31 December 508,432 413,500
Income from stock during the year ’ 776 491

In respect of securities on loan at the year end, the company held £545.2 million (2015: £422.9 million) as collateral, the
value of which is above the value of the loan securities by 7.2% (2015: 2.2% above).

Included within the £545.2 million (2015: £422.9 million) of collateral held is £30.1 million (2015: £29.8 million}) in the
form of cash which has been reinvested by the company. This is included on the face of the balance sheet within ‘Other

financial investments’.

23. LETTER OF CREDIT FACILITIES

There were two Letter of Credit facilities open at the end of 2016. These were:

- Citibank NA: value £59.1m with associated collateral of £74.2m;
- Lloyds TSB: value £0.68m equally matched by collateral; and

Collateral is included within investments and cash on the balance sheet.
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24. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

No capital expenditure was authorised at 31 December 2016 which has not been provided for in these financial
statements.

25. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the year, there were no material transactions or balances between AEGL and feliow group companies, key
management personnel or members of their close family, which require disclosure under the Companies Act 2006.

Advantage has been taken of the exemption in FRS 102 from disclosing details of transactions with Chubb Limited and its
subsidiary undertakings as required by that standard.

26, CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT TABLES

The following tables show the development of claims over a period of time on both a gross and net of reinsurance basis.
FRS 103 requires that claims development shall go back to the period when the earliest ¢laim arose for which there is still
uncertainty about the amount and timing of the claims payment, but need not go back more than 10 years. The top half of
the table shows how the estimates of total claims for each accident year develop over time. The lower half of the table
reconciles the cumulative claims to the amount appearing in the balance sheet.

The cumulative claims estimates and payments for each accident year are translated into sterling at the year-end rates
that applied at the end of each accident year.

Gross insprance contract ovtstanding e)aims provision as 3131 December 2016:

2010 & prior 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Total
Accident year £000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £'900 £'000
Estimate of cumulative daims incurred
At end of accident year 1,401,687 1,259371 1,267,073 1,342,382 1310,472 1,584,149
One year later 1,442,121 1,243 367 1,274,500 1,354,079 1,338,040
Two years later 1,380,792 1,245,780 1,242,536 1,313,318
Three years later 1377541 1,228,722 1,215,146
Four years later 1,325,932 1,256,996
Five years later 1,325932
Current estimate of curaulative claims incurred 1,325,932 1,256,996 1,21t,806 1,318,531 1335317 1,584,149
Cumulative claims paid
At end of accident year GI681T)  (SE6119)  (35836T)  (3B4875)  (428,122)  (305,93T)
One year Jater 162,763)  (618,296) (639,247 (698,816} (734,611)
Twa years later (O12,676)  (758010)  (TNR48)  (817975)
Three years later (985,213) (856,834) (834,510
Four years later (1,039,387) (917,799
Five years later {1,039,387)
Cumulative payments to date 11,039,387)  (917,799)  (834510)  (B17975)  (734612)  (505,937)
Gross outstanding cJaims provision at 31
December 2016 at original exchange rates 286,545 339,197 37729 500,556 500,705 1,078,212
Foreign exchange adjustment {80,800) {69,032) 12,745 15,700 56,733 (137
Tatal gross outstanding claims provision per the
Balance Sheet 958,161 205,745 170,165 390,041 526,256 657,438 1,078,075 4,085,851

% Surpkus / (deficiency) of initial gross reserve 54% 0.2% 44% 1.8% -1.9%
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26. CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT TABLES - continued
Net insurance contract outstanding claims provision as at 31 December 2016:
2000 & prior 2011 012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Total
Accident year £000 £000 £000 £°000 £2000 £000 £'000 £000
Estimate of cumulative ddaims incurred
At end of accident year 599,788 631,640 646,824 624,869 606,662 657,581
One year later 646,805 624,444 646,418 645,855 651,299
Two years later 633,292 619,605 614374 621,499
Three years later 641,861 598,982 606,248
Four years later 614,663 627,663
Five years later 624,663
Current estimate of cumulative claims incurred 624,663 627,663 606,248 621,499 651,299 657,581
Cumulative cdaims paid -
At end of accident year (172,507) (173,826) {(208,103) (216,400) (245,050) {273.96%)
One year later (345,947) (324,187) (358,320) (353312) (364,474)
Two years later (425,469) (387,698) (408,476) (409,507) .
Three years later (455,309) (434,325) (442,960)
Four years later {485,813) (464,226}
Five years later {485,813)
Cumulative payments to date (485.823) (464,226) {442,960 (409,507) (364,474) {273,969)
Net ontstanding claims provision at 31 December
2016 at original exchange rates 138,840 163,437 163,288 90 286,825 383,612
Foreign exchange adjustment (92,728) {15,519} 1,745 11,508 25,486 0
Total net outstanding claims provision per the
Batance Sheet 361,011 46,112 147,908 165,033 2123497 312311 383,612 1,639,454
% Surplus / (deficiency) of initial net reserve 4.1% 0.6% 6.3% -14%

27. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

0.5%

On 27th February the Lord Chancellor announced a change in the Ogden rate for discounting personal injury claims,
reducing them to negative 0.75%. This change does not have a material effect on financial statements of ACE European

Group Limited.

28. ULTIMATE PARENT COMPANY

The ultimate holding company is Chubb Limited, a company registered in Zurich, Switzerland, with its headquarters in
Zurich, Switzerland and it is quoted on the New York Stock Exchange. Copies of the ultimate holding company’s
consolidated financial statements can be obtained from Investor Relations at Chubb’s executive offices at 17 Woodbourne

Avenue, Hamilton HM 08, Bermuda.
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President’s Report
at 31 December 2017

What a remarkable year we have had. So many things have happened which have tested us, both as individuals and as a
company, but I am pleased to say Chubb European Group Limited has ended 2017 with credible results, a strong balance
sheet and the knowledge that we have served our clients to the best of our ability throughout this turbulent period.

Integration

This year marked the completion of the project to bring together Chubb’s key European operating companies, combining
the complementary strengths of each organisation for the benefit of our clients and partners across the region. On 1st
May 2017, Chubb Insurance Company of Europe Limited and Chubb Bermuda International Insurance Ireland DAC
merged into ACE European Group Limited by means of a Part VII transfer and cross-border merger. The company
changed its name to Chubb European Group Limited (“CEGL”) in acknowledgement of the Chubb global brand on 2nd
May z2017.

Primarily as a result of the merger, CEGL’s shareholders’ funds increased to £2.4 billion at year end 2017, making it one
of the largest property and casualty insurance and reinsurance companies operating in the UK and Continental Europe.

The combined organisation benefits from complementary business lines, greater market presence and deeper technical
expertise, particularly in key areas such as Financial Lines, Casualty and Property. We have also added new products,
including High Net Worth insurance, to our range and have expanded the company’s distribution network and access to
independent brokers across Europe.

A significant amount of work has also gone on behind the scenes to integrate the processes and systems of each business.
This has required considerable effort across the whole company and I would like to extend my thanks to everyone at
Chubb who has made the integration such a suceess.

Financial Performance

In terms of our financial performance, we continue to produce good results. CEGL's 2017 gross written premiums were
£3.3 billion, up 37% in comparison to prior year primarily as a result of the merger.

Our pre-tax profit of £206.8 million was achieved despite significant losses emanating from the major catastrophe events
of the year, including hurricanes Harvey, Irma and Maria, each of which broke records in terms of their scale and
intensity and contributed to what is likely to be the costliest Atlantic hurricane season on record. The year also saw
devastating earthguakes in Mexico and a spate of wildfires in the US, all of which resulted in tragic loss of life and
incredible destruction of property and infrastructure.

With catastrophe losses estimated to cost the industry $135 billion this year, it is a stark reminder of why insurance
companies like Chubb exist: to provide the support and means to help individuals, families, businesses and communities
recover and rebuild in the wake of such devastation.

In aggregate, CEGL's net catastrophe related losses for the year amounted to £16.1 million, a significant number, but well
within our risk tolerances and commensurate with the size of loss we would expect from these types of events.

Pricing

The seale and frequency of these catastrophe losses demonstrate the necessity of the viable price adequacy required for
the insurance industry te continue to thrive. Underwriting conditions in the UK and European insurance markets have
been challenging for a number of years with rates reaching unsustainable levels in many classes. However markets are
now starting to show signs of firming in some areas around the world, including the UK and pockets of Continental
Europe. There also appears to be some momentum in the markets to rectify inadequate pricing and terms and conditions,
although the extent to which this firming will take hold remains to be seen.

! Source: Munich Re press release, 4 January 2018
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CEGL is a key player in these markets and we recognise our responsibility as a lead insurer to drive pricing
improvements. We will continue to insist on an adequate rate for the coverage provided in order to generate a reasonable
risk-adjusted return and avoid more volatile price movements in the future should rates continue to stagnate or erode.
We are in a great position in terms of risk management and financial strength to respond to any changes in the
underwriting environment.

Looking ahead...
We know there will be other challenges to face as we lock ahead to 2018.

Like many other companies in the financial services industry, Brexit has been a huge area of focus for us in 2017 and
work will continue apace through 2018 as we prepare for the finality of the UK leaving the European Union. Whilst I
believe that the London Insurance Market is strong enough to remain the centre of the insurance industry in Europe
whatever happens, we have to assume a “hard Brexit” and prepare for the loss of passporting which allows firms to trade
freely across the European Union. We have made good progress with our post-Brexit planning to identify and implement
the steps needed to garner the best opportunities for our business, distribution partners and, of course, our clients across
the UK and Continental Europe.

From a regulatory perspective, GDPR (General Data Protection Regulation), the new legal framework for data protection
in Europe comes into force in May, with the Insurance Distribution Directive, covering requirements associated with the
sale of insurance, also scheduled for implementation this year. Regulatory enforcement of directives such as these is
becoming stricter as time goes on, and it is imperative that CEGL maintains its focus on ensuring its compliance with all
aspects of current regulatory requirements.

We also need to consider the evolving insurance needs of our clients and broker partners and have implemented a
segmented business structure to align with their needs. Innovation in the market place continues and there have been
advancements both in the development of new products and the increasing digitalisation of distribution channels. There
are a number of emerging risks manifesting themselves, many of which are driven by technology, and we need to be
ready to help our clients manage these potential perils. To this end we have recently launched a new Cybercrime product,
the first combined policy of its kind in the market and introduced new Industry Practices such as Real Estate.

In conclusion

2017 has been a crucially important year for our business and T am proud of what we have achieved. We have come
together as one company and truly galvanised as a team. We have stepped up to meet the ongoing regulatory challenges
and continued our drive to receive an adequate price for the risks we take onto our balance sheet. We have maintained
excellent financial strength in light of substantial catastrophe related losses, and endeavored to offer best in class service
levels to our clients and partners.

There is much to be done in 2018, but we have laid the foundations to execute on the strategies we have in place and I am
confident that we can build upon our successes this year as CEGL goes from strength to strength.

A J Kendrick
President

24 March 2018
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The Board of Chubb European Group Limited (“CEGL”) has prepared this report in accordance with Section 414A of the
Companies Act 2006. In addition to this statutory requirement, this report also addresses other aspects of the company’s
business which the Board believes will be of benefit to interested parties.

Cwnership

Chubb Limited, the ultimate parent of CEGL, is the Swiss-incorporated holding company of the Chubb Group of
Companies. Chubb Limited and its direct and indirect subsidiaries, collectively the Chubb Group of Companies (“Chubb™)
are a global insurance and reinsurance organisation. At 31 December 2017, Chubb Limited held total assets of $167.0
billion and shareholders’ equity of $51.2 billion. It is listed on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE: CB) and is a
component of the S&P 500 index. The company maintains executive offices in Zurich, New York, London and other
locations, and employs approximately 31,000 people worldwide.

Consolidation of Chubb's UK and European Operating Entities

In order to optimise operational efficiency, governance and capital across its European entities, Chubb consolidated two
of its European insurance companies, Chubb Insurance Company of Europe SE (“CICE”) and Chubb Bermuda
International Insurance Ireland Designated Activity Company (“CBIi") into its primary UK domiciled operation, ACE
European Group Limited (“CEGL"), through the operation of a Part VII transfer of insurance business and cross border
merger. From a legal perspective, the cross border merger was completed on 1 May 2017. However, from an accounting
perspective the acquisition date was 01 January 2017, and a full year of financial performace has been reocgnised in
relation to the former CICE and CBII business. The merged company was renamed Chubb European Group Limited
(*CEGL") on 2 May 2017.

Brexit Contingency Planning

On 23 June 2016 the United Kingdom voted in a national referendum to withdraw from the European Union and on 29
March 2017 invaked Article 50 of the Treaty on European Union, with the leaving date currently set for 29 March 2019.
Negotiations regarding the terms of the UK’s exit from the EU officially began in June 2017 however the ultimate
outcome of the discussions is difficult to predict and it remains unclear whether UK insurers will be permitted to
continue to underwrite European risks through the EU Single Market or by an equivalent means.

As a result, Chubb has prepared contingency plans in the event that Brexit impedes on CEGL’s current operational model
and business practices, and has stated that, should the UK leave the EU as expected, it intends to locate its European
Union headquarters in France. Post-Brexit, Chubb will continue to have a substantial presence in London in addition to
its offices and operations across the UK and EU.

Chubb currently contemplates locating its EU headquarters in Paris and its UK and regional European headquarters in
London. Chubb further plans to convert Chubb European Group Limited (CEGL) to a Societas Europaea and then if
necessary redomicile the company to France. We are currently working on an operating model where Chubb would
continue to have an authorised operation in the UK.

Additional information can be found on the Chubb UK website.

Business OQuverview

Chubb is the world’s largest publicly traded property and casualty insurer. With operations in 54 countries, Chubb
provides commercial and personal property and casualty insurance, personal accident and supplemental health
insurance, reinsurance and life insurance to a diverse group of clients.

Chubb is distinguished by its extensive product and service offerings, broad distribution capabilities, exceptional
financial strength, superior claims handling expertise and local operations globally. The company serves multinational
corporations, mid-size and small businesses with property and casualty insurance and risk engineering services; affluent
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and high net worth individuals with substantial assets to protect; individuals purchasing life, personal accident,
supplemental health, homeowners, automaobile and specialty personal insurance coverage; companies and affinity groups
providing or offering accident and health insurance programmes and life insurance to their employees or members; and
insurers managing exposures with reinsurance coverage. Chubb’s core operating insurance companies maintain financial
strength ratings of “AA” from Standard & Poor’s and “A++” from A.M, Best.

Chubb’s operating companies utilise the group’s global capabilities for the benefit of local clients, leveraging its global
expertise and balance sheet strength to deliver a consistent global customer value proposition at a local level.
Underwriting strategy is set globally, with local adaptation to deliver an acceptable return to shareholders commensurate
with the risk that they are taking. This global proposition is delivered through Chubb’s network of local companies and
ensures that appropriate policyholder security and customer outcomes are provided to clients and activities comply with
all local and global requirements.

CEGL is a major contributor to Chubb, generating over 11% of the group’s overall gross written premium in 2017.

CEGL is one of Europe’s leading commercial insurance and reinsurance companies and operates a successful
underwriting business throughout the UK, Ireland and Continental Europe. It is authorised by the Prudential Regulation
Authority (“PRA") and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority and PRA.

Headquartered in the UK with branch offices across Europe, CEGL and its European Economic Area (“EEA”) branches
hold cross-border permissions throughout the EEA. CEGL is also a ‘white listed’ surplus lines insurance and reinsurance
company in the United States, entitling it to write surplus lines in all US states and US territories. Business is accessed by
a variety of distribution channels and the company has strong relationships with the broker community, its corporate
partners and direct markets.

The company offers its clients a broad range of insurance and risk solutions encompassing property & casualty, accident
& health and personal lines classes, with policies written under the names “Chubb Europe”, “Chubb Global Markets™ and
“Chubb Tempest Re”, which capitalise on the distinctiveness and strength of the Chubb brand and acknowledge the
company’s strong insurance platforms, reputation, skill sets, financial strength ratings and consistent management
philosophy.

The principal business segments of Chubb Europe are managed as UK & Ireland Property and Casualty (“UK&I P&C”),
Continental Europe Property and Casualty (“CE P&C"), Accident and Health (*A&H”"), Specialty Personal Lines (“SPL")
and High Net Worth (“HNwW"®).

The P&C operations provide client-focused insurance solutions and risk management and engineering services for a
range of UK and European multinational, large and mid-sized commercial clients, with products encompassing property,
primary and excess casualty, financial lines, surety, marine cargo and construction related risks.

The A&H division underwrites a range of A&H and leisure travel related products, providing benefits and services to
individuals, employee groups and affinity groups throughout Europe. In some cases these products are packaged under
other brands or form part of another service provider's products. A range of personal accident and sickness insurance
products incleding short-term disability, critical condition and hospitalisation/recovery are also offered across a number
of European countries.

The SPL team has developed innovative insurance sclutions and industry-leading claims capabilities for Mobile Network
Operators and Electrical Retailers in order to provide their customers with protection for their mobile devices.

Chubb also offers insurance cover, primarily motor, home and contents insurance including jewellery and fine art
collections, for affluent individuals within its HNW division.

Chubb Global Markets (*CGM”) is the group’s specialty international underwriting business. Its parallel distribution
capabilities mean that underwriting products may be offered through both CEGL and Lloyd’s Syndicate 2488, managed
by Chubb Underwriting Agencies Limited. CGM’s product range includes tailored solutions for aviation, energy, financial
lines, marine, property, politica] risks and excess & surplus lines (“E&S") insurance risks.
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With underwriting operations located in London and Zurich, Chubb Tempest Re International {(“CTRe"} writes
traditional and non-traditional aviation, casualty, marine and property treaty reinsurance worldwide. Products are
offered predominantly through CEGL and Lloyd’s Syndicate 2488, and also through various overseas Chubb group legal
entities.

CEGL benefits from comprehensive and fully integrated support functions encompassing claims, finance and actuarial,
risk management, legal and compliance, human resources, operations and IT.

The split of 2017 gross written premiums by business unit is illustrated below:

4% UKI P&C
) 22%

Business Objectives & Strategy

CEGL’s strategic vision is to pursue profitable growth by focusing on underwriting performance, product innovation,
distribution and service and relevance to customers and brokers. The company benefits from underwriters’ proven
market-leading risk expertise, a disciplined approach to underwriting and a regional branch presence which provides
brokers and customers with fast access to Chubb’s decision makers.

CEGL has an established underwriting ethos that permeates the company. Top line growth is not the primary driver for
the company and underwriters are fully prepared to shed volume as necessary in order to maintain an underwriting
profit. Using CEGL's underwriting skills and targeted marketing strategies, the company aims to generate growth in areas
where risk-adjusted underwriting margins are favourable, and achieve better terms or shrink business where they are
not.

CEGL is headquartered in London but can issue policies locally throughout its network of UK and European branch
offices. This encourages underwriting flexibility and high levels of service for brokers and clients whilst ensuring local
regulatory and tax requirements are adhered to. CEGL is an established player in the multinational marketplace and has
the capability to provide fully integrated international insurance programmes for clients. CEGL's dedicated and
experienced international underwriting and service teams work with Chubb’s global network of offices to provide
seamless, tailored solutions to the often unique and complex needs of multinational companies which includes agreeing
coverage, issuing policies, adjusting claims and moving funds, all in accordance with legislative requirements and agreed
service standards.

The company strives to offer superior service levels in all aspects of its operations, from policy processing to engineering
risk management and claims handling. CEGL continues to invest in technology to improve its operational efficiency,
underwriter support and broker interfaces.

Chubb is committed to protecting and preserving its capital. CEGL effectively manages exposures to key risks, operates a
conservative investment strategy and has maintained its focus on cash flow management and liquidity to secure its long
term position in the insurance market.
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Investment Strategy

CEGL operates a conservative investment strategy by establishing highly liquid, diversified, high quality portfolios
managed by expert external managers. Detailed Chubb group investment guidelines are established for each managed
portfolio including Chubb customised benchmarks against which the manager performance is measured.

CEGL maintains six active investment grade fixed income portfolios, the core currencies of which are sterling, euro and
US dellars. Further passive portfolios are maintained in Switzerland and Turkey to meet local solvency requirements.
CEGL also allocates a limited proportion of funds available for investment to alternative strategies. These alternative
strategies include high-yield bonds, syndicated bank loans, private equity loans and global equities.

Funds allocated to alternative strategies continued to fall comfortably within the established limits and the majority of
CEGL’s investments continued to be allocated to high quality, diversified, actively managed portfolios with exposure to a
broad range of sectors. Consistent with previous years, CEGL’s investment guidelines and external manager positioning
restrict exposure to peripheral Eurozone countries.

The approximate currency split of CEGL’s investment portfolios is sterling 40%, euro 36% and US dollars 23%. Other
currency investments comprise approximately 1% of the total.

Presentation of Financial Statements

The financial statements have been prepared under the provision of The Large and Medium-sized Companies and

Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 (*SI2008/410") relating to insurance companies’ individual financial
statements and applicable accounting standands in the UK.

Key Performance Indicators

The following financial key performance indicators (“KPIs”) have been deemed relevant to the company’s business. These
KPIs are reviewed regularly by the CEGL Board. -

£ million 2017 2016
Gross premiums written 3,267.5 2,388.0
Net premiums written 1,850.7 1,318.0
Combined ratio % * 93.5% 92.5%
Profit before tax 206.8 193.2

* Ratio of net claims incurred, commission and expenses to net premiums earned
The Board also monitors the capital needs of the company. Further details in this regard are set out in the ‘Financial
position’ section of this Strategic Report.

Management also use a variety of other performance indicators, including production volumes, retention ratios, price
monitoring, loss and expense analyses, and operating metrics in assessing the performance of each of the business
segments. All financial results are monitored against plan, forecast and prior year on a regular basis.



CHUBB EUROPEAN GROUP LIMITED
(Formerly ACE European Group Limited) PAGE 7

Strategic Report
31 December 2017

Results & Performance

2017 produced a pre-tax operating profit of £206.8 million and a combined ratio of 93.5%. A summary of the reported
financial results is shown in the following table.

£ million 2017 2016
Gross premiums written 3,267.5 2,388.¢
Net premiums written 1,850.7 1,318.0
Net premiums earned 1,834.7 1,260.4
Incurred losses 970.5 586.9
Operating expenses 745.7 578.7
Underwriting profit 118.5 94.8
Equalisation reserve movement® 0.0 {105.1)
Investment return 89.9 120.9
Net other income / (charges) (1.6) (127.6)
Net pre-tax profit 206.8 193.2
Combined ratio % 93.5% 92.5%

* In 2016, requirements to maintain equalisation provisions under Council Directive 87/343/EEC were repealed by the
Solvency 1I Directive. This resulted in a one off release to the income statement which was not repeated in 2017.

Rating Environment

Despite a challenging start to 2017, a more positive rating picture began to emerge towards the end of the year,,
particularly on London Market and catastrophe exposed business as a result of the loss activity in the latter half of the
year. The retail commercial P&C insurance in the UK and Ireland benefited from Ogden-related rate increases in Casualty
and some positive movement within Fire and Financial Lines classes however the rate movement on the overall portfolio
remained negative with most other lines experiencing single-digit rate reductions on renewal business. Rate reductions
slowed on the Continent with overall P&C pricing marginally down, in line with expectations. Rates on A&H and SPL
business were effectively flat however there was some positive movement within the HNW portfolio as a result of the
revised rate plan implemented midway through the year, In general, as in previous years, business retention across the
region was strong in the majority of classes however competition for new business remained fierce and difficult to secure
at adequate rates.

Conditions in the reinsurance market remained competitive for much of the year but were broadly in line with
projections. A number of cedants modified their reinsurance purchases, with some increasing their retentions, combining
programs together or, in some cases, dropping cover altogether.

Drivers of Underwriting Result

CEGL underwrites UK, Continental Europe, US and international business which is principally transacted in sterling,
euro and US dollars. For accounting purposes and within this report, the operating results of the business are presented
in sterling. Any appreciation or depreciation of sterling against other currencies during the year will impact the
comparison of 2017 results against those of the prior year.

CEGL’s 2017 gross written premiums of £3,267.5 million were 37% higher than those recorded in 2016, primarily as a
result of the merger. Much of this growth can be attributed to Financial Lines, Casualty and HNW classes of business
previously written in CICE and CBII. Comparative prior year combined gross written premiums were £3,145.0 million.
Excluding the impact of the merger, growth in CEGL's underlying portfolios was limited, reflecting the difficult
underwriting conditions in the UK and European insurance matkets for much of the year.
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CEGL purchases reinsurance to mitigate the impact of major events and an undue frequency of smaller losses. A number
of the reinsurance programmes operated by CEGL during 2017 were with a Chubb company, Chubb Tempest
Reinsurance Ltd. CEGL also has the benefit, particularly for US and worldwide catastrophe exposures, of reinsurance
programmes shared with other Chubb entities, including Syndicate 2488 at Lloyd's. These arrangements result in an
increase in the reinsurance purchasing power of Chubb, which ultimately benefits all subsidiaries, including CEGL.
CEGL's reinsurance ceded costs increased by cirea 33% in 2017, commensurate with the growth in gross written
premiums. There were no significant changes to the company’s reinsurance purchasing strategy in 2017.

A number of significant geophysical, meteorological, hydrological and climatological events occurred in 2017, including
earthquakes, hurricanes, tropical storms, floods, landslides and wildfires, which are expected to cost the insurance
industry a record $135 billion2. CEGL'’s exposure to large losses is managed by adherence to clear risk management and
underwriting guidelines and the use of reinsurance protection and sophisticated modelling and analysis. The company’s
catastrophe losses net of reinsurance recoveries and reinstatement premiums during 2017 amounted to £16.1 million
(2016: £6.8 million) with the most significant losses emanating from the hurricane trio of Harvey, Irma and Maria and
wildfires in Europe.

Prior period reserve releases were £37.2 million (2016: £54.1 million) with positive developments within a number of
classes, notably Property, Energy, Casualty, and A&H offseiting some strengthening in Financial Lines. Excluding
catastrophe losses and prior peried development, the accident year loss ratio for the year was 54.0% (2016: 50.3%),
demonstrating the adherence to underwriting discipline and the positive impact of the portfolio review process.

Operating expenses constitute commissions and general administrative expenses. The expense ratio of 40.6% compares
favourably to the 45.9% reported in 2016 reflecting the continued strict management of both components and expense
related synergies emanating from the merger.

Financial Markets Review

Volatility remained low in 2017, with occasional market turbulence due to political or geopolitical events. Central banks
began to take cauticus steps away from excessively accommodative policies by announcing or implementing plans to
wind down balance sheets and to consider raising interest rates.

For much of the start of 2017, the robust risk appetite that marked the post-US election period broadly continued. Early
challenges in President Donald Trump's policy agenda, including the last-minute cancellation of a key healthcare vote in
the House of Representatives, left some investors less optimistic about the potential for other highly anticipated agenda
items such as tax reform. Still, solid fundamental data, relatively easy financial conditions, and optimism among
businesses and consumers pravided an opportunity for the US Federal Reserve (*Fed”) to continue on its path towards
policy normalisation.

In the second quarter, geopolitics, including elections in several countries as well as political controversies in the US and
Brazil, dominated headlines and contributed to brief periods of market volatility. In the US, the Fed raised rates and
unveiled details of its plan to gradually unwing its balance sheet, contributing to a flattening vield curve. A perceived
hawkish shift in tone from other major central banks sputred most developed market yields to rise.

Geopolitical uncertainties, including escalating tensions between the US and North Korea and political turmoil within the
Trump administration, weighed on yields early in the third quarter, though risk assets were generally resilient.
Meanwhile, developed market central banks shifted towards a reduction in accommodation that pushed yields higher
toward the end of the third quarter. The Fed detailed plans to unwind its balance sheet, the Bank of England and
European Central Bank suggested less stimulus on the horizon, and the Bank of Canada raised rates twice after a 7-year
gap. Still, the fundamental backdrop remained largely intact and the broader risk rally continued as equities marched
higher, credit spreads tightened, and Emerging Market assets strengthened.

2 Source: Munich Re press release, 4 January 2018
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As the year came to a close, geopolitical uncertainties continued to concern investors but markets continued to rally.
Buoyant sentiment was pushed higher by a successful outcome on US tax legislation. Meanwhile, the Fed began to
carefully wind down its balance sheet while the European Central Bank announced plans to halve the amount it spends
each month as part of its quantitative easing operations. Meanwhile, the Bank of England raised rates by 0.25% to 0.5%,
its first hike in over a decade. With few signs of economic overheating or inflationary overkill on the horizon, investors
looked ahead to 2018 with cautious optimism.

Inuestment Performance

Economic activity in 2017 provided a neutral environment for fixed income investors. Yields on intermediate sovereign
bonds rose modestly during the year for sterling, euro and US dollar debt while yields on corporate investment grade
bonds remained largely unchanged in the year. For CEGL this resulted in total returns of 1.4% for both sterling and euro
mandates respectively. In the US, total returmns exceeded 4% during the year reflecting significant excess performance
generated by the manager through activity strategy.

CEGL’s alternative investment assets which constitute less than 10% of the total portfolio generated strong absolute
returns during 2017. The bulk of this allocation relates to upper tier US dollar high yield bonds which returned over 6%
for the year. The modest allocations to equites, bank loans and private equity loans generated total returns of 20.8%,
3.4% and B.1% respectively.

Overall, CEGL generated a total return of 2.4% on balances available for investment during 2017.
Financial Position

Capital

CEGL maintains an efficient capital structure consistent with the company’s risk profile and regulatory and market
requirements.

The company assesses its own capital needs on a detailed risk measurement basis, and then seeks to maintain financial
strength and capital adequacy to support business objectives and meet the requirements of policyholders, regulators and
rating agencies whilst retaining financial flexibility by ensuring liquidity.

CEGL managed its capital levels in 2017 in the context of the Solvency Il Standard Formula Solvency Capital
Requirement and the Solvency II Minimum Capital Requirement, which computes capital levels based on European
industry risk factors related to premiums, reserves and assets. CEGL maintained capital throunghout 2017 over and above
the Solvency II Standard Formula Solvency Capital Requirement with an additional margin. With shareholders’ funds of
£2,405.4 million at year end 2017, the company continues to be appropriately capitalised against each of these measures.

For internal purposes, CEGL assesses its risk profile and own capital requirements using an internal model which has
been developed to meet Solvency 11 requirements. The internal model is supported by a robust validation and governance
framework which ensures its ongoing appropriateness and is refined to reflect CEGL’s experience, changes in the risk
profile and advances in modelling methodologies.

Ratings

CEGL holds financial strength ratings of “A++” from A.M. Best and “AA" from Standard & Poor’s (“S&P”). Both ratings
have a stable outlook.
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Governance

CEGL has a documented corporate governance framework, the purpose of which is to exercise oversight and control over
the management of the business.

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) has reserved responsibility for decisions in connection with a number of matters,
including those of a significant strategic, structural, capital, financial reporting, internal control, risk, policy or
compliance nature. The Board meets routinely five times a year and additionally on other occasions to discharge its
responsibilities in respect of these and other matters. In 2017 the Board met six times.

Membership of the Board is kept under review to ensure that the composition and available expertise remains relevant to
the current needs of the company. The Board comprises five independent non-executive directors and six executive
directors. In 2017 two executive and two non-executive directors left the Board and one non-executive director, Lord
Turner, joined as a new Chairman. Lord Tumer was executive chairman of the Financial Services Authority from 2008 to
2013, is a member of the House of Lords and has had a career spanning banking, consultancy and a wide range of entities
in a non-executive capacity.

CEGL greatly values the contribution of its non-executive directors in providing contrasting insights, experience and
challenge in the Board's discussions. Details of director appointments and resignations can be found in the Directors’
Report on page 19.

Key non-routine Board activity during the year included, i) consideration of the cross-border merger bhetween the
Company, Chubb Bermuda International Insurance Ireland DAC and Chubb Insurance Company of Europe SE, ii) review
of the operational integration of these companies’ businesses, iii) consideration of the contingency planning for Brexit's
impact on the business, iv) an investigation of the Company’s culture, carried out by a dedicated working group, v} a
review of the impact of the year'’s catastrophe events on the company and its reinsurance arrangements, and vi)
investigation of cyber security. It also agreed changes to capital policy, the Company’s internal solvency model and
investment allocations.

The Board received regular reports on the status of business results, business and function plans, resourcing,
developments in the risk and regulatory environments, on consumer conduct, regulatory compliance, underwriting
controls, actuarial and solvency matters. One meeting is held each year to consider high-level business strategy.

The Board has delegated a number of matters to committees. Each of the following committees has formal terms of
reference and matters reserved to it. Each, with the exception of the Executive Committee includes non-executive
directors in its membership, and reports to the Board regularly in respect of its remit. The terms of reference of each
Board committee were yeviewed and refreshed in 2017, but not significantly amended. The Product Oversight
Committee, which had previously reported direct to the Board, became a subcommittee of the Executive Committee.

The Audit Committee, which comprises exclusively non-executive directors, considers and makes recommendations to
the Board on areas including validation of solvency calculations, internal controls, financial reporting, whistleblowing,
actuarial matters and the external audit. It receives reports from the compliance, actuarial and finance functions and
Internal Audit on a quarterly basis.

In relation to the external audit process, the Committee monitors the nature and scope of work in the audit of the
statutory financial statements and other external reporting requirements. It meets regularly with the external Auditors
without management being present.

in the case of the internal audit function, the Committee’s role involves agreeing and monitoring, in conjunction with the
Group audit function, the nature and scope of work to be carried out by the internal audit team and the availability of
sufficient resources.

The Committee’s role is aimed at providing assurance to the Board and Chubb group management that the internal
control systems, agreed by executive managerment as being apprepriate for the prudent management of the business, are
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operating as designed. At all times the Audit Committee is expected to challenge any aspect of these processes which it
considers weak or generally poor practice.

During 2017 the Committee in particular reviewed i) the impact of the revised “Ogden table” interest rates on reserves, ii)
analysis on the impact of significant catastrophe events on reserves, iii} assurance over Cyber underwriting processes, iv)
new Solvency 1I Pillar 3 reporting, and iv) alignment of internal and external actuarial practices and financial controls
between the merged acquired Chubb business and the company’s existing methodology.

The Board has delegated responsibility for the oversight and implementation of its risk management framework to the
Risk Committee. The Committee oversees and advises the Board on risk exposures, future risk strategy, the design and
implementation of the framework into the business on solvency and capital matters, It also ensures that business risks
and controls are recorded and monitored. It receives regular reports on the Company’s “Own Risk and Solvency
Assessment” metrics, required by Solvency II, which helps to provide an independent overview of management’s
assessment of risk and a check against risk appetites agreed by the Board.

During the year the Risk Committee’s non-routine activity included: i) a review of the effectiveness and independence of
the Risk Management function throughout Europe, ii} review of the activity being carried out in preparation for the
introduction of the General Data Protection Regulation, iii) assessment of outsourcing risk, iv) investigation into internal
information security and cyber insurance risk and a change to Cyber Risk policy, v) introduction to a new regionai risk
reporting tool, vi) considering the risks relating to the Company’s contingency proposals against the event of Brexit, and
vii) receiving requested reports on inflation risk, talent retention, underwriting best practice and project risk
management.

The remit of the Nominations Committee is to advise and recommend in connection with appointments to and the
structure of the Board, including diversity and independence of composition, Board evaluation, succession planning for
the non-executive directors and leadership needs.

The Executive Committee comprises all executive directors of CEGL and other members of the senior management
team. The primary role of the Committee is to oversee the day-to-day management of business operations and
performance, and to assist the President in implementing and overseeing operational strategies and decisions
determined by the Board. The Executive Committee is also responsible for the oversight of support function activities,
key steering groups and sub-committees including investment, internal medel steering, credit risk, broker review,
reserving, underwriting and project reporting. It meets monthly to oversee and discuss current issues. A number of
specialist sub-committees, such as those for customer conduct, underwriting controls, broker credit control and
reserving, report to the Executive Committee to ensure that various aspects of the business are reviewed by a wide senior
management group.

CEGL has a Routine Business Committee which meets on an ad hoc basis between formal Board meetings to
consider authorisation of routine activity.

Risk & Control Framework

The Chubb Group is a global underwriting franchise whose risk management obligation to stakeholders is simple: ensure
sufficient financial strength over the long term in order to pay policyholder claims while simultaneously building and
sustaining shareholder value.

The Chubb Enterprise Risk Management ("ERM") strategy helps achieve the goal of building shareholder value by
systematically identifying, and then monitoring and managing, the various risks to the achievement of corporate business
objectives and thereby minimising potential disruptions that could otherwise diminish shareholder value or balance
sheet strength.

CEGL has adopted the Chubb Group Enterprise Risk Management Framework (“RMF~), which describes the role of ERM
within CEGL and how it helps the company achieve its business objectives, meet its corporate obligations and maintain
the reputation of Chubb’s business. Chubb’s documented RMF is principles-based and sets out the organisational
framework for risk taking, monitoring and governance.

.
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The RMF adopts a “three lines of defence” model, comprising day-to-day risk management and controls, risk
management oversight, and independent assurance.

The RMF identifies the key risks to which each business segment, and the company as a whole, is exposed, and their
resultant impact on economic and regulatory capital. This framework employs Solvency II principles to assess risk and
manage capital requirements to ensure the capital required to support CEGL’s business objectives and to meet the
requirements of policyholders, regulators and rating agencies is in place.

The CEGL Board is uitimately responsible for ensuring that the company operates within an established framework of
effective systems of internal control, including the approval of the overall risk tolerance for the organisation and
compliance with palicies, procedures, internal controls and regulatory requirements.

The Board’s oversight of the RMF is effected through the various committees and functions with particular purposes and
direction around the monitoring of risk tolerances and oversight of intetnal controls and compliance procedures. The risk
management function has a strong mandate from the Board to promote the RMF and embed it throughout the company.

The company’s RMF was re-approved by the Board in 2017 together with a review of individual risk policies and risk
appetite statements which set out defined risk-tolerance constraints for the execuation of the business strategy. All key
risk policies and procedures are subject to Board approval and ongoing review by executive management, the risk
management function and the internal audit function.

Principal Risks

The RMF classifies individual risk sources into four major categories: insurance, financial, operational and strategic.
Insurance is Chubb’s primary risk category; the three other risk categories present an exposure primarily from that
assumption of insurance risk Other risks, including group risk and emerging risk are also considered.

Insurance Risk

The principal risks from CEGL’s insurance and reinsurance business arise from its underwriting activities, both
prospective and retrospective. Key risks include unexpected losses arising from inaccurate pricing, fluctuations in the
timing, frequency and severity of claims compared to expectations, inadequate reinsurance protection and inadequate
reserving,

Underwriting risks and line sizes are continually monitored through an established peer review process and automated
exception reporting. Each underwriter is given an authority based on technical expertise and experience to bind risks that
fall within specified classes of insurance and specified maximum limits. Formal price monitoring procedures are in place
and form part of the standard monthly management statistics. These contribute to the quarterly actuarial review whereby
the loss outcome of the underwriting activity is continually re-assessed and considered by the Reserve Committee,

With such a large and diverse book, it is vital that the company’s aggregate exposures are continuaily monitored and
adjustments made to the underwriting profile as appropriate. The company operates a dedicated catastrophe
managetnent function independent of underwriting management, whose responsibility is to model aggregate risk and
assist with the pricing of this risk, providing a key control to the underwriting process.

Reinsurance is used to help mitigate some of the above insurance risk. However, the possibility of reinsurance risk itself
arises when reinsurance purchasing proves inadequate in amount, fails to protect the underlying coverage or falls short
when the reinsurer fails to pay.
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Financial Risk

Financial risk includes a wide range of risks associated with activities such as investments, credit, liquidity and the
impact of foreign exchange fluctuations:

« Investment risk includes the impact of market volatility on asset values attributable to such factors as interest rate
movements and / or price changes.

+ Credit risk arises from the possibility that the financial position of our counterparties detericrates, and financial loss
in the event of creditor default.

« Liquidity risk refers to the possibility that cash or equivalents, coupled with operating cash flows, will be insufficient
to provide for claims payments to policyholders and other needs such as interest payments.

« TForeign exchange risk occurs when assets and liabilities are denominated in different currencies and materialises
when asset holdings are decreased or liabilities increased by exchange rate movements.

Other financial risk sources manifest themselves through an impact on asset valnes. Among these are investment risk due
to unanticipated interest rate movements having impacts on asset values, and asset-liability management risk when asset
values are insufficient or unavailable to pay liabilities when due.

CEGL has an investment strategy which is aligned with its underwriting liabilities. There are also defined investment
guidelines in respect of asset allocation, duration, liquidity and credit risk exposure with quality control around
investment portfolio management to ensure compliance with the set guidelines.

These risks are discussed in more detail in Note 2 to the financial statements.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the possibility of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people or systems, or
from external events other than those falling within strategic risk as defined below. Significant operational risk sources
include claims processing, IT security, outsourcing and vendor management, business continuity, fraud, and regulatory
compliance (including conduct risk).

CEGL seeks to ensure that it is not exposed to operationa) risk in excess of the risk appetite with mitigating strategies
including business continuity plans that have appropriate controls relating to key operational procedures and processes.

Strategic Risk

Strategic risk refers to the outcome from sub-optimal decisions that may be made or not made in respect of strategic
planning, execution of strategy or responsiveness to changes in industry or competitive landscapes.

The CEGL Board is responsible for the management of strategic risks arising from the execution of both the strategic and
annual plans. The Board also receives reports produced to monitor and track business performance against the approved
plan.

A key strategic risk is the UK’s proposed withdrawal from the EU. Contingency plans are in place with actions underway,
where the risks associated will continue to be assessed and monitored on an on-going basis.

Other Risks

Group risks: This is the potential impact on the company of risks arising in other parts of the Chubb group. This could
include direct or indirect financial loss and operational, reputational or regulatory issues. As a strategically important
member of the Chubb group, the company uses group resources in a number of areas, including IT and asset
management, as well as reinsurance and capital support. Group risk is assessed, monitored and reported as part of the
company’s risk management processes. Additionally, intra-group arrangements are governed in an appropriate arms-
length manner, The intra-group arrangements involve formal contracts, equitable and transparent transfer pricing, and
full respect for the integrity thereof, as well as all laws and regulations facing the legal entities in question.
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Emerging risks: An integral part of the risk management framework is the identification and assessment of emerging
risks. CEGL has defined emerging risks as any events, situations or trends that may arise within its internal and external
operating environment that could significantly impact the achievement of its corporate objectives in either the short or
long term. There is an internal system for the identification, assessment and monitoring of such risks with reports issued
to senior management including analyses which are often iterative in nature and conclude with recommended action
plans that can be implemented to minimise or otherwise manage the emerging risk.

Compliance

Compliance with regulation, legal and ethical standards is a high priority for Chubb and CEGL, and the compliance
function has an important oversight role in this regard. Annual affirmation of the Chubb Cade of Conduct is required of
all employees and directors.

As a material subsidiary of Chubb Limited, a US listed company, the financial control environment in which the US
GAAP financial statements are derived is subject to the requirements of US Sarbanes-Oxley legislation. CEGL has
formalised documentation and tested controls to enable Chubb Limited to fulfil the requirements of the legislation.

CEGL is also committed to fulfilling its other compliance-related duties, including its observance of customer-focused
policies, in line with regulatory principles, and it uses various metrics to assess its performance.

The company employs a skilled and specialist workforce to manage its regulatory and compliance responsibilities and
aims to operate to a high standard. CEGL recognises and values its relationships with regulators in each of its
jurisdictions and engages in open dialogue and communication to address and resolve any issues.

Social and Employee Matters

The Chubb Code of Conduct

Chubb aims to comply with legal and regulatory requirements in all countries in which it operates and embed the Chubb
Code of Conduct values in its activities, The Chubb Code of Conduct affirms Chubb’s commitment to compliance with
equal employment opportunity laws and other applicable civil rights, human rights and Iabour laws. Chubb expects staff
to behave ethically and transparently and to be accountable for their actions. All employees, officers and directors are
expected to acknowledge acceptance of this code confirming that they know and understand the standards expected.
Chubb expects its business partners such as consultants, agents, third party representatives and service providers to also
comply with the code. Appropriate measures may be taken if anyone fails to meet those standards or contractual
obligations.

Human Rights

Chubb policies, frameworks and actions aim to prevent modern slavery and human trafficking in both the business and

its supply lines by:

« Undertaking employment verification checks as part of the hiring process;

+ Requiring agencies who supply workers to carry out employment verification checks, wherever staff are located;

« Procurement questionnaires require third party suppliers to state what steps they take to comply with the Modern
Slavery Act 2015;

+ Procurement agreements require third party suppliers to comply with applicable laws and regulations and permit
Chubb to terminate relationships where they fail to do so;

« Subjecting key business transactions to both on boarding and periodic regulatory screening;

+ Providing regular training for staff on sanctions restrictions, anti-bribery, anti-money laundering, and the Chubb
Code of Conduct to which they must attest;
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+ Providing training and support for all staff on how and where they can raise concerns about wrongdoing and
assurances that they will not suffer reprisals for doing so; and

» Taking appropriate action where potential violations of the Modern Slavery Act 2015 are identified.

Chubb’s Procurement, Risk, Compliance, HR and Legal teams work together to apply these standards across the
business. Policies, procedures and ftraining materials are regularly reviewed to continue to make the company’s
commitment to anti-slavery and human trafficking explicit to its customers, employees, suppliers, and business partners.

Chubb’s Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking Transparency statement has been published on the UK website.

Equal Opportunities, Diversity & Inclusion

Chubb is an equal opportunities employer and considers its people to be its fundamental competitive advantage. The
company aims to provide a safe and ethical working environment where colleagues, candidates, clients and business
partners are treated with equality, fairness and respect, regardless of age, disability, race, religion or belief, gender, sexual
orientation, marital status or family circumstances.

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the respective aptitudes
and abilities of the applicant concerned. In the event of members of staff becoming disabled, every effort is made to
ensure that their employment with the company continues and the appropriate training is arranged. It is the policy of the
company that the training, career development and promotion of a disabled person should as far as possible, be identical
to that of a person who does not suffer from a disability.

Chubb is an organisation dedicated to providing superior underwriting service and execution, and seeks to foster an
environment of professional excellence enabling employees to be creative, agile, innovative and ethical in meeting
customers’ needs. Chubb’s regional Diversity & Inclusion Council of senior representatives across Europe, Eurasia and
Africa is responsible for developing and supporting the implementation of Chubb’s Diversity and Inclusion strategy,
taking into account the varied requirements and needs of the region.

With the support of the executive team, Chubb has launched a number of employee-ted internal networks to provide
opportunities for networking, education and development of business capabilities for all employees. These include the
Gender Equality Network, the Parents and Carers Network and the Cultural Awareness Network. A resulting action from
Chubb’s Social Mobility network was the development of an ‘Insight’ programme, providing students from inner-city
London schools with the opportunity to listen to and meet leaders in the insurance industry, and explore potential career
opportunities in a variety of fields including underwriting, marketing, operations, HR and finance.

In addition to a number of internal employee networks, Chubb is zlso a founding member of the cross-market Gender
Inclusion Network for Insurance, connecting a number of organisations across the insurance market in the UK and
Ireland to work towards the common goal of establishing greater gender balance at all levels. Chubb is also a Stonewall
Diversity Champion, an Out and Equal Workplace Advocate and a Working Families Employer Member. Additionally,
Chubb was a gold sponsor of the global Dive In Festival in 2017, showcasing Diversity and Inclusion in Insurance.

CEGL supports a wide range of activities that benefit the community through the Chubb International Foundation and
the Chubb Community Support Committee, predominantly in the areas of education, poverty, health and the
environment. Chubb employees also participate in a number of local voluntary community schemes and personal
fundraising efforts which CEGL supports through a charity-matching scheme. In 2017 Chubb contributed almost
£225,000 to various charities across UK and Europe. -
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Talent Strategy

As well as having a robust diversity and inclusion strategy to ensure that all available talent is accessed, CEGL has a talent
strategy which actively supports the personal and professional development of all its employees, operating talent and
leadership development programmes to help staff realise their full career potential. Chubb’s ability to deliver outstanding
business resulis relies on the calibre of its talent and the efforts of its employees at all levels of the organisation. As a
company, Chubb invests in its people, striving to attract, retain and grow employees to meet their career aspirations. A
core element of Chubb’s value proposition for employees is the opportunity to constantly evolve as a professional and
reach one’s full potential.

Chubb aims to build and develop mid and long-term talent pipelines to ensure the right quality and quantity of diverse
talent is available for the company to deliver key business cbjectives. It endavours to identify talent on a regular basis and
provide high quality development programmes that build leadership qualities. Robust succession plans are in place at the
senior level.

Chubb expects all employees to own and drive their development by availing themselves of the structured and
unstructured learning on offer. In turn, it will help those employees who are motivated to develop and grow by providing
the critical experiences, resources, tools and opportunities to succeed in their career. Chubb internally sources talent to
fill open positions where appropriate.

Details of the number of employees and related costs can be found in note 8 to the financial statements.

Enuvironmental Matters

Chubb recognises its responsibility to provide solutions that help clients manage environmental risks, reduce any
environmental impact and make meaningful contributions to environmental causes.

The Chubb group is one of the largest and most advanced global underwriters of environmental liability and pollution
risks, and as a result has a significant interest in current and future regulatory requirements that may affect its
operations. As an insurance company, Chubb’s emissions produce a modest climate footprint and it continues to improve
its facilities by implementing energy efficient projects such as lighting, heating, ventilation and air conditioning and
increasing chiller set points across all of its operations. Chubb’s commitment to the disclosure of environmental actions
and philanthropic activities reduces the reputational risk relating to its environmental practices.

As a global property and casualty insurer, Chubb has significant exposure to potential losses from weather related events
of any kind. Assessing and managing risk is a core competency for Chubb and hence the costs of managing climate
change risk are embedded into its risk management process.

Chubb does not anticipate any significant risk to its European operations as a resuit of climate change.

Chubb produces an annyal Environmental Report which outlines the full scope of the group’s environmental programme
and initiatives. It reports to the Carbon Disclosure Project on an annual basis disclosing climate change risks and
opportunities as well as emissions performance. A third-party certified environmental statement on the company’s
greenhouse gas emissions program is also included. Chubb also demonstrated its commitment to increasing awareness
within the industry by sponsoring Insurance Business Magazine to host the “The Environmental Liability and Risk
Masterelass” and conference designed to inform brokers and other insurers about the importance of environmental risk
liability insurance.

Chubb is a proud member of ClimateWise, an independent network of insurers, reinsurers, brokers and insurance
industry service providers facilitated by the University of Cambridge Institute for Sustainability Leadership. Chubb
discloses its global actions to ClimateWise annually based on the ClimateWise principles of direct consumption. This
independent review enables Chubb to assess its influence on those it interacts with, from brokers and clients to
government agencies and regulators. In 2017 Chubb scored 74%, placing it fifth out of sixteen ClimateWise members.
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Chubb is committed to managing and reducing greenhouse gas ermissions throughout its company operations, and plans
to announce an updated greenhouse gas reduction goal for the combined company some time in 2018. The company will
continue to deploy successful approaches for greenhouse gas emissions reduction including installing energy-efficient
lighting and equipment with more efficient use of office space. In 2018, Chubb’s London office will begin to transition to
Activity Based Working, which will result in up to a 25% increase in efficiency of office space usage, as well as reducing
emissions that result from commuting.

Breakdowns 2015 2016 2017

Net Emissions 5,462 tCOze 3,095 tCO2e! 1,166 tCOz2e

Number of UK Employees 1,794 FTE 1,976 FTE 2,090 FTE

Emissions per Employee 3.04 tCO2¢/FTE 1.566296 tCO2¢/FTE 0;557895 tCOze¢/FTE

! Since 2016 Chubb has committed to purchasing 100% renewable energy which has resulted in a significant
reduction in reported net emissions

In 2017, Chubb earned a score of ‘A-" on the Carbon Disclosure Project’s climate change program ranking and was one of
only 22 insurers out of 148 analysed to earn a “High Quality” designation for the comprehensiveness of its climate risk
disclosures by Ceres, the nonprofit sustainability organization.

Chubb is a pioneer in developing advanced environmental insurance solutions, including coverages for premises-based
exposures, contractors’ and project pollution liability, renewable energy, clean technology and environmental cleanup
projects, as well as “green building” consulting services and a propetty policy that enables greener rebuilding after a loss.
Chubb’s role in mitigating supply chain and global operations risks through its risk engineering services helps
organisations identify climate-related exposures while providing risk management expertise to help manage
environmental challenges caused by climate change.

Anti-corruption and Bribery

Chubb recognises the importance of the effective management of financial crime risk in terms of its obligations to its
customers, the expectations of its regulators and long term financial stability. The Financial Crime Framework is
comprised of board policies and procedures and sets out the company’s approach to the management of financial crime
risk including bribery and corruption. This framework is underpinned by the Chubb Code of Conduct.

Risks relating to financial crime may include fines or penalties for non-compliance with laws and regulations, loss of
licences or a restriction on the company’s ability to transact business, additional regulatory scrutiny and a loss of
reputation. The management of financial crime risk is fully integrated into Chubb's wider Risk Management
Framework. All financial crime policies within this framework enable exemptions to be granted in accordance with the
corresponding risk appetite statement, in part determining the exemption approval and reporting processes to the
Board. The risk appetite statement also addresses the escalation procedure for non-compliance of policy standards
and/or breaches of risk appetite.

Financial erime policies and explanatory guidance notes relating to financial crime are in place and are appropriately
detailed and take into account the nature and complexity of Chubb’s activities. The policies require that all Chubb
business units develop and maintain controls that are sufficient to achieve compliance with the standards set out in each
individual policy and the responsibility and accountability for the implementation and oversight of these controls is
clearly allocated in the pelicy documents. Regular policy reviews are undertaken and new and emerging risks are
considered. Oversight procedures are in place and all financial crime policies and procedures are subject to internal and
external audit and review procedures,
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As a regulated company, CEGL has to take reasonable steps to identify, prevent and report all identified incidents of
bribery and corruption and ensure that it conducts its business with integrity and honesty at all times. Chubb’s European
Anti-Bribery & Corruption Policy describes a number of standards that must be adhered to, including the need to carry
out due diligence checks when performing various business activities, adding relevant contractual clauses under certain
circumstances, gifts and hospitality procedures, and how concerns or suspicious activity should be reported. All business
lines are required to implement anti-bribery and corruption procedures and controls at each stage of the insurance
transaction appropriate to their risk exposure and supported by compliance monitoring procedures to ensure compliance
with the agreed standards. Training relating to the Anti-Bribery & Corruption Policy is provided to all new joiners as part
of the induction programme, with all employees required to complete refresher training on a periodic basis.

Approved by the Board of Directors
M K Hammond
Chief Financial Officer

23 March 2018
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The directors are pleased to submit their report and the audited financial statements for the year to 31 December 2017.

Future Developments

Likely future developments in the business of the company are discussed in the Strategic Report.

Results and Dividends

The company made a profit on ordinary activities before tax for the year to 31 December 2017 of £206.8 million (2016:
£193.2 million).

Shareholders’ funds at the 31 December 2017 totalled £2,405.4 million (2016: £1,397.5 million).

An interim dividend of £100.0 million (2016: £100.0 million) was approved by the Board on 11 December 2017. The
directors do not propose a final dividend.

Employees

Staff based in the company’s branches outside the UK are directly employed by the company. Staff that support the UK
branch operations of the company are employed by an affiliate, ACE INA Services U.K. Limited. Their costs are included

in management recharges from this service company.

Directors

The following have been directors from 1 January 2017 to the date of this report unless otherwise indicated:

Executive directors:

M K Hammond

D Jaksic (Resigned 31 December 2017)
A J Kendrick

J Moghrabi

R P Murray (Resigned 31 May 2017)

J U Rehman

D P Robinson

A M W Shaw

Non-executive directors:

M Bailey

K N O’Shiel

C E Riley

J A Turner (Appointed 18 May 2017)

T C Wade

M J Yardiey (Resigned 31 December 2017)

J A Napier (Resigned 17 May 2017)
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Qualifying third-party indemnity provisions (as defined by section 234 of the Companies Act 2006) are put in place for
the benefit of the directors and, at the date of this report, are in in force in relation to certain losses and liabilities which
they may incur (or have incurred) in connection with their duties, powers or office.

The company also has the benefit of a group insurance company management activities policy effected by Chubb Limited.
No charge was made to the company during the year for this policy.

Financial Risk Management

Information on the use of financial instruments by the company and its management of financial risk is disclosed in note
2 to the financial statements. In particular the company’s exposures to interest rate risk, equity price risk, currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk are separately disclosed in that note. The company’s exposure to cash fow risk is addressed
under the headings of “Credit risk” and “Liquidity risk”.

Branches Qutside the UK

In addition, to the UK headquarters, the company has a further 19 branches across Europe.

Statemnent as to Disclosure of Information to Auditors

Each of the persons who is a director at the date of this report confirms that:
1. so far as he or she is aware, there is no information relevant to the audit of the company’s financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017 of which the auditors are unaware, and
2. the director has taken all steps that he or she ought to have taken in his duty as a director in order to make
himselt or herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditors are
aware of that information.

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, Directors’ Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable lJaw and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors
have prepared the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
(United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and
of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

. select syjtable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

»  state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of frand
and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the company’s website. Legislation in the United
Kingdom govething the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions.
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Auditors

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, will continue to hold office in accordance with Section 487 of the
Companies Act 2006.

By Order of the Board

Pridasto

Rowan Hostler

for and on hehalf of

Chubb London Services Limited
Secretary, 23 March 2018

100 Leadenhall Street

London

EC3A 3BP
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Chubb
European Group Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, Chubb European Group Limited’s financial statements:

« give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2017 and of its profit for the year
then ended;

* have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland”, and applicable law}); and

» have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report, which comprise: the Balance Sheet as at 31
December 2017; the profit and loss account, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity for
the year ended 31 December 2017; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant
accounting policies.

OQur opinijon is consistent with our reporting to the Audit Committee.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”) and applicable law,
Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our repott. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC’s Ethical Standard, as applicable to public interest entities, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were
not provided to the company.

Other than those disclosed in note 6 to the financial statements, we have provided no non-audit services to the company in
the period from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017.
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Our audit approach
Querview
Overall materiality: £29.0 million (2016: £26.2 million), based on 1% of Impact in COR from
a change in gross premium.
Qur audit over the financial statements of Chubb European Group Limited requires us to
. scope significant components (which include branches) to gain sufficient coverage over the
Materiality operations of the entity. In making scoping decisions we consider
« those components which are individually financially significant;
¢ those line items within the financial statements, such as gross premiums written, which
Audit scope are significant by virtue of size; and

» those which have specific characteristics that are of higher risk.

As a result of these scoping decisions we have performed full scope audit procedures over all
Key audit UX business and all claims provisions. This gave us coverage over 87% of the company’s
revenue, 88% of claims provisions and 93% of assets.

* We have reported on the following Key Audit matters:
o Valueation of Claims Outstanding Reserves

The scope of our oudit

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the financial
statements. In particular, we looked at where the directors made subjective judgements, for example in respect of significant
accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertain.

We gained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework applicable to the company and the industry in which it
opetates, and considered the risk of acts by the company which were contrary to applicable laws and regulations, including
fraud. We designed audit procedures to respond to the risk, recognising that the risk of not detecting a material
misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate
concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion. We focused on laws and
regulations that could give rise to a material misstatement in the company’s financial statements, including, but not limited
to, the Companies Act 2006, UK tax legislation and the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000. Our tests included, but
were not limited to, review of the financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation, enquiries of
management and review of internal audit reports in so far as they related to the financial statements. There are inherent
limitations in the audit procedures described above and the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is
from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we would become aware of it.

We did not identify any key audit matters relating to irregularities, including fraud. As in all of our audits we also addressed
the risk of management override of internal controls, including testing journals and evaluating whether there was evidence
of bias by the directors that represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the arca of focus
Valuation of Claims Outstanding Reserves We have conducted detailed testing over the Technical
Provisions within CEGL and the loss reserving cycle.

The net outstanding claims reserve is a material balance . . .
within the financial statements. Its determination has a In conducting our audit we performed the following:
significant impact on the financial result and thereis a high  Contro)s testing over:
degree of complexity and judgement involved in . .
determining the esimate. *  Reserving governance;

¢ Actuarial peer reviews;

The judgement includes both complex accounting »  Third party actuarial reviews;

treatments and complex methods and assumptions used to

report and estimate technical provisions. Where complex '

estimates arise, estimation uncertainty increases and Testing of transactions and balances:

results in a higher risk in our audit. *  Testing by actuarial specialists of the methods and
assumptions used by management to estimate
technical provisions. Analysis ¢ of key mdlcators
used -for low rlsk c]asses, :

» Data reconciliations.

= Audit of management ] actual Vs expected process
and ad;ustmems

. Te;tmg of latge and vcalastmphe c]alms,

. Use of market benchmarking to assess claims
prowsnons for catastrophe losses mcurred in the

Yeal', C
. Rev:ew of Wlllls 'l‘owers Watson s mdependent
r&serve u—:wew : .
Data te.slmg
. Reconcﬂed data used in the resemng procas to
_souice systems :

e  Tested qua]natlve and quantltauve elemen_ts of
underlying clalms and reinsuranee ‘data.

How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed encugh work to be able to give an cpinion on the financial
statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the company, the accounting processes and controls, and the
industry in which it operates.

Chubb Eurcpean Group Limited is the lead European subsidiary of Chubb Limited a US based insurer. It is domiciled in the
UK and carries out business through 19 branches across Europe. In addition to the branch structure there are also two other
small areas of business which operate separately; Chubb Ireland and Tempest Re,

In scoping our audit we determine the Chubb Ireland and Tempest Re business to be immaterial and therefore focus our
work on Chubb UK and the European branches. In doing so we treat the UK and European branches as one homogenous
population given the control environment in place over Chubb Europe and perform a full scope audit over this area.




CHUBB EUROPEAN GROUP LIMITED
(Formerly ACE European Group Limited) PAGE z5

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CHUBB
EUROPEAN GROUP LIMITED
31 December 2017

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for
materiality. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature,
timing and extent of our audit procedures on the individual financial statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating
the effect of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Overall materiality £29.0 million (2016: £26.2 million).

How we determined it 1% of Impact in COR from a change in gross premium.

Rationale for benchmark We believe that the impact in COR from a change in gross premium is a key operating

applied metric for general insurance entities and therefore deemed an appropriate auditing
benchmark.

We agreed with the Audit Commiltee that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit above £2.9
million (2016: £2.6 million) as well as misstatements below that amount that, in our view, warranted reperting for
qualitative reasons.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which ISAs (UK) require us to report to you
when:
s the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not

appropriate; or

+ the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a
period of at least twelve maonths from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material
misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information, If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
based on these responsibilities,

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Compantes Act 2006 have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, ISAs (UK) require us also
to report certain opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and
Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 December 2017 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we did
not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report.
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Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of the Directors' Responsibilities set out on page 20, the directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they
give a true and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordanee with ISAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggrepate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinjons, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept
or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
¢+ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

¢ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

e  certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
« the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns,

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Appointment

Following the recommendation of the audit committee, we were appointed by shareholders at the 1985 Annual General
Meeting to audit the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 1985 and subsequent financial periods. The
period of total uninterrupted engagement is 33 years, covering the years ended 31 December 1985 to 31 December 2017,

Nick Wilks (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

23 March 2018
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2017 2016
Note £'o000 £ooo
Technical account —general business
Earned premiums, net of reinsurance:
Gross premiums written — continuing operations 3 3,267,360 2,390,113
—discontinued operations 3 114 (2,162)
Gross premiums written 3 3,267,474 2,387,951
Cutward reinsurance premiums (1,416,763) (1,069,964)
Net premiums written 1,850,711 1,317,987
Change in the gross provision for unearned premiums {14,249) (59,207)
Change in the provision for unearned premiums — reinsurers’
(1,811) 1,633
share
Earned premiums, net of reinsurance 1,834,651 1,260,413

Claimsincurred, net of reinsurance:

Claims paid:

Gross amount

Reinsurers' share

Net paid claims

Change in the provision for claims outstanding:
Grossamount

Reinsurers’ share

Change in the net provision for claims outstanding

Claims incurred, net of reinsurance

Net operating expenses
Change in the equalisation provision

Balance on the technical account for general business

3 (1,901,335)
942,911

(958,424)

3 64,664
(76,690)
(12,026)
(970,450)

5 (745,707}

118,494

{1,272,709)
662,328

(610,381)
(111,081)
134,540
239152
(586,922)

(578,676}
105,102

199,917
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2017 2016

Note £’o00 £'ooo
Non-technical aceount
Balance on the technical account for general business 118,404 199,017
Investment income 9 132,730 96,220
Unrealised gains on investments 9 49,227 91,934
Investment expenses and charges 9 {23,679) {41,401)
Unrealised losses on investments 9 {68,374) (25,841)
Foreign exchange differences (364) (126,884}
Other (expenses) / income (,225) (721)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 206,809 193,224
Continuing operations 204,101 197,314
Discontinued operations 2,708 (4,090)
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities 10 (56,718) (32,841)
Profit for the financial year 150,091 160,383

There is no difference between the profit on ordinary activities before taxation and the profit for the financial year for the

current or prior year and their historical cost equivalents.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 December 2017

Profit for the financial year

Currency translation differences

Actuarial gain / (loss) recognised in relation to pension
schemes

Movement on deferred taxation relating to pension Hability

Total recognised gains relating tothe year

2017
£’c00
150,001
31,069
1,920

614

183‘624

2016

f'ooo
160,383
259,640
(772)
(553)

1185628
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201 2016
Note £'000 £'o00
Assets
Investments
Other financial investments 12 5,244,008 2,997,692
Financial derivative instruments 12 1,143 745
— 5,245,151 2,998,
Reinsurers’ share of technical provisions
Provision for unearned premiums 412,722 365,539
Provision for claims outstanding 2,804,657 2,446,
— 3,217,379 _2,811,036
Debtors -~ amountsfalling due within one year
Debtors arising out of direct insurance operations:
amounts owed by policy holders 27,921 33,395
amounts owed by intermediaries 695,608 489,969
Debtors arising out of reinsurance gperations 240,815 244,801
Other debtors 13 181,923 58,719
1,146,267 826,884
Other assets
Intangible assets 15 38,774 50,951
Tangible assets 16 10,826 3,593
Cash at bank and in hand 2 169,722 60,209
219,322 114,753
Prepayments and accrued income
Accrued interest and rent 62,111 15,597
Deferred acquisition costs 236,755 164,912
Other prepaymentsand accrued income 936 309
299.802 200,818
Total assets 10,127,921

6,252,828
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2017 2016

Note £'o00 f'ooo
Liabilities
Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital 18 786,120 544,741
Share premium 18 682,834 -
Profit and loss account 910,761 827,067
Merger reserve 25,653 25,653
Total shareholders’ funds 2,405,368 1,397,461
Technical provisions
Provision for unearned premiums 1,232,644 929,851
Provision for claims outstanding 5,727,399 4,085,881
6,960,043 5,015,732
Deposits received from reinsurers 8,652 7,892
Creditors — amounts falling due within one year
Creditors arising out of direct insurance operations 3,729 20,863
Creditors arising out of reinsurance operations 265,262 253,872
Bank overdraft 2 146,237 51,821
Other creditorsincluding taxation and social security 20 199,702 107,239
615,020 433,795
Other financial liabilities 12 293 742
Accruals and deferred income
Deferred acquisition costs relating toreinsurance 46,459 40,191
Other accruals and deferred income 85,761 48,769
132,220 88,960
Total liabilities excluding pension liability 10,121,596 6,944,582
Pension liability 17 6,325 8,246
Total liabilities 10,127,921 6,952,828

The notes on pages 32 to 63 are an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 27 to 63 were approved and authorised for signature By the Board of Directors on 19
March 2018 and were signed on its behalf by:

S 4

M K Hammond
Chief Financial Officer
23 March 2018
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Called-up Share Merger Profit and
share . ‘Total
. Premium reserve loss account
capital
Note £'000 F'ooo £'ooo £'o00 £'ooo

At 1 January 2016 544,741 - 25,653 508,369 1,078,763
Profit for the financial year - - - 160,383 160,383
Other comprehensive income:

Currency translation differences - - - 259,640 259,640
Actuarial gain recognised in

relation to pension schemes - - - (772) (772)
Movement on deferred taxation

relating to pension liability - - - (553) (553)
Dividends paid on equity shares 11 - - - (100,000) {100,000)
As 31 December 2016 544,741 - zggegé 827,067 1&22461
New shares issued as part of Group

Reconstruction 26 241,379 682,834 B - 924,213
Profit for the financial y ear - - - 150,091 150,091
Other comprehensive income:

Currency translation differences - - - 31,069 31,069
Actuarial loss recognised in relation

to pension schemes - - - 1,920 1,920
Movement on deferred taxation

relating to pension liability - - - 614 614
Dividends paid on equity shares 11 - - = {100,000) (100,000)
As 31 December 2017 786,120 682,834 25,653 910,761 2,405,368
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation

Chubb European Group Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in the United Kingdom. The financial
statements have been prepared under the provision of The Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts
and Reports) Regulations 2008 (“S12008/4107) relating to insurance companies’ individual financial statements and
applicable accounting standards in the United Kingdom, including Financial Reporting Standard FRS 202, “The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the United Xingdom and the Republic of Ireland” (*FRS 102") and Financial Reporting
Standard FRS 103, “Insurance Contracts™ {“FRS 1037).

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated. The company has adopted FRS
102 and FRS 103 in these financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, under the
historical cost convention modified to include the revaluation of certain financial assets and Habilities. The company is a
wholly owned subsidiary within the Chubb Limited group and is included within the consolidated financial statements of
Chubb Limited, which are publicly available. Consequently, the company has taken advantage of the exemption from
preparing a cash flow statement and disclosing details of share-based payments under the terms of FRS 102.

On o1 May 2017 the company merged with Chubb Insurance Company of Burope SE (“CICE™) and Chubb Bermuda
International Insurance Designated Activity Company (“CBII”). This has been treated as a group reconstruction in
accordance with FRS 102. From an accounting perspective, the transaction has an effective date of 1 January 2017, All
accounting policies have been aligned as at this date, and a full year of transactions has been included within the Profit
and Loss Account. Greater detail around the nature of the merger and its financial impact is disclosed in note 26.

Continuing and discontinued operations

Discontinued operations include business underwritten by CEGL prior to its reauthorisation by the Financial Services
Authgority {(“FSA”) in 2003. This business included UK marine and aviation business underwritten until 1994, accident
and health business underwritten until 1995 and United States surplus lines business underwritten until 1998, Following
the group reconstruction in 2005 (see the Statement of changes in equity); discontinued operations now also include
marine and aviation business underwritten by Chubb Insurance 8.A.-N.V. in the London market prior to 1999, All other
operations are classified as continuing.

Premiums written

Premiums written, which are stated gross of brokerage but exclusive of premium taxes, relate to business incepted during
the year, together with adjustments made in the year to premiums written in prior accounting periods. Estimates are
made of pipeline premiums, representing amounts due but not yet received or notified to the company by intermediaries.

Unearned premiums

Unearned premiums represent the proportion of premiums written in the year that relate to unexpired terms of policies
in force at the balance sheet date, calculated on the basis of established risk profiles or time apportionment as
appropriate.

Acquisition costs

Acquisition costs comprise brokerage, commissions and other related expenses, and are deferred over the period in
which the related preminms are earned.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Claims incurred

Claims incurred comprise the estimated cost of all claims occurring during the year, whether reported or not, including
related direct and indirect expenses and adjustments to claims outstanding from previous years. Where applicable,
deductions are made for reinsurance, salvage and other recoveries.

Provision for claims outstanding and related reinsurance recouveries

The provision for claims outstanding is assessed on an individual case basis and is based on the estimated ultimate cost
of all claims notified but not settled by the balance sheet date, together with the provision for related claims handling
costs. The provision also includes the estimated cost of claims incurred but not reported (“IBNR™) at the balance sheet
date based on statistical methods.

These methods generally involve projecting from past experience of the development of claims over time to form a view
of the likely ultimate claims to be experienced for more recent underwriting, having regard to variations in the business
accepted and the underlying terms and conditions. For the most recent years, where a high degree of volatility arises
from projections, estimates may be based in part on output from rating and other models of the business accepted and
assessments of underwriting conditions. The amount of salvage and subrogation recoveries is separately identified and,
where material, reported as an asset.

The reinsurers’ share of the provision for claims outstanding is based on the amounts of outstanding claims and
projections for IBNR, net of estimated irrecoverable amounts, having regard to the reinsurance programme in place for
the class of business, the claims experience for the year and the current security rating of the reinsurance companies
involved. A number of statistical methods are used to assist in making these estimates.

The two most critical assumptions as regards the provision for claims outstanding are that the past is a reasonable
predictor of the likely level of claims development, and that the rating and other models used for current business are fair
reflections of the likely level of ultimate claims to be incurred.

The directors consider that the provision for gross claims outstanding and related reinsurance recoveries is fairly stated
on the basis of the information currently available to them. However, the ultimate liability will vary as a result of
subsequent information and events and this may result in significant adjustments to the amounts provided. Adjustments
to the amounts of claims provisions established in prior years are reflected in the financial statements for the period in
which the adjustments are made. The methods used, and the estimates made, are reviewed regularly.

When calculating the provision for claims outstanding, the reported business segments are subject to specific issues, as
set out below:

Fire and other damage to property; marine, aviation and transport; accident and health

These business segments are predominantly “short tail”; that is, there is not a significant delay between the occurrence of
the claim and the claim being reported to the company. The costs of claims notified to the company at the balance sheet
date are estimated on a case by case basis to reflect the individual circumstances of each claim. The ultimate expected
cost of claims is projected from this data by reference to statistics, which show how estimates of claims incurred in
previous periods have developed over time to reflect changes in the underlying estimates of the cost of notified claims
and late notifications.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Prouisions for claims outstanding and related reinsurance recoveries — continued

Third party liability (including marine and aviation liability)

Liability claims are longer tail than the classes of business described above and so a larger element of the provision for
claims outstanding relates to IBNR. Claims estimates for the company’s liability business are derived from a combination
of loss ratio based estimates and an estimate based upon actval caims experience using a predetermined formula
whereby greater weight is given to actual claims experience as time passes. The initial estimate of the loss ratio, based on
the experience of previous years adjusted for factors such as premium rate changes and claims inflation, and on the
anticipated market experience, is an important assumption in this estimation technique. In respect of liability claims, the
assessment of claims inflation and anticipated market experience is particularly sensitive to the level of court awards and
to the development of legal precedent on matters of contract and tort. The liability class of business is also subject to the
emergence of new types of latent claims but no allowance is includeq for this as at the balance sheet date.

Reinsurance acceptances

This business segment includes both short tail and long tail business, and is subject to the issues laid out in the preceding
two sections above.

Asbestos, pollution and health claims ("APH"}

The company has some exposure to APH from its discontinued operations. There may be a long delay between the
occurrence and notification of these types of claim. In estimating the cost of claims the company considers the type of
risks written historically that may give rise to exposure to these risks, notifications received from policyholders, the
nature and extent of the cover provided, the current legal environment, changes in the effectiveness of clean up
techniques and industry benchmarks of the typical cost of claims of this kind and of total expected insured losses. The
company is protected by way of a stop loss agreement with a fellow group undertaking from any adverse development
arising from such exposures in its marine and aviation account for 1991 and prior years.

Unexpired risks provision

A provision for unexpired risks is made where claims and related expenses arising after the end of the financial period in
respect of contracts concluded before that date, are expected to exceed the unearned premiums and premiums receivable
under these contracts, after the deduction of any acquisition costs deferred. The provision for unexpired risks is
calculated by reference to classes of business which are managed together, after taking into account relevant investment
return.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised when they are approved by the Board of Directors.
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Financial Assets and Liabilities

The company recognises a financial asset or a financial liability on its balance sheet when it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. On initial recognition the company determines the category of financial
instrument and values it accordingly. The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments are acquired.

Investments — fair value through profit and loss

A financial asset is classified into this category at inception if they are acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the short term, if they form part of a portfolio of financial assets in which there is evidence of short-term profit-taking, or
if so designated to minimise any measurement or recognition inconsistency with the associated liabilities.

Financial assets designated as fair value through profit and loss are initially recognised at fair value with any transaction
costs being expensed through the profit and loss account. For quoted investments where there is an active market, the
fair value is their quoted bid price at the balance sheet date. For quoted investments where there is no active market, the
fair value is determined by reference to prices for similar assets in active markets.

Realised gains and losses and unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit or Joss are included in the profit and loss account in the period in which they arise.

Cash at bank and in hand and bank overdrafis

Cash at bank and in hand is cash in hand and deposits repayable on demand. Deposits are repayable on demand if they
can be withdrawn at any time without notice and without penalty or if a maturity or period of notice of not more than 24
hours or one working day has been agreed. Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand.

Insurance and other receivables

Insurance and other receivables are recognised at fair value less any provision for impairment. Any impairment of a
receivable will be recognised if there is evidence that the company will not be able to collect the amounts receivable
according to the original terms of the receivable.

Derivative financial instruments
The company has chosen to apply the disclosure requirements of FRS 102 in respect of financial instruments.

Derivative financial instruments are measured on initial recognition, and subsequently, at fair value. The gain or loss on
remeasurement to fair value is recognised immediately in the profit and loss account. Fair values are obtained from
quoted market prices in active markets, including recent market transactions, and valuation techniques as appropriate.
All derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

The fair value of interest rate swaps is the estimated amount that the company would receive or pay to terminate the
swap at the balance sheet date, taking into account current interest rates and the current creditworthiness of the swap
counterparties. The fair value of forward exchange contracts is their quoted market price at the balance sheet date.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet only when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Purchases and sales of securities and currencies are recognised on trade date — the date on which the company commits
to purchase or sell the asset.
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Stock lending

The company is party to a securities lending agreement under which securities are lent to third parties on a short-term
basis with collateral provided in return. The securities lent are not derecognised; rather they continue to be recognised
within the appropriate investment classification.

Where the company is provided with collateral in the form of cash, it may hold the cash or reinvest it in other financial
investments. The company recognises the cash or investments and the related obligation to return such collateral in the
company’s balance sheet.

Investment return

Investment return comprises all investment income, realised investment gains and losses and movements in unrealised
gains and losses, net of investment expenses, charges and interest. FRS 102 requires that, for insurance entities, both
realised and unrealised investment gains and losses be included as part of investment return in the profit and loss
account. Dividends are recorded on the date on which the shares are quoted ex-dividend. Interest and expenses are
accounted for on an accruals basis.

Realised gains and losses on investments carried at fair value are calculated as the difference between net sale proceeds
and purchase price. Movements in unrealised gains and losses on investments represent the difference between the
valuation at the balance sheet date and their purchase price or, if they have previously been revalued, their valuation at
the last balance sheet date, together with the reversal of unrealised gains and losses recognised in earlier accounting
periods in respect of investment disposals in the current period.

Stock lending fees are recognised as earned on a pro rata basis over the period of lending.

Intangible assets

Amontisation is provided on all intangible fixed assets to write off their cost on a straight line basis over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Computer software Up to 12 years

Tangible assets

Tangible assets are capitalised and depreciated by equal annual instalments over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Land and buildings Over the shorter of the lease term or 50 years
Motor vehicles 4 years
Leasechold improvements Over the remaining period of the lease
Fixtures and fittings / 5 years
Computer, office equipment and software up to 5 years

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is recognised as a liability or asset if transactions have occurred at the balance sheet date that give rise
to an obligation to pay more tax in future, or a right to pay less tax in future. An asset is not recognised to the extent that
the transfer of economic benefits in future is uncertain. Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised are not discounted.
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Operating leases

Rents payable under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account as incurred over the lease term.

Share premium

Share premium represents the any difference between the nominal value of issued share capital and the fair value of
consideration transferred in exchange. In this case, the net assets of CICE and CBII assumed by CEGL as part of cross
border merger were greater than the nominal value of the shars issued,which has resulted in a share premium reserve,

Pension costs

‘The company operates a small number of funded defined benefit pension schemes in Europe with assets held in separate
trustee-administered funds. The pension asset or liability recognised in the balance sheet is the value of the schemes’
assets less the present value of the schemes’ liabilities.

The pension cost for the schemes is analysed between current service cost, past service cost and net expected return on
pension schemes. Current service cost is the actvarially calculated present value of the benefits earned by the active
employees in each period. Past service costs, relating to employee service in prior periods arising in the current period as
a result of the introduction of, or improvement to, retirement benefits, are recognised in the profit and loss account on a
straight-line basis over the period in which the increase in benefits vest.

Net expected return comprises the expected return on the pension scheme assets less interest on scheme liabilities.

The actuarial gains and losses which arise from valuations and from updating the latest actuarial valuations to reflect
conditions at the balance date are taken to the statement of comprehensive income for the period. The attributable
deferred taxation is shown separately in the statement of comprehensive income.

The company also provides a guarantee to a defined benefit pension scheme held by Chubb Services UK Limited. Given
the scheme is currently in a net asset position, no liability has been recognised by CEGL.

Foreign currencies

CEGL operates as a number of branches, each of which conducts business in a variety of transactional currencies. These
branches include both UK and overseas insurance operations and centralised treasury operations. Each of the branches is
designated a functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for, in functional currency, at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the
transactions. Gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions, from translating such transactions into
the functional currency of the branch, and from the revaluation to year end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities, are recognised in the profit and loss account.

At each period end foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate. For this purpose all assets and
liabilities arising from insurance contracts (including unearned premiums, deferred acquisition costs and unexpired risks
provisions) are monetary items. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rate
at the date of the transaction and non-monetary items measured at fair value are measured using the exchange rate when
fair value was determined,

Results of branches, recarded in their functional currency, are translated into sterling at average rates of exchange while
assets and liabilities are translated to sterling at year end exchange rates. Differences arising on translation are recorded
in the statement of comprehensive income.
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2. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT & FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Capital management

CEGL assesses its capital needs on a risk management basis and maintains an efficient capital structure consistent with
the company’s risk profile and business requirements, and to meet regulatory requirements. The company then seeks to
maintain financial strength and capital adeguacy to support business growth and meet the regnirements of policyholders,
rating agencies and regulators, whilst retaining financial flexibility by ensuring substantial levels of liquidity. Once the
capital needs have been met, it is the policy of the company to distribute any surplus capital through dividends to its
ultimate parent company.

From a prudential perspective, CEGL is regulated by the PRA and is subject to insurance solvency regulations which
specify the minimum amount and type of capital that must be held, CEGL manages its capital levels in the context of the
Solvency 11 Standard Formula Solvency Capital Requirement and the Solvency II Minimum Capital Requirement, which
computes capital levels based on European industry risk factors related to premiums, reserves and assets. The company
performs tests and controls to ensure continuous and full compliance with the Sclvency 1I regulations.

The primary objectives of the company in managing capital can be summarised as follows:

e to satisfy the requirements of its policyholders, regulators and rating agencies;

« to match the profile of its assets and liabilities, taking account of the risks inherent in the business;
*  to manage exposures to key risks;

¢  to maintaip financial strength to support new business growth;

= to retain financial flexibility by maintaining strong liquidity.

Insurance risk

Insurance risk arises from fluctuations in the frequency and/or severity of claims. The company mitigates this risk by
maintaining underwriting discipline throughout its operations. This policy is supported by each strategic business unit’s
underwriting guidelines, expertise and appropriate authority limits, These puidelines are updated regularly to reflect
developments in the nature of the insurance risks being underwritten. The company also uses a reinsurance programme
to manage its insurance risk by providing cover against certain large exposures.

Sensttivity to insurance risk

As highlighted in Note 1, there is inherent uncertainty in the ultimate cost of claims for which the company uses a variety
of different actuarial techniques to estimate the provision for claims outstanding. If the net claims ratio for the year had
been higher by 1%, then the profit for the financial year would have been lower by £18.3 million (2016: £12.6 million) and
shareholders’ funds would have been lower by £18.3 million (2016: £12.6 million). If the net claims ratio had been lower
by 1%, then the profit for the financial year would have been higher by £18.3 million (2016: £12.6 million) and
shareholders’ funds would have been higher by £18.3 million (2016: £12.6 million}.

Concentrations of insurance risk

As set out in Note 3, the company writes a diverse book of business across a number of underwriting classes.
Approximately 29% of the gross written premiums for 2017 (2016: 30%) related to fire and other damage to property
insurance, with the remainder split across a number of other classes.

Geographically, 57.0% (2016: 55.9%) of gross premiums written in 2017 relates to risks within continental Europe
(including Ireland), with the remainder being spread across the United Kingdom , Asia Pacific, the United States of
America, Africa & Middle East and Latin America.
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Financial risk management objectives

The company is exposed to a range of financial risks through its financial assets and financial liabilities. The most
important components of this financial risk are market risk (including interest rate risk, equity price risk and currency
risk), liquidity risk and credit risk.

These financial risks principally arise from the investment activity of the business and consequent holdings in fixed
income investments, all of which are exposed to general and specific market movements. The underwriting activity of the
business also generates financial risk, particularly in the form of currency risk as well as liquidity and credit risk through
its insurance and reinsurance receivables and payables.

The notes below explain how financial risks are managed. The processes used to manage these risks are unchanged from
previous periods, and cover areas such as investment activity through stochastic modelling of the portfolio, within its
internal capital model and consequent capital requirements.

Inuestment activity governance

The company operates an Investment Committee which functions under terms of reference determined by the Executive
Committee of the Board. The Committee is charged with establishing and effecting an appropriate investment policy for
the company having regard to the financial risk appetite of the company. In addition, the Committee has the
responsibility for recommending the appointment and removal of investment managers, for reviewing the managers’
performance and for reporting on all other material aspects of the investment function.

The Investment Committee comprises senior Chubb management and is chaired by the Chief Executive Officer of Chubb
Asget Management, the group’s investment specialists who provide advisory services to Chubb group companies
including CEGL. The Committee also includes the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of the
company.

The investment management function is outsourced to specialist external managers.

Asset allocation policy

The Investment Cominittee has established a broad asset allocation policy which defines the limits for different asset
types. The asset allocation policy cites two major asset classes: investment grade fixed income securities and alternative
assets. Alternative assets can include equities, high-yield and emerging market instruments. The policy stipulates a
target range of between 75% and 100% for investment grade fixed income securities and a range of between 0% and 25%
for alternative asset classes. The current allocation to alternative assets sits at the mid of the target range, however, the
position is regularly reviewed by the Investment Committee.

Investment guidelines

Investent management agreements have been established with the external investment managers. The agreements
include specific guidelines for each individual portfolio in order to limit risks arising from duration, equity price,
currency, lquidity, credit and counterparty exposures. The managers provide guarterly affirmation of compliance with
these guidelines.
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Interest rate risk

The company is exposed to interest rate risk primarily through its investments in fixed interest securities and, to the
extent that claims inflation is correlated to interest rates, its liabilities to policyholders. Interest rate risk arises in the
fixed income investment portfolio primarily through instrument duration. Accordingly, the investment guidelines include
restrictions relating to the maximum weighted average duration of the portfolio. The restriction is stated by reference to
the permissible duration variance compared to the customised benchmark index by which the external investment
managers’ performance is assessed.

Sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk illustrates how changes in the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates at the reporting date. To iliustrate the downside risk
within the fixed interest portfolio of £4,959 million at external managers as at 31 December 2017 (2016: £2,870 million),
an increase of 100 basis points in interest yields across all portfolios consecutively (principally sterling, euro and US
dollars) has been calculated. Such an increase would decrease the market value of the investment portfolic and lead to a
decrease in the total investment retumn of £228.2 million and accordingly decrease total shareholders’ funds by £182.5
million.

Equity price risk

The company is exposed to equity price risk as a result of its holdings in equity investments, classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit and loss.

The risk in respect of equities is moderated through the asset allocation policy which limits the allocation to equities. The
investment guidelines restrict individual equity holdings relative to the size of the portfolio and the benchmark
constituents.

All equity holdings of £48.3 million {2016: £42.2 million) are listed and represent 1% (2016: 1%) of the total investment
portfolio, If the value of all equity markets in which the company invests decreased by 10%, with all other variables held
constant, the total investment return would decrease by £4.8 million and the total shareholders’ funds would decrease by
£3.8 million.

Currency risk

The company is primarily exposed to currency risk in respect of assets and liabilities under policies of insurance
denominated in currencies other than sterling. The company maintains various currency balances generated through
regular business activity but the majority of the funds held are denominated in sterling, euros and US dollars. The
company policy seeks to ensure that an approximate currency match of assets and liabilities is maintained, with the bulk
of surplus funds held in sterling, euros and US dollars.

Any component of the shareholders' funds denominated in currencies other than sterling gives rise to currency risk due
to exchange rate volatility relative to sterling.

The company is also exposed to currency risk in the investment portfolio as the investment guidelines allow the managers
to invest a portion of the individual portfolios in securities not denominated in the designated core currency of the
portfolio. However, the investinent management agreements stipulate that the majority of any exposure to non-core
currencies must be hedged, thus matching the risk. These allocations to non-core currencies are included within the
quarterly evaluation of the currency alignment reviewed by the Investment Committee.

The accounting policy for foreign currencies is stated in note 1 to the financial statements. Profit and loss results
pertaining to foreign branches are translated to sterling using the average rates of exchange for the year. Balance sheet
components {(monetary assets and liabilities) are translated to sterling using the rates of exchange at year end.
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For the profit and loss account, the 2017 average euro/sterling rate of €1.146/£1 is down on the prior period (2016:
€1.238/£1) and the US dollar/sterling rate of US$1.277/£1 is down on the prior period (2016: US$1.375/£1). If sterling
weakened by 10% against all currencies (primarily the euro and US dollar) and all other variables remained constant, the
profit before tax for the year would have been £2.9 million less than the amount reported. This amount is calculated as
10% of the profits atising from non-sterling business. This is significantly lower than the actual foreign exchange loss in
the current period as a result of various inter-branch currency balances that are in the process of being re-aligned. As a
consequence, foreign exchange gains or losses in the profit and loss account are in the future expected to be less sensitive
to changes in currency exchange rates,

For the monetary components of the balance sheet, the year-end rates used to convert eurc to sterling have decreased by
4.8% to €1.134/£1 and US dollar to sterling has increased 6.7% to US$1.351/F1 (2016: €1.191/£1 and US$1.266/£1).
Assuming sterling had weakened by 10% against all currencies (primarily the euro and US dollar) and all other variables
remained constant, the effect of translating year end foreign branch net assets based on these parameters would have
resulted in decreased shareholders’ funds of £148.8 million, which would have appeared as a loss in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the company is unable to meet its obligations as they fall due. To counter this risk, the
company aims to maintain funds in the form of cash or cash equivalents to meet known cash flows. In addition, the asset

allocation policy and the investment guidelines are structured in order to ensure that funds are predominantly held in
investment grade fixed income securities, the proceeds of which are readily realisable,

CEGL participates in a notional pooling programme with other Chubb group companies under a facility operated by Bank
Mendes Gans, a subsidiary of ING, which specialises in global liquidity management. The facility operates by the
notional pooling of designated balances of the Chubb group participants in order to provide additional liquidity. Chubb
group participants may overdraw individual account balances to fund immediate short term needs against credit
balances held elsewhere within the pool. On this basis, CEGL maintained an overdraft of £146.2 million at year end
(2016: £51.8 million) and credit balances of £169.7 million (2016: £60.2 million) as presented on the balance sheet.

The company also benefits from letter of credit facilities which can be utilised to meet certain funding needs and notional
pooling facilities with other Chubb group companies which serve to provide additional liquidity.

As indicated in the balance sheet, the company’s financial liabilities are all payable within one year. Non-derivative
financial liabilities with contractual maturities are payable within normal terms of trade, which is on average 60 days.
Non-derivative financial liabilities with contractual maturities are limited to reinsurance premiums payable and expense
accruals. Derivative financial liabilities at the balance sheet date have remaining contractual maturities of £0.00 million
within 1 month, £0.32 million between 1 and 3 months, £nil between 3 months and 1 year and £0.88 million afier more
than one year.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when due. The company is exposed to
credit risk through its investment activity and its insurance operations.
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Credit risk — investment

The company is exposed to investment credit and price risk as a result of its holdings in fixed income and equity
investments. The risk in respect of fixed income investments is moderated by the application of detailed investment
guidelines which limit the size of holdings with individual issuers, restrict duration and dictate minimum credit quality,
both for individual holdings and for the aggregate weighted portfolio,

The average credit quality of investment portfolios using Standard and Poor’s ratings remained high throughout the year
and at year end was “A”. This is comparable to the previous year (“A"). CEGL had £48.3 million equity holdings at 2017
year end {2016: £42.2 million).

The risk in respect of equities is moderated through the asset allocation policy which limits the allocation to equities. The
investment guidelines restrict individual equity holdings relative to the size of the portfolio and the benchmark
constituents.

The investment guidelines seek to limit the credit risk of each of the portfolios through specifying eligible/ineligible
investments; setting maximum counterparty exposures and minimum weighted credit quality and individual issuer credit
quality; and requiring collateral and indemnity arrangements for stock lending transactions.

The company engages in a securities lending program from which it generates net investment income from the lending of
certain of its investments to other institutions for short periods of time. The value of securities loaned is limited to 40%
of the company’s aggregate portfolio. Collaterai is provided against the market value of the loaned securities. The market
value is monitored on a daily basis with additional collateral obtained or refunded as the market value of the loaned
securities changes.,

The company maintains strict control] limits on open derivative positions, by both amount and term. The amount subject
to credit risk at any one time is limited to the current fair value of derivative financial assets.

Credit risk — insurance and investinent operations

The company is exposed to credit risk as a result of its regular insurance and reinsurance activity. The areas of key
exposure are:

+ reinsurers’ share of provision for claims outstanding;

+ debtors arising from reinsurers in respect of claims already paid;

+ amounts due from direct insurance and reinsurance policyholders; and
« amounts due from direct insurance and reinsurance intermediaries.

Ceded reinsurance is used to manage and mitigate inwards direct insurance and reinsurance risk, Ceded reinsurance
does not discharge the company’s liability as primary insurer. If a ceded reinsurer fails to pay a claim, the company
remains liable for the payment to the policyholder. A Reinsurance Security Committee is aoperated by the Chubb group
which analyses the creditworthiness of ceded reinsurers on a quarterly basis by reviewing their financial strength. In
addition, the recent payment history of ceded reinsurers is used to update the reinsurance purchasing strategy.

With regard to direct insurance and reinsurance receivables, the company operates a committee to review broker
security, a process for monitoring arrangements with managing general agents, and, in certain circumstances, the
requirement for collateral to be posted by the policyholder to the benefit of the company.
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2. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT & FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
The assets bearing credit risk are summarised below: _
2017 2016
£'000 E’'oco0
Other financial investments 5,244,008 2,997,692
Derivative financial securities 1,143 745
Reinsurers’ share of technical provisions 3,217,379 2,811,936
Debtors arising out of direct insurance operations 723,520 523,364
Debtors arising from reinsurance operations 240,815 244,801
Total assets bearing credit risk 9,426,874 6,578,538

Other financial investments and derivative financial instruments are designated as fair value through profit or loss at
inception, and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented investment strategy as
detailed in note 1. The Standard and Poor’s credit rating for other financial investments and derivative financial

securities is detailed below.
2017
F'ooo
AAA 714,029
AA 1,857,165
A 1,055,611
BBB 1,140,140
Below BBB or not rated 478,206
5,245,151

Other financial investments and derivative financial instruments are neither past due nor impaired.

2016
£'o00

315,814
1,049,792
579,778
640,254
412,799

2,998,437

The amount of change, during the period and cumulatively, in the fair value of receivables that is attributed to changes in

credit risk is represented by the provision for impairment against receivables past due.

Reinsurers’ share of technical provisions includes claims outstanding, related claims handling costs and unearned

premium. This balance includes 0.0% past due that have been impaired (2016: 0.0%).

Debtors arising out of direct and reinsurance operations are held at fair value less any provision for impairment as
described in note 1. They inclhide 0.2% (2016: 0.2%} that have been impaired and 18.9% (2016: 21.9%} that are past due,
but not impaired. The latter is aged 16.7% up to six months {2016: 20.4%), 1.5% six months to a year (2016: 1.2%) and

the remaining ¢.7% is older than a year (2016: 0.3%).

The Standard and Poor’s credit rating for reinsurers share of technical provisions and debtors arising out of reinsurance

operations are detailed below.
2017
£'o000
AA 2,731,228
A 502,577
BBB 2,383
Below BBB or not rated 222,006
3,458,194

2016
£'oo00

2,343,931
519,779
1,788

191,239

3,056,737
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2. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT & FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

Where appropriate the company seeks 1o obtain collateral from counterparties to mitigate the credit risk exposure from
insurance and reinsurance receivables. At 31 December 2017 the collateral provided to the company totalled £330.7
million (2016: £651.3 million). This balance is represented by Letters of Credit — B0.0% (2016: 62.4%), trust fands —
18.9 % (2016: 36.1%), cash — 1.1% (2016: 1.4%) and floating charge ~ 0.0% (2016: 0.0%).

The maximum exposure of receivables to credit risk at the balance sheet date is the carrying value less any collateral
obtained from counterparties. For the purpose of this disclosure ‘receivables’ comprises ‘Reinsurers’ share of technical
provisions’, ‘Debtors arising out of direct insutance operations’ and ‘Debtors arising from reinsurance operations’. At the
balance sheet date the maximum exposure of receivables to credit risk was £3,851.7 million (2016: £2,928.0 million).

3- SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS

Segmental information in the format required by the Companies Act 2606 is as follows:

Year to 31 December 2017
Continuing operations: Direct insurance
Accident and health

Marine, aviation and transport

Fire and other damage to property
Third party liability

Miscellaneous

Reinsurance acceptances

Discontinued operations

Year to 31 December 2016
Continuing operations: Direct insurance
Accident and health

Marine, aviation and transport

Fire and other damage to property
Third party liability

Miscellaneous

Reinsurance acceptances

Discontinued operations

Gross Gross s Gross .
X X Gross claims . Reinsurance
premiums premiums incurred operating balance
written eakned expenses
£'000 £'ooo £o00 fFooo £'o00
490,100 478,012 (162,859) (199,608) (56,747)
190,343 182,839 (102,579) (44,193) (21,711)
957,964 928,572 (588,489) (316,920) (116,584}
864,811 891,082 (632,730) (240,608) (88,123)
233,935 230,391 {81,839] (43,186} (57,464}
530,207 532,215 (272,963) (89,964) (16,962)
3,267,360 3,253,111 (1,841,459) (934,479} (357,591)
114 114 4,788 [¢) (5,990)
3,267,474 3,253,225 _(1,836,671) (934,479) (363,581)
G".m G“.’ss Grossclaims Grm. Reinsurance
premiums  premiums . operating
A incurred balance
written earned expenses
E'oo0 £'000 £'o00 £'o00 E'ooo
418,951 419,719 (155,428) (154,151} (40,830)
111,592 110,318 (70,222) {27,077} {19,360)
725,433 721,610 (300,582) (274,620) (219,520)
517,786 498,979 (252,017) (121,775) (43,235)
159,765 153,253 {98,843) (38,019) (2,665)
456,686 __ 427,027 (501,572) _ (117,738) 207,762
2,390,113 2,330,906 (1,378,664) (733.380) (117,848)
(2,162) {2,162) {5,126) o 1,089
2,38 1 2!3285125 (1!3835220) (2335330) (1165252)

The reinsurance balance represents the credit (charge} to the technical account from the aggregate of all items relating to

ontwards reinsurance.
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Analysis by geographic area — origin
Gross written preminms Profit (loss) before taxation Net assets
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
£’000 £o00 £’o00 fooo £'o00 £'ooo
United Kingdom 1,399,832 1,045,345 178,117 136,515 951,030 460,467
Gther EEA states 1,829,465 1,315,445 25,850 56,277 1,400,473 882,546
Other countries 38,177 27,161 2,842 432 53,865 54,448
3,267,474 2,387,951 206,809 193,224 2,405,368 1,397,461

Gross written premium information by destination (location of risk) as required by FRS 102 as follows:

2017 2016

£'000 £'o000
Continental Europe 1,863,266 564,153
United Kingdom 902,761 67,385
AsiafPacific 103,815 1,334,213
United States of America 90,117 57,158
Africa & Middle East 58,151 90,560
Americas 49,882 50,108
Worldwide 199,369 226,537
Discontinued business 114 (2,162)
3,267,474 2,387.951

4. MOVEMENT IN PRIOR YEARS' PROVISION FOR CLAIMS OUTSTANDING
The prior years’ net provision for claims outstanding generated a surplus for 2017 (2016: surplus) as detailed below:

Continuing operations:
Accident and health
Marine, aviation and transport
Fire and other damage to property
Third party lability
Miscellaneous

Discontinued operations

5. NET OPERATING EXPENSES — TECHNICAL ACCOUNT

2017 2016

£'000 £'000
8,039 (20,462)
5,747 (5,054)
38,421 15,360
{21,002) 61,081
8,716 7,178
39,921 58,103
(2,682) {4,038}
37,239 54,065
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2017 2016

£'oo00 £'000

Acquisition Costs 614,342 446,078
Change in net deferred acquisition costs (10,977) (10.999)
Administrative expenses 335,003 303,054
Reinsurance commissions {192,661) {159,457)
745,707 578,676

Administrative expenses include costs that are incurred by Chubb Services UK Limited (“CSUL”), a fellow group
undertaking, and recharged to the company in the form of management charges. In particular, this charge includes the
cost of the CSUL staff engaged in the business of CEGL.

In 2017 administrative expenses include integration costs of £18.8 million (2016: £45.1 miillion).

Total commissions for direct insurance accounted for by the company during the year amounted to £483.6 million (2016:
£344.1 million), and are included within acquisition costs.

6. AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

2017 2016

£'o00 £'ooo

Fees payable to the Company’s auditors for the audit of the 68 6
Company’s financial statements 9 94

Fees payable to the Company’s auditors for other services:

Audit-related assurance services 155 200
Tax compliance services ] 299
Tax advisory services o 12
Other non-audit services 500 1,075
1,623 2,280

Audit-related assurance services include reports under section 404 of the US Public Company Accounting Reform and
Investor Protection Act 2002 and also the andit of the Company’s regulatory return.
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7. OPERATING LEASE RENTALS

The total rentals under operating leases, charged as an expense in the profit and loss account, are disclosed below:

2017 2016
£'000 £'o00
Leasehold property 8,289 7,011
The tota) of future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases is as follows:
2017 2016
£'000 £'o00
Operating leases which expire:
Within 1 year 79 1,262
Between two and five years ’ 17,942 15,022
More than five years 17,261 3,497
19,781

35,282

The disclosures above relate to operating leases held by branches outside the UK. Operating leases for UK properties are
held by CSUL, and their costs are incorporated in management recharges from this service company. For disclosure
purposes, it is not practical to allocate these amounts to the underlying entities which utilise the office space leased.

8. DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES

2017 2016
£'oo0 £'ooo
Cost of staff employed by the company
Wages and salaries 88,480 71,559
Sacial security costs 23,641 16,415
Other pension costs 11,418 6,332
Other staff costs 9,767 7,315
133,315 101,621
The monthly average number of employees of the company during the year was as follows:
2017 2016
No. No.
Underwriting 833 646
Claims 302 202
Other 276 274
1,410 1,122

The disclosures above relate to staff based in the company’s branches outside the UK who are directly employed by the
company. Staff that support the UK branch operations of the company and centralised functions that are managed in the
UK are employed by CSUL and their costs are incorporated in management recharges from this service company. For
disclosure purposes, it is not practical to atlocate these amounts to the underlying entitles to which the staff provide

services.
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8. DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES - continued

Directors’ emoluments

All directors received emoluments through CSUL in respect of their services to Chubb group companies. The cost of these
emoluments is incorporated within the management recharges from CSUL. For disclosure purposes, it is not practical to
allocate these amounts to the underlying entities to which the directors provide services. Consequently, the following
amounts represent the total emoluments paid by CSUL to the directors of this company.

2017 2016
£’000 F'ooo
Aggregate emoluments and benefits 5,486 5,359
Company pension contributions t¢ money purchase pension 2 2
schemes 7 3
5,513 5.382

Included in the above amounts paid by CSUL in respect of the directors of this company, the highest paid director was
paid a total of £835,764 (2016: £979,163) in respect of emoluments and benefits. The amount of accrued pension and
accrued lump sum in relation to the highest paid director at the end of the year were £Nil (2016: £Nil} and £Nil (2016:
ENil) respectively.

The aggregate emoluments above do not include share based remuneration. All executive directors are entitled to receive
shares in Chubb Limited under long-term incentive plans. During the year, 7 directors received shares in Chubb Limited
under long-term incentive plans and 4 directors exercised options over the shares of Chubb Limited. The highest paid
director exercised share options during the year.

Uniil 31 March 2002, retirement benefits accrued under the ACE London Pension Scheme to 1 current director under the
final salary section. Disclosures relating to this scheme are contained within the financial statements for CSUL. From 1
April 2002, pension benefits are accruing to one current director under the Chubb European Group UK Pension Plan
(Stakeholder scheme).

9. INVESTMENT RETURN

2017 2016
£'o0o0 £'o00
Investment income
Income from investments 113,899 B4,286
Gains on the realisation of investments 18,831 11,934
132,730 96,220
Investment expenses and charges
Investment management expenses (16,254) (10,635)
Losses on the realisation of investments (7,425) (30,766)
(23,679) (41,401}
Net unrealised gaing less losses on investments
Unrealised gains on investments 49,227 91,934
Unrealised losses on investments (68,374) (25,841)

—_{10,147) 66,093

Total investment return 89,904 120,912
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10. TAXATION ON PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
(a) Tax on profit on ordinary activities
The tax charge is made up as follows:
2017 2016
£'000 £'oo0
Current taxation
UK corporation tax at 20% (2016: 20%) 50,934 18,863
Adjustments in respect of prior years (1,426) (846)
Total current taxation 49,508 18,017
Double taxation relief (22,395) (16,166)
27,113 1,851
Foreign taxation
Current taxation on income for the period 27,089 20,685
Adjustments in respect of previous periods 3,588 (8,110)
30,677 12,575
Deferred taxation
Origination and reversal of timing differences (1,996) 20,123
Adjustments in respect of previous periods 1,459 -
Effect of change in tax rates (535) (1,708)
Total deferred tax charged {1,072) 18,415
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 56,718 32,841
Tax included in the statement of comprehensive income
The tax charge is made up as follows:
Actuarial loss on pension scheme 370 287
Changes in rate 244 266
Total tax charge 614 553_

(b) Factors affecting the current tax charge

The tax assessed for the year is higher than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 20% (2016: 20%).

The differences are reconciled below:

Profit on ordinary activities before tax

Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by standard rate of UK
corporation tax of 19.25% (2016: 20%)

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Higher taxation rates on overseas earnings

Changes in rate

Adjustments in respect of prior periods - current tax
Adjustments in respect of prior periods - deferred tax

Total tax charge for the year

2017 2016
£'000 £'ooo
206,809 163,224
39,811 38,645
5,779 543
8,042 4,317
(535)
2,162 (1,708)
1,459 (8,956)
§6!EB §25821
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10. TAXATION ON PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES - continued

The adjustments in respect of previous period arise from differences between overseas and UK tax bases, The company
has unrecognised eligible foreign tax UEUFT) totally £57.1m as 31 December 2017 which is unlikely te be relieved in the
foreseeable future.

11. DIVIDENDS

During 2017 the company paid a dividend of 12.7p per share totalling £100.0 million (2016 £100.0 million).

12, OTHER FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS
Market

Value Cost Market Value Cost
2017 2017 2016 2016
£o00 £'o00 £'000 £'coo

Shares and other variable yield securities and 2
units in unit trosts 48,337 39,919 42,237 38,077
Private Equity 50,297 46,329 25,043 23,806

Debt securities and other fixed interest

earitios other 4,958,708 4,801,640 2,869,945 2,743,798
Limited Partnerships 32,589 33,055 - -
Deposits with credit institutions* 154,077 154,077 60,467 60,467
5,244,008 5,075,620 2,997,692 2,866,238

None of the above investments, except equities, are listed on a recognised exchange.

*Deposits with credit institutions includes £126.2 million (2016: £30.1 million) of collateral in respect of stock lending
arrangements {note 22).

Derivative financial instruments

Assels Liabilities Assets Liabilities
2017 2017 2016 2016
£’voo £'000 £'o00 £’oc0
Forward foreign currency contracts 307 118 268 275
Fixed income options and futures 836 175 477 467

The cost of entering into derivative financial instruments was £309,859 (2016: £286,707).
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Currency derivatives

The company utilises currency derivatives to manage currency exposure which arises through the acquisition of
investments in currencies other than the designated core currency of the investment portfolio.

At the balance sheet date, the total notional amount of outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts to which the
company is committed are as follows:

2017 2016
£’'o00 £'o00
Forward foreign exchange contracts 189 (14)

At 31 December 2017, the fair value of the company’s currency derivatives results in an asset of £0.19 million (2016:
liability of £0.3 million). These amounts are based on rates of exchange at the balance sheet date, comprising £0.31
million of assets (2016: £0.3 million) and £0.12 million of liabilities (2016: £0.3 million).

A gain of £0.7 million (2016: loss of £0.1 million) has been recognised in the profit and loss account in respect of
contracts which matured during the period.

The company does not currently designate its foreign currency denominated debt as a hedging instrument for the
purpose of hedging the translation of its foreign operations.

Fixed income options and futures

Options and futures contracts on fixed income securities may be utilised by the investment managers as part of their
strategy to mitigate duration risk, enhance yield or to obtain exposure to a particular instrument or market.

At 31 December 2017, the fair value of the company’s fixed income derivatives is an asset of £0.66 million {2016: asset
of E£0.1 million) comprising £0.84 million of assets (2016: £0.48 million) and £0.18 million of labilities (2016: £0.47
million).
A loss of £1.0 million (2016: loss of £2.8 million) has been recognised in the profit 2nd loss account in respect of
contracts which matured in the period.
FRS 102 requires the company to classify financial instruments into a fair value hierarchy as follows:

—  Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices), and

—  Level 3 — Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unchservable inputs)
For 2017 the company has taken early adoption of the Financial Reporting Council’s Amendments to FRS 102 - Fair

value hierarchy disclosure, the amendments of which simplify the preparation of disclosures about financial
instruments for financial institutions and retirement benefit plans.
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An analysis of financial instruments at 31 December 2017 by fair value hierarchy is set out below:
Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£'ooo £co00 £'000 £000
Assets:
Shares and other variable yield securities and
units in unit trusts 48,337 - - 48,337
Private Equity - - 56,297 50,297
Limited partnerships - - 32,590 32,5900
Debt securities and other fixed interest
securities 214,313 4,730,565 13,829 4,958,707
Deposits with credit institutions 27,933 126,144 - 154,077
Derivative financial instruments 836 307 - 1,143
Total assets at fair value 291,419 4,857,016 96,716 5,245,151
Liabilities:
Derivative financial instruments 176 118 - 294
Total liabilities at fair value 176 18 - 294
An analysis of financial instruments at 31 December 2016 by fair value hierarchy is set out below:
Level1 Level 2 Level g Total
£'000 £'o000 £'000 £000
Assels:
Shares and other variable yield securities
and units in unit trusts 42,237 - - 42,237
Private Equity - - 25,043 25,043
Debt securities and other fixed interest
securities 80,723 2,775,134 14,088 2,869,945
Deposits with credit institutions 30,355 30,112 - 60,467
Derivative financial instruments 477 268 - 745
Total assets at fair value 153,792 . 2,805,514 39,131 2,998,437
Liabilities:
Derivative financial instruments 468 275 - 743
Total liabilities at fair value 275 - 743

468
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12, OTHER FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS - continued

Shares and other variable yield securities and units in unit trusts only comprise listed equities. As the fair values of
these securities are based on quoted market prices they are classified within Level 1.

‘Debt securities and other fixed interest securities’ with active markets such as Government securities are classified
within Level 1, as fair values are based on quoted market prices. For debt securities and other fixed interest securities
that trade in less active markets, including corporate securities, fair values are based on the output of pricing models,
the significant inputs into which include, but are not limited to, yield curves, credit risks and spreads, measures of
volatility, and prepayment speeds. These debt securities and other fixed interest securities are classified within Level
2. Debt securities and other fixed interest securities for which pricing is unobservable are classified within Level 3.

Where such securities are traded in active markets, they are classified within Level 1, as fair values are based on
quoted market prices. Where no active market exists for such securities they are typically classified within Level 2
and, where pricing is unobservable, Level 3.

Where ‘Derivative financial instruments’ are actively traded the values of these securities are based on quoted market
prices. Accordingly they are classified within Level 1. Instruments that are not actively traded are classified within
Level 2.

During the period no significant investments were transferred between Level 1 and Level 2.

2017 2016
£'000 £'ooo
Balance at 1 January 39,131 17,685
Gains Recognised in the Profit and Loss
Account * 5,542 3,790
Purchases 64,571 15,937
Sales (12,5z8) (572)
Transfers inf{out) of Level 3** - 2,201
Balance at 31 December 96,716 39,131

* Gains recognised in the Profit and Loss Account comprise realised gains of £0.1 million {2016: losses of £0.0 million)
which are presented within Investment Income, unrealised gains of £9.7 million (2016: Eo0.9 million) and foreign
exchange gains of £0.8 million (2016: £2.9 million) all of which are presented in the Non-Technical Account. Of this
amount a £9.9 million gain (2016: £3.8 million) relates to investments held at the end of the period and comprises £0.1

million of realised gains (2016: £0.0 million), £¢,7 million of unrealised gain (2016: £0.9 million) and £0.9 million of

foreign exchange gain (2016: gain of £2.9 million).

** During the comparative period a smaill number of investment grade and high yield fixed interest investments were
transferred into and out of Level 3 due to changes in their pricing source.
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13. OTHER DEBTORS
2017 2016
£'000 £'ooo
Amounts falling dve within one year:
Amounts due from group undertakings 133,495 44,571
Corporation tax receivable 18,218 3,778
Receivable for sales of securities 4,164 4,676
Other debtors 26,046 5,604
181,923 58,719
14. DEFERRED TAXATION
£'000 £'oo0
Accelerated capital allowances (189) 1,016
Share-based payments o (19)
Pension costs {6,350) (1,402)
Deferred costs (1,496) (791)
UPR & DAC 3,215 (168)
Equalisation & IBNR reserves 10,207 16,071
Mark to market adjustment on merger 1,167 -
Other 1,971 -
Deferred tax liability 8,523 14,707
An analysis of the movement in deferred tax is as follows:
2017 2016
£ £
At 1 January 14,707 (4,261)
Transferred as part of cross border merger (4,497 -
Prior year adjustment 1,459 -
Deferred tax charge to profit and loss account (1,996) 20,123
Deferred tax charge to other comprehensive income (614) 553
Change in tax rate (535) (1,708)
Blﬁza 14,707

Finance Act 2016 enacted a reduction in corporation tax rates to 19% from 1 April 2017 and 17% from 1 April 2020.
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Software Total
£’o00 £'oo0
Cost
At 1 January 2017 53,875 53,875
Disposals {1,587) (1,587)
Foreign exchange differences 238 238
At 33 December 2017 52,526 52,526
Accumulated depreciation
At t January 2017 2,923 2,923
Disposals (730} (730}
Charge for the period 11,424 11,424
Foreign exchange differences 135 135
At 31 December 2017 13,752 13,752
Net book value
31 December 2017 38,774 38,774
31 December 2016 50,591 50.591
16. TANGIBLE ASSETS
Land Motor Leasehold Office
and Vehicles improvements, Equipment and Total
Building Fixtures and Fittings Hardware
£'000 E'000 £'o00 £'000 £'oc00
Cost
At 1 January 2017 1,470 430 11,405 2,861 16,166
Transferred as part of
cross border merger 10,782 429 8,32 1,341 20,873
Additions - - 4,030 3o 4,060
Disposals (1,024) (502) (4,026) (1,545) (7,097)
z‘;)f;:;glmgsxchange 73 24 400 (285) 212
At 31 December 2017 13,301 381 20,130 2,402 34,214
Accumulated
depreciation
At 1 January 2017 1,127 423 8,250 2,773 12,573
Transferred as part of '
cross border merger 10,782 327 2,358 1,282 14,749
Charge for the period 13 56 1,458 53 1,580
Disposals (757 (482) (2,207) (1,622) {5,068)
Pl 57 23 129 (655) (446)
At 31 December 2017 11,222 347 9,988 1,831 23,388
Net book value
31 December 2017 79 14 10,142 571 10,826

31 December 2016 343 7 3,155 88 3,593
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17. PENSIONS

The company operates a small number of defined benefit pension schemes in Continental Europe. As at 31 December
2017, the aggregate assets and liabilities relating to these schemes were £87.9 million (2016: £43.5 million) and £g4.2
million (2016: £51.7 million) respectively. Company contributions to the schemes totalled £1.4 million {(2016: £1.3

million) and the expense recognised in the profit and loss account was £2.6 million (2016: £1.6 million).

18. CALLED-UP SHARE CAPITAL

2017 2016
£'o000 E'o00
Allotted, issued and fully paid:
*A' Ordinary £1 shares 786,120 544,741
786,120 544,741

On 1 May 2017, the Company issued an additional 241,378,735 shares at a nominal value of £1 per share. The shates
were issued in exchange for the net assets of CICE and CBII, with the difference between the net asset value and the

nominal value of the shares being treated as Share Premium.
19. INSURANCE BALANCES

DEFERRED ACQUISITION COSTS

The reconciliation of opening and closing deferred acquisition costs is as follows:

Gross Reinsurers' share

2017 2016 2017 2016

£'oco0 £'ooo £'000 £'000

At1Januvary 164,912 129,213 40,191 31,792

Transferred as part of cross border merger 62,592 o 8,596 o
Increase / (decrease) in acquisition costs 866 1

deferred during the year 14, 5:752 3,889 4,753

Foreign exchange gains / (losses) (5,615) 19,947 (6,217) 3.646

At 31 December 236,755 164,912 46,459 0,191
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19. INSURANCE BALANCES — continued
UNEARNED PREMIUM

The reconciliation of opening and closing unearned premium provision is as follows:

Gross Reinsurers’ share
2017 2016 2017 2016
£'000 £'o00 £'000 £'o00
At January 929,851 801,868 365,539 344,592
Transferred as part of cross border merger 324,168 o 70,796 0
Increase/{decrease) in provision 14,249 59,207 (1,811) 1,633
Foreign exchange movements (35,624) 68,776 (21,802) 19,314
At 31 December 1,232 644 926,851 412,722 365,539
CLAIMS OUTSTANDING
The reconciliation of opening and closing provision for claims is as follows:
Gross Reinsurers' share
2017 2016 2017 2016
£'000 £'o000 £'000 £'co0
At1January 4,085,881 3,655,716 2,446,397 2,104,517
Transferred as part of cross border merger 1,642,717 o 389,434 o
Increase/(decrease) in provision (64,663) 111,081 {76,690) 134,540
Foreign exchange movements . 63,465 318,084 45,516 207,340
At 31 December 5,727,399 4,085,881 2,804,657 _ 2,446,397
20. OTHER CEDITORS INCLUDING TAXATION AND SOCIAL SECURITY
2017 2016
£'000 £'o000
Deferred taxation (note 14) B,523 14,707
Payable for purchases of securities 27,078 13,056
Other creditors 37,988 49,216
Liability for stock lending collateral (note 22) 126,203 30,260
199,762 . 107,239
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21, STOCK LENDING
The company participates in stock lending activities with State Street Bank and Trust company.

2017 2016

£'000 £oo0

Aggregate value of securities on loan at 31 December 759,121 508,432
Income from stock during the year 747 776

In respect of securities on loan at the year end, the company held £788.6 million (2016: £545.2 million) as collateral, the
value of which is above the value of the loan securities by 3.9% (2016: 7.2% above),

Included within the £788.6 million (2016: £545.2 million) of collateral held is £126.2 million (2016: £30.1 million} in the
form of cash which has been reinvested by the company. This is included on the face of the balance sheet within ‘Other
financial investments’.

z22. LETTER OF CREDIT FACILITIES

There were five Letter of Credit facilities open at the end of 2017, These were:

- Citibank NA: value £52.0m with associated collateral of £74.7m;
- Lloyds TSB: value £0.67m equally matched by collateral;

- Barclays: value £0.53m unsecured;

- UBS: value £0.1m unsecured;

- HSBC(C: value £5.49m unsecured.

Collateral is included within investments and cash on the balance sheet.

23. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

No capital expenditure was authorised at 31 December 2017 which has not been provided for in these finaneial
statements.

24. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Advantage has been taken of the exemption in FRS 102 from disclosing details of transactions with Chubb Limited and its
subsidiary undertakings as required by that standard.

During the year, there were no material transactions or balances between CEGL and key management personnel or
members of their close family, which require disclosure under the Companies Act 2006.
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25. CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT TABLES

The following tables show the development of claims over a period of time on both a gross and net of reinsurance basis.
FRS 103 requires that claims development shall go back to the period when the earliest claim arose for which there is still
uncertainty about the amount and timing of the claims payment, but need not go back more than 10 years. The top half of
the table shows how the estimates of total claims for each accident year develop over time. The lower half of the table
reconciles the cumulative claims to the amount appearing in the balance sheet.

The cumulative claims estimates and payments for each accident year are translated into sterling at the year-end rates

that applied at the end of each accident year.

The tables below include the claims portfolios which used to belong to CICE and CBII for all accident years. This has been
included to ensure the tables provide an accurate representation of how CEGL’s existing book of business has developed

on historic years.

Gross insurance outstanding claims provisions as at 31 December 2017:

011 &

. 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
prior Total
Accident year £7000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'0600 £000
Estimate of cumulative claims incurred
At end of accident year 1,764,980 1,727,577 1,808,515 1,744,820 2,190,055 1,885,987
One year later 1,739,502 1,743,546 1,882,045 1,780,655 2,291,733
Two years later 1,732,937 1,693,615 1,806,334 1,783,291
Three y ears later 1,706,858 1,655,594 1,800,890
Four y ears later 1,715,437 1,630,883
Five ycars later 1,688 069
Current estimate of cumulative claims incurred 1,688,069 1,630,883 1,800,890 1,783,291 2291733 1,885,987
Cumulative claims paid
At end of accident ycar (386,534)  (431,958) (472,193) (516,843} (613,582) (507,304)
One year later (805,931) {834,642) (9216,526) (945,200) (1,243,522)
Two years later (1,008,419) (1,013,950) {1,092,223) (1,157,004)
Three years later (1,140,278) (1.109,016) (1,i82,708)
Four y ears later (1,238,422) (1,213,735)
Five years later (1,342.776)
Cumulative pay ments to date (1,342,776) (1,213,735) (1,182,708) (1,157,004) (1,243,522) (507,304)
Gross outstanding claims provision at 31
December 2017 at original exchange rates 345,292 417,148 618,182 626,287 1048210 1,378683
Foreign exchange adjustment (25,218) 9,604 34,616 32,034 40,219 4]
Total grosa outstanding claims provision per the
Balance Sheet 1,202,343 320,074 426752 652798 658,320 1,088429 1 ,378i633 5.727!399
% Surplus / (deficiency ) of initial gross reserve 4.4% 5.6% 0.4% -2.2% -4.6% 0.0%
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25. CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT TABLES - continued

Net insurance outstanding claims provisions as at 31 December 2017:

20011 &

i 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
prior Total
Accident year £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Estimate of cumulative claims incurred
At end of aceideny y ear 1,031,458 1,030,227 1,018,634 972,917 1,131,094 1,008,712
One y ear later 1,005,375 1,033,568 1,085,062 1,018,471 1,192,576
Two years later 1,004,250 992,996 1,036,860 1,014,539
Three y ears later 989,400 984,551 1,031,442
Four years later 1,007,644 981.706
Five ycars later 1,024,529
Current estimate of cusnulative claims incurred 1,024,529 981,706 1,031,442 1,014,532 1,192,576 1,008,713
Cumulative claims paid
At ¢nd of accident y ear (245,341) (281,790) (303,654) (334,365) (3B1,568) (384,455)
One y ear later (491,657)  {534.833) (553,082) (557,673) (601,083
Two years later (616,599) (629,775) {664,524) (640,117}
Three years later (696,522) (697,009) (712,984)
Four years later (759,331)  (770,259)
Five years later (827,211)
Cumulative payments to date (B27.211)  (770.26%) (712,984) (640,117) (601,083) (384,4535)
Grass outstanding claims provision at 31 December
2017 at original exchange rates 197,317 211,437 318458 374,423 591,493 624,258
Foreign exchange adjustment (6,641) 8,908 6,008 37,070 22,40} 4]
Tatal net outstanding claims provision per the Balance
Sheet 537,613 180,676 220,342 324,466 411,493 613,894 624,258 2,922,742

% Surplus / (deficiency ) of initial net reserve 0.7% 4.7% -1.3% -4.3% -5.4% 0.0%

26. CROSS BORDER MERGER WITH CHUBB EUROPEAN OFERATIONS

On 1 May 2017, ACE European Group Limited (“AEGL™) completed a cross border merger with Chubb Insurance
Company of Europe SE (“CICE”) and Chubb Bermuda International Insurance Designated Activity Company (“CBII”).
On 2 May 2017, AEGL was renamed to Chubb Eurapean Group Limited (*CEGL."). All operations of CICE and CBII were
consolidated into CEGL. Shares in CEGL were issued to the shareholders of CICE and CBII in proportion to their new
holding in CEGL.

CICE was a general insurance underwriter with a focus towards niche products and customer segments, encompassing
property & casualty, accident & health and personal lines classes. CBII was a registered entity in Ireland with 2 UK
branch which wrote Fire & Other Damage to Property and General Liability business. In addition it wrote Political Risk
business through a managing agent.

This has been treated as a Group Reconstruction in accordance with FRS 102, with an effective date of 1 January 2017.
The accounting policies of CICE and CBII have been aligned with those of CEGL, with no material impact upon results.
The assets and Habilities of CICE and CBII were transferred on 1 January 2017 at their carrying values, as detailed on the
following page:
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26. CROSS BORDER MERGER WITH CHUBB EURQOPEAN OPERATIONS - continued
AEGL CICE CRII CEGL
£'ooo £'000 £'co00 £'co00
Assets
Investments
Other financial investments 2,997,692 2,120,415 130,386 5,248,493
Financial derivative instruments 745 - 83 828
2,998,437 2,120,415 130,469 5,249,321
Reinsurers’ share of technical
provisions
Provision for unearned premiums 365,539 54,476 16,320 436,335
Provision for claims outstanding 2,446,397 241,464 147,970 2,835,831
2,811,036 295,940 164,290 3,272,166
Debtors - amounts falling due within
one year
Debtors arising out of direct insurance
operations 523,364 132,266 12,781 668,411
Debtors arising cut of reinsurance operations 244,801 22,307 5,865 272,973
Other debtors 58,719 51,795 240 110,754
826,884 206,368 18,886 1,052,138
Other assets
Intangible assets 50,051 67 - 51,018
Tangible assets 3,593 6,126 - 9,719
Cash at bank and in hand 60,209 18,375 6,905 85,379
114,753 24,368 6,905 146,116
Prepayments and accrued income
Accrued interest and rent 35,597 26,478 1,025 63,100
Deferred acquisition costs 164,912 58,973 3,619 227,504
Other prepayments and acerued income 3009 1,166 15 1,490
200,818 86,617 4,659 292,094
Total assets 6,952,828 2,733,708 325,299 10,011,835
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26, CROSS BORDER MERGER WITH CHUBBE EUROPEAN OPERATIONS - continued
AEGL CICE CRI1 Total
£'000 £'000 £'o00 £'000
Liabilities
Technical provisions
Provision for nnearned premiums 929,851 294,193 29,975 1,254,019
Provision for claims outstanding 4,085,881 1,473,859 168,860 5,728,600
5,015,732 1,768,052 198,835 6,982,619
Deposits recveived from reinsurers 7,802 - - 7,892
Creditors - amounts falling due within
onhe year
Creditors arising out of direct insurance )
operations 20,863 21,391 13,578 55,832
Creditors arising out of reinsurance
operations 253,872 34,973 15 288,860
Bank overdraft 51,821 30,755 - 82,576
Other creditors including taxation and social
security 107,239 33,476 544 141,259
433.795 120,595 14,137 568,527
Other financial liabilities 742 - 87 829
Accruals and deferred income
Deferred acquisition costs relating to
reinsurance 40,191 6,519 2,077 48,787
Other accruals and deferred income 48,769 11,585 1,236 61,590
88,960 18,104 3,313 110,377
Total liabilities excluding pension
liability 5,547,121 1,906,751 216,372 7,670,244
Pension liability 8,246 11,670 - 19,916
Tota_il liabilities 5,555,367 1,018,421 216,372 7,690,160
Net assets 1,397,461 815,287 108,026 2,321,674
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27. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

After the period end the company approved a capital reduction in accordance with the Companies Act to eliminate the
share premium created as part of the cross border merger process - thereby restoring the distributable reserves of the
company. This movement between equity reserves had no impact on net assets or solvency. The directors also approved a
dividend of £100m.

28. ULTIMATE PARENT COMPANY

The ultimate holding company is Chubb Limited, a company registered in Zurich, Switzerland, with its headguarters in
Zurich, Switzerland and it is quoted on the New York Stock Exchange. Copies of the ultimate holding company’s
consolidated financial statements can be obtained from Investor Relations at Chubb’s executive offices at 17 Woodbourne
Avenue, Hamilton HM 08, Bermuda.
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Colt Merger 1 plc

Statement of Financial Position
for the year ended 10 April 2018

10 April 2018
EUR’ 000
Current assets
Cash at bank and in hand 25
Net assets 25
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 25
Equity shareholders’ funds 25




Company No. [+]

(1)

(2)

Part 1

Interpretation and Limitation of Liability

Exclusion of other regulations and defined terms

No regulations or model articles contained in any schedule to or any statute or subordinate
legislation, including those contained in Table A or the Model Articles, shall apply to the
company.

In these statutes, unless the context requires otherwise:

"the Act' means the Companies Act 2006 and any statutory modification or re
enactment thereof for the time being in force;

"administrative organ" means the body responsible for the management of the
company and in these statutes such term is used interchangeably with and should be
construed synonymously with the term "the directors”.

"the board" means the administrative organ;

"bankruptcy" includes individual insclvency proceedings in a jurisdiction cther than
England and Wales or Northern lreland which have an effect similar to that of
bankruptcy;

"capitalised sum" has the meaning given in article 46;
"chairman" has the meaning given in article 14;

"chairman of the meeting” has the meaning given in article 50;
"the campany" means Chubb European Group SE;

"Conflict" has the meaning given in article 17,

"conflicts of interest" include a conflict of interest and duty and a conflict of duties and
"interest" includes both direct and indirect interests;

"eontract” in article 17 inciudes any fransaction or arrangement (whether or not
constituting a contract);

"corporate representative” means a person who has heen authorised in accordance
with the Companies Act 2006, by a member of the company which is a corparation, to
act as its representative at any general meeting of the company;

"director" means a person appointed to the administrative organ of the company, and
includes any person occupying the position of director, by whatever name called;

"distribution recipient" has the meaning given in article 41;

"document" includes, unless otherwise specified, any document sent or supplied in
electronic form;

200987-4-16805-v0.1 2 70-40634133
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(3)

4)

"fully paid" in relation to a share, means that the nominal value and any premium to be
paid to the company in respect of that share have been paid to the company;

“group company" means a subsidiary undertaking or parent undertaking of the
company or a subsidiary undertaking of any parent undertaking of the company;

"holder” in relation to shares means the person whose name is entered in the register
of members as the holder of the shares;

‘instrument" means a document in hard copy form;

"paid" means paid or credited as paid;

"participate", in relation to a directors' meeting, has the meaning given in article 11;
"Permitted Situation" has the meaning given in article 17;

"persons entitied" has the meaning given in article 46;

"proxy notice” has the meaning given in article 56;

“the Regulations" means the SE Regulations and the UK Regulations;

"SE Regulations" means Council Regulation (EC) No. 2157/2001 of 8 October 2001 on
the Statute for a European Company (SE) including any statutory maodification or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force;

"UK Regulations" means The European Public Limited-Liability Company Regulations
2004 including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in
force;

"gualifying person”" means an individual who is a member of the Company, a corporate
representative or a person appointed as proxy of a member in relation to a meeting;

"shareholder" means a person who is the holder of a share;
“shares” means shares in the company;

“transmittee” means a person entitled to a share by reason of the death or bankruptcy
of a shareholder or otherwise by operation of law; and

"writing" means the representation or reproduction of words, symbels or other
information in a visible form by any methed or combination of methods, whether sent
or supplied in electronic form or otherwise.

Unless the context otherwise requires, other words or expressions contained in these statutes
bear the same meaning as in the Act and the Regulations as in force on the date when the
statutes become binding on the company.

The Company is a public company limited by shares.
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2. Societas Europea

The company is a Societas Europea as defined in the Regulations and is registered in the
United Kingdom, with its registered office situated in England and Wales. The liability of the
members is limited to the amount, if any, unpaid on the shares held by them.
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(1)

(2)

3)

(1)

(2)

(3)

4

Part 2
Directors

Directors' Powers and Responsibilities

Administrative Organ

The Company shall be managed by a one-tier system of management, the administrative organ
to which the directors are appointed.

Power of Directors

The Company shall operate under a one tier management system as prescribed by the
Regulations. Subject to the provisions of the Act, the Regulations and the statutes and to any
directions given by special resolution, the business of the Company shall be managed by the
directors who may exercise all the powers of the Company.

The following transactions shall require an express decision of the administrative organ:

(a) the disposal of the whole of the Company's undertaking or property or a substantial
part thereof; and

(b) the acquisition of the whole or any substantial part of the undertaking, assets or
business or any other company or any firm or person or the entry into any joint venture
or partnership with any other person where such operation would reasonably be
expected to have a significant impact on the Company's undertaking or property or a
substantial part thereof.

No alteration of the statutes and no direction given by special resolution shall invalidate any
prior act of the directors which would have been valid if that alteration had not been made or
that direction had not been given. The powers given by paragraph 4(1) shall not be limited by
any special power given to the directors by the statutes and a meeting of directors at which a
quorum is present may exercise all powers exercisable by the directors.

Shareholders' reserve power and effect of altering the statutes

The shareholders may, by special resolution, direct the directors to take, or refrain from taking,
specified action.

No such special resclution invalidates anything which the directors have done befare the
passing of the resolution.

No alteration of the statutes invalidates anything which the directors have done before the
alteration was made.

These statutes may be amended by a special resolution of the shareholders.
Delegation of directors' power

The directors may delegate any of their powers to such person or committee by such means
(including power of attorney), to such an extent and on such terms and conditions as they see
fit. Any such committee must consist of one or more directors and the directors may also appoint
to any such committee persons who are not directors. In particular, without limitation, the board

200987-4-16805-v0.1 5 70-40634133
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(1)

(1)

(2)

(1)

(2)

()

(2)

(3)

(4)

10.

(1)

@)

may grant the power of any committee to sub-delegate. The board may also delegate to any
managing director or any director holding any other executive office such of their powers as
they consider desirable to be exercised by him or her. Any such delegation may be made
subject to any conditions the directors may impose, and either collaterally with or to the
exclusion of their own powers and may be revoked or altered.

Committees

Committees ta which the directors delegate any of their powers must follow procedures which
are based as far as they are applicable on those provisions of the statutes which govern the
taking of decisions by directors.

Decision-Making by Directors

The directors shall meet at least once every three months to discuss the progress and
foreseeable development of the Company's business.

Subject to the provisions of the statutes, the directors may regulate their proceedings as they
think fit. Each director shall be entitled to examine all information submitted to the board.

Directors to take decisions collectively

Any decision of the directors must be either a majority decision at a meeting or a decision taken
in accordance with article 9 and each director participating in a directors' meeting has one vote.

If only one director is eligible to vote on any authorisation required under article 17, the general
rule doas not apply, and the eligible director may take decisions in relation to the relevant matter
without regard to any of the provisions of the statutes relating to directors' decision-making.

Unanimous decisions

A decision of the directors is taken in accordance with this article when all eligible directors
indicate to each other by any means that they share a common view on a matter.

Such a decision may take the form of a resolution in writing, at least one copy of which has
been signed by each eligible director or tc which each sligible director has otherwise indicated
agreement in writing.

References in this article to eligible directors are to directors who would have been entitled to
vote on the matter and whose vote would have been counted had it been proposed as a

resolution at a directors' meeting.

A decision may not be taken in accordance with this article if the eligible directors would not
have formed a quorum at such a meeting.

Calling a directors’ meeting

Any director may call a directors’ meeting by giving notice of the meeting to the directors or by
authorising the company secretary to give such notice.

Notice of any directors' meeting must indicate:

200987-4-16805-v0.1 6 70-40634133
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3
4

11.

(1)

(2)

3)

12.

(D

(2)

13.

(1)

(2)

3)

(a) its proposed date and time;
(b) where it is to take place; and
{c) if it is anticipated that directors participating in the meeting will not be in the same place,

how it is proposed that they should communicate with each other during the meeting.
Notice of a directors' meeting must be given to each director, but need not be in writing.

Notice of a directors' meeting need not be given tc directors who waive their entittement to
notice of that meeting, by giving notice to that effect to the company either before or after the
date on which the meeting is held. Where such notice is given after the meeting has been held,
that does not atfect the validity of the meeting, or of any business conducted at it.

Participation in directors' meetings

Subject to the statutes, directors "participate” in a directors' meeting, or part of a directors'
meeting, when:

(a) the meeting has been called and takes place in accordance with the statutes; and

(b) they can each communicate to the others any information or opinicns they have on any
paricular item of the business of the meeting.

In determining whether directors are participating in a directors' meeting, it is irrelevant where
any director is or how they communicate with each other.

If all the directors participating in a meeting are not in the same place, they may decide that the
meeting is to be treated as taking place wherever any of them is.

Quorum for directors' meetings

At a directors' meeting, unless a quorum is panicipating, no proposal is to be voted on, except
a proposal to calt another meeting

Subject to article 8(2) the quorum for directors' meetings may be fixed from time to time by a
decision of the directors, but it must never be less than two, and unless otherwise fixed it is two.

Meetings where total number of directors less than quorum

This article 13 applies where the total number of directors for the time being is less than the
quorum for directors' meetings.

If there is only one director, that director may appoint sufficient directors to make up a quorum
or may call a general meeting to do so.

If there is more than one director but the total number of directors is less than the quorum for a
directors' meeting:

200987-4-16805-v(.1 7 70-40634133
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14.
(1
(2)
(3)
4

15.

(N

(2)

16.

(1)

(2)

(a) a directors' meeting may take place, if it is calied in accordance with the statutes and
at least two directors participate in it, with a view o appeinting sufficient directors to
make up a quorum or calling a general meeting to de so; and

(b) if a directors' meeting is called but only one director attends at the appointed date and
time to patticipate in it, that director may appoint sufficient directors to make up a
quorum or may call a general meeting to do so.

Chairing of directors' meetings

The directors may appoint a director to chair their meetings.

The person so appointed for the time being is known as the "chairman”.
The directors may terminate the chairman's appointment at any time.

If the chairman is not participating in a directors' meeting within ten minutes of the time at which
it was to start, the participating directors may appoint cne of themselves to chair it.

Casting vote

If the numbers of votes at a meeting of directors for and against a proposal are equal (ignoring
any votes which are to be discounted in accordance with the statutes or the Act), the chairman
or other director chairing the meeting has a casting vote.

Article 15(1) does not apply in respect of a particular meeting (or part of a meeting) if, in
accordance with the statutes, the chairman or other director is not to be counted as participating
in the decision-making process for quorum or voting purposes.

Transactions or arrangements with the company

Provided that he or she has disclosed to the directors the nature and extent of any interest of
his or hers in accordance with and to the extent required by the Act, a director notwithstanding
his or her office:

(a) may be a party to, or otherwise interested in, any contract with the company or in which
the company is otherwise interested;

{b) may be a director or other officer of, or employed by, or a party to any contract with, or
otherwise interested in, any group company cr in any body corporate promoted by the
company or any group company of in which the company or any group company is
interested;

(c) may act as a trustee of any scheme for the benetit of employees or former employees
of the Company or any group undertaking of the Company (including any pension,
retirement, death or disability scheme ar other bonus or employee benefit scheme);

(d) may act by himself or herself or his or her firm in a professional capacity for the
company (otherwise than as auditor).

For the purposes of this article:

(a) a director shall be deemed to have disclosed the nature and extent of an interest which
consists of him or her being a director, officer or employee of any group company; and

200987-4-16805-v0.1 8 70-40634133
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(3)

17.

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(b) a general notice given to the directors that a director is to be regarded as having an
interest of the nature and extent specified in the notice in any contract in which a
specified person or class of persons is interested shall be deemed to be a disclosure
that the director has an interest in any such contract of the nature and exient so
specified.

Where a director is a director or other officer of, or employed by, a group company, he or she:

(a) may in exercising his or her independent judgement take into account the success of
other group companies as well as the success of the company; and

(b) shall in the exercise of his or her duties, where that other group company is a parent
company, have a duty of confidentiality to the parent company in relation to confidential
information of the parent company, but he or she shall not be restricted by any duty of
confidentiality to the company from providing information to any parent company.

Conflicts of interest requiring board authorisation

The directors may, subject to the quorum and voting requirements set out in the statutes,
authorise any matter which would otherwise involve a director breaching his or her duty under
the Act to avoid conflicts of interast ("Conflict").

Any director (including the relevant director} may propose that the relevant director be
authorised in relation to any matter the subject of a Conflict Such proposal and any authority
given by the directors shall be effected in the same way that any other matter may be proposed
to and decided upon by the directors under the provisions of the statutes save that the relevant
director shall not count towards the quorum nor vote on any resolution giving such authority
and save further that if there are insufficient directors eligible to vote and therefore to form a
quorum, article 8(2) will apply.

Where the directors give authority in relation to a Conflict:

(a) the terms of the authority shall be recorded in writing (but the authority shall be effective
whether or not the terms are so recorded); and

(b) the directors may revoke or vary such authority at any time but this will not affect
anything done by the relevant director prior to such revocation in accordance with the
terms of such authority.

Where the directors give authority in relation to a Conflict or where any of the situations referred
to in article 16(1) ("Permitted Situation") applies:

(a) the directors may {whether at the relevant time or subsequently} (i) require that the
relevant director is excluded from the receipt of information, the participation in
discussicn and/or the making of decisions (whether at meetings of the directors or
otherwise) related to the Conflict or Permitted Situation, and (ii) impose upon the
relevant director such other terms for the purpose of dealing with the Conlflict as it may
determine;

(b) the relevant director will be obliged to conduct himself or herself in accordance with
any terms imposed by the board in relation to the Conflict or Permitted Situation; and
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(c) the directors may provide that where the relevant director obtains (otherwise than
through his or her position as a director of the company} information that is confidential
to a third party, the director will not be obliged to disclose that information to the
company, or to use or apply the information in relation to the company's affairs, where
to do so would amount to a breach of that confidence.

A director shall not, by reason of his or her office or of the fiduciary relationship thereby
established, be liable to account to the company or the members for any remuneration, profit
or other benefit realised by reason of his or her having any type of interest in a Conflict
authorised under this article or in any Permitted Situation and ne contract shall be liable to be
avoided on the grounds of a director having any such interest.

Directors May Vote When Interested

Subject where applicabie to disclosure in accordance with the Act or the statutes subject to any
terms imposed by the directors in relation to any Conflict or Permitted Situation, a director shall
be entitled to vote in respect of any matter in which he or she is interested directly or indirectly
and if he or she shall do so his or her vote shall be counted and, whether or not he or she does,
his or her presence at the meeting shall be taken into account in ascertaining whether a quorum
is present.

Subject to paragraph (3), if a gquestion arises at a meeting of directors or of a committee of
directors as to the right of a director to participate in the meeting (or part of the meeting) for
voting or quorum purposes, the question may, before the conclusion of the meeting, be referred
to the chairman whose ruling in relation to any director other than the chairman is to be final
and conclusive.

if any question as to the right to participate in the meeting (or part of the meeting) should arise
in respect of the chairman, the gquestion is to be decided by a decision of the directors at that
meeting, for which purpose the chairman is not to be counted as pariicipating in the meeting
(or that part of the meeting) for voting or quorum purposes.

Records of decisions to be kept
The directors must ensure that the company keeps a record, in writing, for at least 10 years

from the date of the decision recorded, of every unanimous or majerity decision taken by the
directors.

Directors' discretion to make further rules

Subject to the statutes, the directors may make any rule which they think fit about how they
take decisions, and about how such rules are to be recorded or communicated to directors.

Change of name

The company may change its name by a decision of the directors.
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Appointment of Directors

Number of Directors

The number of directors (other than alternate directors) appointed to the administrative organ
must not be less than two and is not subject to a maximum number.

Methods of appeinting directors

Any person who is willing to act as a director, and is permitted by law to do so, may be appeinted
to be a director--

(a) by ordinary resolution;

(b) by a decision of the directors;

(c) by a notice of his or her appointment given in accordance with article 25; or
(d) under article 13(2) if the company has only one director.

In any case where, as a result of death, bankruptcy or other events, the company has no
shareholders and no directors, the transmittee(s) of the last shareholder have the right, by
notice in writing, to appoint one or more persons to be a director.

For the purposes of paragraph (2), where two or more shareholders die in circumstances
rendering it uncertain who was the last to die, a younger shareholder is deemed to have
survived an older shareholder.

Termination of director's appointment

A person ceases to be a director as soon as:

(a} that person ceases to be a director by virtue of any provision of the Act or the
Regulations or is prohibited from being a director by law;

(b) a bankruptcy order is made against that person;

(c) a composition is made with that person's creditors generally in satisfaction of that
person's debts;

(d) a registered medical practitioner who is treating that person gives a written opinion to
the company stating that that person has become physically or mentally incapable of
acting as a director and may remain so for mare than three months;

(e) by reason of that person's mental health, a court makes an order which wholly or partly
prevents that person from personally exercising any powers or rights which that person
would otherwise have and the directors resoclve that he or she cease to be a director;

() notification is received by the company from the director that the director is resigning
from office, and such resignation has taken effect in accordance with its terms;
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(g) that person has for more than six consecutive months been absent without permission
of the directars from meetings of directors held during that period and the directors
resolve that that person should cease to be director; or

(h) notice of his or her removal is given in accordance with article 25.
Appeointment and removal of directors by majority shareholders

A sharehoider or shareholders hoiding a majority in nominal value of the issued shares may by
notice in writing signed by or on behalf of him or her or them and delivered to the registered
office or tendered at a meeting of the directors or at a general meeting of the company at any
time and from time to time appoint any person wha is willing to act, and is permitted by law to
do so, to be a director (either to fill a vacancy or as an additional director} or remove any director
from office (no matter how he or she was appointed). The appointment or removal takes effect
immediately on deposit of the notice or on such later date (if any) specified in the notice.

Executive Directors

Subject to the provisions of the Act and the Regulations, the directors may appoint one or more
of their number to the office of chief executive officer or to any other executive office under the
Company and may enter into an agreement or arrangement with any director for his or her
employment by the company or for the provision by him or her of any services outside the scope
of ordinary activities of a director.

Any appointment, agreement or arrangement may be made upon such terms as the directors
determine and they may remunerate any such director for his or her services as they see fit.
Any appointment of a director to an executive office shall terminate if he or she ceasestobe a
director but without prejudice to any claim to damages for breach of the contract of service
between the director and the company. A chief executive officer and a director holding any
other executive office shall be subject to the same provisions as to resignation and remaoval as
any other directors of the company.

Directors' remuneration

Directors may undertake any services for the company that the directors decide.
Directors are entitled to such remuneration as the directors determine:

(a) for their services to the company as directors; and

(b for any other service which they undertake for the company.

Subject to the statutes, a director's remuneration may take any form,

Unless the directors decide otherwise, directors' remuneration accrues from day to day.

Directors are not accountable to the company for any remuneration which they receive as
directors or other officers or employees of the company, any group company or any other body
corporate in which the company is interested, and the receipt of such benefit shall not disqualify
any person from being a director of the company.
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The directors may provide benefits, whether by the payment of a pension, allowance or
gratuities, or any death, sickness or disability benefits or by insurance or otherwise, for any
director or former director who holds or has held any office or employment with the company,
predecessor in business of the company or with any undertaking which is or has been a group
company and for any mernber of his or her family (including a spouse or former spouse) or any
person who is or was dependent on him or her, and may (before as well as after he or she
ceases to hold such office or employment) contribute to any fund and pay premiums far the
purchase or provision of any such benefit.

Directors' expenses

The company may pay any reasonahble expenses which the directors properly incur in
connection with their attendance at:

(a) meetings of directors or committees of directors;

{b) general meetings; or

{©) separate meetings of the holders of any class of shares or of debentures of the
company,

or otherwise in connection with the exercise of their powers and the discharge of their
responsibilities in relation to the company.

Subject to the Act, the directars shall have power to make arrangements to provide a director
with funds to meet expenditure incurred or to be incurred by him or her for the purpose of the
company or for the purpose of enabling him or her property to perfarm his or her duties as an
officer of the company or to avoid him or her incurring any such expenditure.

Company Secretary
Secretary's terms of office

The directors may appoint any person who is willing and qualified te act to be the company
secretary for such term and on such conditions as they think fit, and may remove any company
secretary so appeinted and appoint another or others in their place.

Part 3

Shares and Distributions

Shares
Allotment

Subject to the Act and relevant authority given by the Company in general meeting, the directors
have general and unconditional authority to allot, grant options over, or otherwise dispose of,
unissued shares of the Company or rights to subscribe for or convert any security into shares,
to such persons, at such times and on such terms as the directors may decide, except that no
share may be issued at a discount.

The directors may at any time after the allctment of a share, but before a person has been
entered in the register as the holder of the share, recognise a renunciation of the share by the
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allottes in favour of another person and may grant to an allottee a right to effect a renunciation
on such terms and conditions as the directors think fit.

AH shares to be fully paid

No share is to be issued for less than the aggregate of its nominal value and any premium to
be paid to the company in consideration for its issue.

This does not apply to shares taken on the formation of the company by the subscribers to the
company's memorandum.

Powers to issue different classes of share

Subject to the statutes, but without prejudice to the rights attached to any existing share, the
company may issue further classes of shares with such rights or restrictions as may be
determined by ordinary resolution or, if no such reselution has been passed or so far as the
resolution does not make specific provision, as the directors may decide.

The company may issue shares which are to be redeemed, or are liable to be redeemed at the
option of the company or the holder, and the directors may determine the terms, conditions and
manner of redempticn of any such shares.

The rights, restrictions, terms and conditions attached to any shares issued pursuant to
paragraph (1) or (2) of this article shall apply as if the same were set out in the statutes.

Company not bound by less than absolute interests

Except as required by law, no person is to be recognised by the company as holding any share
upon any trust, and except as otherwise required by law or the statutes, the cempany is not in
any way to be bound by or recognise any interest in a share other than the holder's absolute
ownership of it and all the rights attaching to it.

Share certificates

The company must issue each shareholder, free of charge, with one or more certificates in
respect of the shares which that shareholder holds.

Every certificate must specify:

{a) in respect of how many shares, of what class, it is issued;
(b) the nominal value of those shares;
(©) that the shares are fully paid; and

(d) any distinguishing numbers assigned to them.
No certificate may be issued in respect of shares of more than one class.

if more than one person holds a share, only one certificate may be issued in respect of it.
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Certificates must:

{a) have affixed to them the company's common seal; or
(b) be otherwise executed in accordance with the Act.
Replacement share certificates

If a certificate issued in respect of a shareholder's shares is:
() damaged or defaced, or

(b) said to be lost, stolen or destroyed,

that shareholder is entitled to be issued with a replacement cerificate in respect of the same
shares.

A shareholder exercising the right to be issued with such a replacement certificate:

(a) may at the same time exercise the right to be issued with a single certificate or separate
certificates;
(b) must return the certificate which is to be replaced to the company if it is damaged or

defaced: and

{c) must comply with such conditions as to evidence, indemnity and the payment of a
reasonable fee as the directors decide.

Share transfers

Shares may be transferred by means of an instrument of transter in any usual form or any other
form approved by the directors, which is executed by or on behalf of the transferor.

No fee may be charged for registering any instrument of transfer or other document relating to
or affecting the title to any share.

The company may retain any instrument of transfer which is registered.

The transferor remains the holder of a share until the transferee's name is entered in the register
of members as holder of it.

The directors may refuse to register the transfer of a share, and if they do so, the instrument of
transfer must be returned to the transferee with the notice of refusal unless they suspect that
the proposed transfer may be fraudulent.

Transmission of shares

If title to a share passes to a transmittee, the company may only recognise the transmittee as
having any title to that share.
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Subject to article 37(3), a transmittee who produces such evidence of entitlement to shares as
the directors may properly require:

{a) may, subject to the statutes, choose either to become the holder of those shares or to
have them transferred to another person, and

(b) subject to the statutes, and pending any transfer of the shares to another person, has
the same rights as the holder from whom the transmittee derived such entitlement had.

Transmittees do not have the right to attend or vote at a general meeting in respect of shares
to which they are entitled, by reason of the event which gave rise to the transmission, unless
they become the hoiders of those shares.

Exercise of transmittees’ rights

Transmittees who wish to become the holders of shares to which they have become entitled
must notify the company in writing of that wish.

If the transmitiee wishes to have a share transferred to another person, the fransmittee must
execute an instrument of transfer in respect of it.

Any transfer made or executed under this article is to be treated as if it were made or executed
by the person from whom the transmittee has derived rights in respect of the share, and as if
the event which gave rise to the transmission had not occurred.

Transmittees bound by prior notices

If a notice is given to a shareholder in respect of shares and a transmittee {or any perscn
nominated under article 37(2) is entitled to those shares, the transmittee (and any person
nominated under article 37(2) is bound by the notice if it was given to the shareholder before
the transmitiee's name has been entered in the register of members.

Dividends and Other Distributions
Procedure for declaring dividends

The company may by ordinary resolution declare dividends, and the directors may decide to
pay interim dividends.

A dividend must not be declared unless the directors have made a recommendation as to its
amount. Such a dividend must not exceed the amount recommended by the directors.

Ne dividend may be declared or paid unless it is in accordance with shareholders' respective
rights.

Unless the shareholders’ resolution to declare or directors’ decision to pay a dividend, or the
terms on which shares are issued, specify ctherwise, it must be paid by reference to each
shareholder's holding of shares on the date of the resolution or decision to declare or pay it.
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If the company's share capital is divided into different classes, no interim dividend may be paid
on shares carrying deferred or non-preterred rights if, at the time of payment, any preferential
dividend is in arrear.

The directors may pay at intervals any dividend payable at a fixed rate if it appears to them that
the profits available for distribution justify the payment.

If the directors act in good faith, they do not incur any liability to the holders of shares conferring
preferred rights for any loss they may suffer by the lawful payment of an interim dividend on
shares with deferred or non-preferred rights.

Payment of dividends and other distributions

Where a dividend or other sum which is a distribution is payable in respect of a share, it must
be paid by one or more of the following means:

(a) transfer to a bank or building society account specified by the distribution recipient
either in writing or as the directors may otherwise decide;

{b) sending a cheque made payable to the distribution recipient by post to the distribution
recipient at the distribution recipient's registered address (if the distribution recipient is
a holder of the share), or (in any other case) to an address specified by the distribution
recipient either in writing or as the directors may otherwise decide;

(©) sending a cheque made payable to such person by post to such person at such address
as the distribution recipient has specified either in writing or as the directors may

otherwise decide; or

(d) any other means of payment as the directors agree with the distribution recipient either
in writing or by such other means as the directors decide.

In the statutes, "the distribution recipient” means, in respect of a share in respect of which a
dividend or other sum is payable:

(a) the holder of the share; or

(b) if the share has two or more joint holders, whichever of them is named first in the
register of members; or

(c) if the holder is no longer entitled to the share by reason of death or bankruptcy, or
otherwise by operation of law, the transmittee.

No interest on distributions

The company may not pay interest on any dividend or other sum payable in respect of a share
unless otherwise provided by:

(a) the terms on which the share was issued, or
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(b) the provisions of another agreement between the holder of that share and the
company.

Non-cash distributions

Subject to the terms of issue of the share in question, the company may, by ordinary resolution
on the recommendation of the directars or by a decision of the directors, decide to pay all or
part of a dividend or other distribution payable in respect of a share by transferring non-cash
assets of equivalent value (including, without limitation, shares or other securities in any
company).

For the purposes of paying a non-cash distribution, the directors may make whatever
arrangements they think fit, including, where any difficulty arises regarding the distribution:

(a) fixing the value of any assets;

(b) paying cash to any distribution recipient on the basis of that vaiue in order to adjust the
rights of recipients; and

(c) vesting any assets in trustees.
Waiver of distributions

Distribution recipients may waive their entitlement to a dividend or other distribution payable in
respect of a share by giving the company notice in writing to that effect, but if:

(a) the share has more than one holder, or

{b) more than one person is entitled to the share, whether by reason of the death or
bankruptcy of one or more joint holders, or otherwise,

the notice is not effective unless it is expressed to be given, and signed, by all the holders or
persons otherwise entitled to the share.

Distribution in specie on winding up

If the company is wound up, the liquidator may, with the sanction of a special resclution of the
company and any other sanction required by law, divide among the shareholders in specie the
whole or any part of the assets of the company and may, for that purpose, value any assets
and determine how the division shall be carried out as between the shareholders or ditferent
classes of sharehoiders. The liquidator may, with the like sanction, vest the whole or any part
of the assets in trustees upon such trusts for the benefit of the shareholders as he with the like
sanction determines, but no member shall be compelled tc accept any assets upon which there
is a liability.

Capitalisation of Profits
Authority to capitalise and appropriation of capitalised sums

Subject to the statutes, the directors may, if they are so authorised by an ordinary resolution:

200987-4-16805-v0.1 18 70-40634133



Company No. [¢]

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

47.

(1)

(a) decide to capitalise any profits of the company (whether or not they are available for
distribution) which are not required for paying a preferential dividend, or any sum
standing to the credit of any of the company's reserves or funds, including but not
limited to the share premium account, capital redemption reserve, merger reserve or
revaluation reserve; and

(b) appropriate any sum which they so decide to capitalise (a "capitalised sum") to the
persons who would have been entitled to it if it were distributed by way of dividend (the
"persons entitled") and in the same proporticns.

Capitalised sums must be applied:
(a) on behalf of the persons entitled, and
(b) in the same proportions as a dividend would have been distributed to them.

Any capitalised sum may be applied in paying up new shares of a nominal amount equal to the
capitalised sum which are then allotted credited as fully paid to the persons entitled or as they
may direct.

A capitalised sum which was appropriated from profits available for distribution may be applied
in paying up new debentures of the company which are then allotted credited as fully paid to
the persons entitled or as they may direct.

Subject to the statutes the directors may:

(a) apply capitalised sums in accordance with paragraphs (3) and (4) partly in one way
and partly in another;

(b) make such arrangements as they think fit to deal with shares or debentures becoming
distributable in fractions under this article (including the issuing of fractional certificates
or the making of cash payments); and

(c) authorise any person to enter into an agreement with the company on behalf of all the
persons entitied which is binding on them in respect of the allotment of shares and
debentures to them under this article.

Part 4
Organisation of General Meetings
Annual general meetings

Subject to the Act and the Regulations, the company shall hold an annual general meeting
within 6 months of the end of its financia! year (in addition to any other meetings held that year),
except that the first annual general meeting of the Company may be held at any time during
the period 18 months following the company's incorporation. Such meetings may be convened
by the board at such time and place as it thinks fit.
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Attendance and speaking at general meetings

A persan is able to exercise the right to speak at a general meeting when that personis in a
position to communicate to all those attending the meeting, during the meeting, any information
or opinions which that person has on the business of the meeting

A person is able to exercise the right to vote at a general meeting when--

(a) that person is able to vote, during the meeting, on resolutions put to the vote at the
meeting, and

(b) that person's vote can be taken into account in determining whether or not such
resolutions are passed at the same time as the votes of all the other persons attending
the meeting.

The directors may make whatever arrangements they consider appropriate to enable those
attending a general mesting to exercise their rights to speak or vote at it.

In determining attendance at a general meeting, it is immaterial whether any two or more
members attending it are in the same place as each other.

Two or more persons who are not in the same place as each other attend a general meeting if
their circumstances are such that if they have (or were to have) rights to speak and vote at that
meeting, they are (or would be) able to exercise them.

Quorum for general meetings

No business other than the appeintment of the chairman of the meeting is to be transacted at
a general meeting if the persons attending it do not constitute a quorum.

If the Company has only one member entitled to attend and vote at the general meeting, one
gualifying person present at the meeting and entitled to vote is a gquorum.

Subject to the Act and article 49(4) in all cases other than that in article 49(2) two qualifying
persons present at the meeting and entitled 1o vote are a quorum.

One qualifying person present at the meeting and entitled to vote:

(a) both in his or her own capacity as a member and as a corporate representative of one
or more corporations, each of which is a member entitled to attend and vote upon the
business to be transacted at the meeting;

(b) as the corporate representative of two or mare corporations, each of which is a member
entitled to attend and vote upon the business to be transacted at the meeting;

(c) both in his or her own capacity as a member and as a proxy duly appeinted by one or
more members entitled to attend and vote upon the business to be transacted at the
meeting; or
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(d) as a proxy duly appointed by two or more members entitled to attend and vote upon
the business to be transacted at the meeting,

is a quorum.

Two persons present at the meeting and entitled to vote do not constitute a quorum if they are
each entitled to vote only as a duly appointed proxy for, or as a corporate representative for,
the same member,

Chairing general meetings

If the directors have appointad a chairman, the chairman shall chair general meetings if present
and willing to do so.

If the directors have not appointed a chairman, or if the chairman is unwilling to chair the
meeting or is not present within ten minutes of the time at which a meeting was due to start:

(a) the directors present, or

(b) (if no directors are present), the meeting,

must appoint a director or shareholder to chair the meeting, and the appointment of the
chairman of the meeting must be the first business of the meeting.

The person chairing a meeting in accordance with this article is referred to as "the chairman
of the meeting".

Attendance and speaking by directors and non-shareholders

Directors may attend and speak at general meetings, whether or not they are shareholders.
The chairman of the meeting may permit other persons who are not:

(a) shareholders of the company, or

(b) otherwise entitled to exercise the rights of shareholders in relation to general meetings,

to attend and speak at a general meeting.

Adjournment

If the persons attending a general meeting within half an hour of the time at which the meeting
was due to start do not constitute a quorum, or if during a meeting a quorum ceases to be
present, the chairman of the meeting must adjourn it.

The chairman of the meeting may adjourn a general meeting at which a quorum is present if:

(a) the meeting consents to an adjournment, or
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b) it appears to the chairman of the meeting that an adjournment is necessary to protect
the safety of any person attending the meeting or ensure that the business of the
meeting is conducted in an orderly manner.

The chairman of the meeting must adjourn a general meeting if directed to do so by the meeting.

When adjourning a general meeting, the chairman of the meeting must:

(a) either specify the time and place to which it is adjourned or state that it is to continue
at a time and place to be fixed by the directors; and

(b} have regard to any directions as to the time and place of any adjournment which have
been given by the meeting.

If the continuation of an adjourned meeting is to take place more than 14 days after it was
adjourned, the company must give at least 7 clear days' notice of it (that is, excluding the day

of the adjourned meeting and the day on which the notice is given):

(a) to the same persons to whom notice of the company's general meetings is required to
be given, and

(b) containing the same information which such notice is required to contain.

No business may be transacted at an adjourned general meeting which could not properly have
been transacted at the meeting if the adjournment had not taken place.

Voting at General Meetings
Voting: general

A resolution put to the vote of a general meeting must be decided on a show of hands unless
a poll is duly demanded in accordance with the statutes.

Errors and disputes

No objection may be raised to the qualification of any person voting at a general meeting except
at the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the vote objected to is tendered, and every vote
not disallowed at the meeting is valid.

Any such objection must be referred to the chairman of the meeting, whose decision is final.
Poll votes

A poll on a resolution may be demanded:

{a) in advance of the general meeting where it is to be put to the vote, or

(b) at a general meeting, either before a show of hands on that resolution or immediately
after the result of a show of hands on that resolution is declared.
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A poll may be demanded by:

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

(e)

the chairman of the meeting;
the directors;
two or more persons having the right to vote on the resolution;

a person or persons representing not less than one tenth of the total voting rights of all
the shareholders having the right to vote on the resolution; or

a person or persons holding shares in the company conferring a right to vote on the
resolution, being shares on which an aggregate sum has been paid up equal to not
tess than 10% of the total sum paid up on all the shares conferring that right.

A demand for a poll by a proxy counts, for the purposes of paragraph (c) above, as a demand
by a member, for the purposes of paragraph (d) above, as a demand by a member representing
the voting rights that the proxy is authorised to exercise, and, for the purposes of paragraph (e)
above, as a demand by a member holding the shares to which those rights are attached.

A demand for a poll may be withdrawn if:

(a)
(b)

the poll has not yet been taken, and

the chairman of the meeting consents to the withdrawal.

Polls must be taken immediately and in such manner as the chairman of the meeting directs.

Content of proxy notices

Proxies may only validly be appointed by a notice in writing (a "proxy notice") which:

(a)
(b)

(c)

(d)

states the name and address of the shareholder appointing the proxy;

identifies the persen appointed to be that shareholder's proxy and the general meeting
in relation to which that person is appointed;

is signed by or on behalf of the shareholder appointing the proxy, or is authenticated in
such manner as the directors may determine; and

is delivered to the company in accordance with the statutes and any instructions
contained in the notice of the general meeting (or adjourned meeting) to which they
relate.

The company may require proxy notices to be delivered in a particular form, and may specify
different forms for different purposes.

Proxy notices may specify how the proxy appointed under them is to vote (or that the proxy is
to abstain from voting) on ane or more resolutions.
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Unless a proxy notice indicates otherwise, it must be treated as:

(a) allowing the person appointed under it as a proxy discretion as to how to vote on any
ancillary or procedural resolutions put to the meeting, and

(b) appointing that person as a proxy in relation to any adjournment of the general meeting
to which it relates as well as the meeting itself.

Delivery of proxy notices

A person who is entitled to attend, speak or vote (either on a show of hands or on a poll) at a
general meeting remains so entitled in respect of that meeting or any adjournment of it, even
though a valid proxy notice has been delivered to the company by or on behalf of that person.

An appointment under a proxy notice may be revoked by delivering to the company a notice in
writing given by or on behalf of the person by whom or on whose behalf the proxy notice was
given.

A notice revoking a proxy appointment only takes effect if it is delivered before the start of the
meeting or adjourned meeting to which it relates.

The directors may require the production of any evidence which they consider necessary to
determine the validity of any proxy notice.

Amendments to resolutions

An ordinary resolution to be proposed at a general meeting may be amended by ordinary
resolution if:

(&) notice of the proposed amendment is given to the company in writing by a person
entitled to vote at the general meeting at which it is to be proposed not less than 48
hours before the meeting is to take place (or such later time as the chairman of the
meeting may determine}, and

{b) the proposed amendment does not, in the reasonable opinion of the chairman of the
meeting, materially alter the scope of tha resolution.

A special resoluticn 1o be proposed at a general meeting may be amended by ordinary
resolution, if:

(a) the chairman of the meeting proposes the amendment at the general meeting at which
the resolution is to be proposed, and

) the amendment does not go beyond what is necessary to correct a grammatical or
other non-substantive error in the resolution.

If the chairman of the meeting, acting in good faith, wrongly decides that an amendment to a
resolution is out of order, the chairman’s error does not invalidate the vote on that resolution.
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Class meetings

The provisions of the statutes relating to general meetings shall apply, with any necessary
modifications, to any separate general meeting ot the holders of shares of a class For this
purpose, a general meeting at which no holder of a share other than an ordinary share may, in
his or her capacity as a member, attend or vote shall also constitute a separate general meeting
of the holders of the ordinary shares.

Part 5

Administrative Arrangements
Means of communication to be used

Subject to the statutes, anything sent or supplied by or to the company under the statutes may
be sent or supplied in any way in which the Companies Act 2006 provides for documents or
information which are authorised or required by any provision of that Act to be sent or supplied
by or to the company.

Subject to the statutes, any notice or document to be sent or supplied to a director in connection
with the taking of decisions by directors may also be sent or supplied by the means by which
that director has asked to be sent or supplied with such notices or documents for the time being.

A director may agree with the company that notices or documents sent to that director in a
particular way are to be deemed to have been received within a specified time of their being
sent, and for the specified time to be less than 48 hours.

When notice or other communication deemed to have been received

Any notice, document or information sent or supplied by the company to the shareholders or
any of them:

(a) by post, shall be deemed to have been raceived 24 hours after the time at which the
envelope containing the notice, document or information was posted unless it was sent
by second class post, or there is only one class of post, or it was sent by air mail to an
address outside the United Kingdom, in which case it shall be deemed to have been
received 48 hours after it was posted. Proof that the envelope was properly addressed,
prepaid and posted shall be conclusive evidence that the notice, document or
information was sent;

(b) by being left at a shareholder's registered address, or such other postal address as
notified by the shareholder to the company for the purpose of receiving company
communications, shall be deemed to have been received on the day it was left;

() by electronic means, shall be deemed to have been received 24 hours after it was sent
Proof that a notice, document or information in electronic form was addressed to the
electronic address provided by the sharehclder for the purpose of receiving
communicaticns from the company shall be conclusive evidence that the notice,
document or information was sent; and
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(d) by making it available on a website, shall be deemed to have been received on the
date on which notification of availability on the website is deemed to have been
received in accordance with this aricle or, if later, the date on which it is first made
available on the website.

Company seals

Any common seal may only be used by the authority of the directors.

The directors may decide by what means and in what form any comrmon seal is to be used.

Unless otherwise decided by the directors, if the company has a common seal and it is affixed

to a document, the document must also be signed by at least one authorised person in the

presence of a witness who attests the signature.

For the purposes of this ariicle, an authorised person is:

{(a) any director of the company;
(b) the company secretary; or
(c) any person authotised by the directors for the purpose of signing documents to which

the common seal is applied.

Directors' Indemnity and Insurance
Indemnity and Insurance

The company shall indemnify a relevant director of the company in respect of any relevant loss
to the fullest extent permitted by the Act or by any other pravision of law.

The directors may decide to purchase and maintain insurance, at the expense of the company,
for the benefit of any relevant director in respect of any relevani loss.

In this article;

{a) a relevant director means any director or former director of the company; and

{b) a relevant loss means any loss or liability which has been or may be incurred by a
relevant director in connection with that director's duties or powers in relation to the
company.
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